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M=

BMEHE
BE=ZA=1+—HLEE
(E31)

EEE 26,007,997 17,955,672 44.8%
E 7 5,286,135 3,776,167 40.0%
FEm A 2,979,295 2,036,078 46.3%
NRBEE NS =T 2,575,506 1,764,264 46.0%
BREARRBF (EW) 53.58 39.37 36.1%
TR E A5 B 12.06 8.48 42.2%
kR A S R B I8 BT & 4,335,563 3,127,583 38.6%
MEBRFE  RIB - ERBEHANRF 5,084,644 3,730,562 36.3%
wEE 45,264,629 32,495,039 39.3%
WITEHRRIES 6,453,899 3,959,191 63.0%
% R 2 15,783,489 11,484,640 37.4%
TERBIEE

BE=ZHA=1+—HLEE

15 8 & KA 3.54% 4.73%
B L (fF) * 1.50 1.14
EH =X 20.3% 21.0%
FEEAGBHE 0.57 0.43
HEH & 11.5% 11.3%
& B L 2 (%) 22.5% 21.5%
19 AR AN =] ) 18.9% 16.6%
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EERR —E_[ME
BE=ZHA=1+—HLEE BB K
RARBIHE 8,044.8 6,824.9 17.9%
HMRARHEE 5,663.2 4,445 4 27.4%
RRBEBERARHEE 2,381.6 2,379.4 0.1%
AARBEE (AE 2 )
x= 1,129.6 835.9 35.1%
T 5,164.4 4,558.7 13.3%
[EES 992.2 845.7 17.3%
B4,/ b RARTE IR 758.6 584.6 29.8%
31 B
BE=A=1+T—HLEE
F= 1,662,167 1,225,863 35.6%
% 528 518 1.9%
[EES 8,656 6,389 35.5%
B4,/ BAERARTENRIL 173 37 367.6%
BE=A=1+T—-HLEE —E-mEF
WA R IE B 8B 237 185 52
EEEBER(RE) 47,668 37,408 27.4%
F= 10,306,995 8,438,991 22.1%
T 2,714 2,155 25.9%
[HES 59,479 49,895 19.2%
B4, RAE R AR TE IR 353 170 107.6%
BHEEZEAOQ(EE) 75.5 65.7 14.9%
B & % (%) 44.0% 42.0% 2.0%
FHERRE (AR) 2,562 2,550 0.5%
3 15 Uk B (BR#L) —E—MF
ARY
BE=A=1+—HLEE 3 F5 K
x= 2.26 2.18 3.7%
T 2.56 2.45 4.5%
S 2.85 2.48 14.9%

B4,/ RAL RARTE IR b 3.00 2.73 9.9%
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HTRR Z# 30 2,304,000 1,450,000 453,000 469,567 141 1,240 1,231
i 2,065,000 1,500,000 469,000 229,610 16 535 840
£ 1,300,000 150,000 47,000 15,098 = 24 79
M 5,707,000 425,000 133,000 124,899 3 336 564
MG 394,000 80,000 25,000 25,501 93 164 178
El3 540,000 125,000 39,000 27,980 8 153 151
ElLE 365,000 80,000 32,000 11,226 2 47 52
BA% 580,000 90,000 28,000 24,525 = 80 100
BRSG 1,400,000 180,000 56,000 20,981 = 126 146
B & 187,000 39,000 12,188 1,182 1 1 10
REH 270,000 21,000 7,000 2,659 1 2 24
EERER 132,000 25,000 7813 944 1 3 6
ER% 1,650,000 612,000 191,250 5,206 8 33
NI 10,000 10,000 3,125 =
BN ME 950,000 300,000 93,750 =
ENAREERERE 70,000 70,000 21,875 —

it 58 3,990,000 1,209,000 378,000 241,730 49 1392 896
£ 883,000 230,000 72,000 111,883 35 579 495
E 1,061,000 173,000 54,000 45,999 110 231 196
e 669,000 175,000 55,000 45,653 14 305 330
£8 579,000 117,000 37,000 32,027 14 26 135
BEN 2,580,000 782,000 244,000 78,198 23 287 451
%M 1,621,000 200,000 63,000 41,095 7 236 269
= 560,000 140,000 44,000 19,884 20 121 145
REFLE 453,000 192,000 60,000 =
REIH 320,000 320,000 100,000 =
20 609,000 240,000 75,000 28271 10 M 269
o 500,000 170,000 53,125 14,046 6 183 229
BR 184,500 44,800 14,000 323 2 14
AEH 700,000 220,000 68,750 =
5% 610,000 200,000 62,500 —
RAMIZE 25,000 25,000 7813 =
TEREWEE 60,000 60,000 18,750 17
E&% 480,000 220,000 68,750 =
R RHE 400,000 400,000 125,000 —

il 672,000 321,600 100,500 -
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il =k 4,600,000 860,000 269,000 121,592 2% 406 598
& 760,000 246,000 76,875 12,787 = 33 3
RRR 1,630,000 422,000 120,000 17,715 = 135 161
HBAEH 140,000 50,000 15,625 =
L& BM 1,580,000 230,000 72,000 46,770 6 194 226
HH 273,000 88,000 28,000 35,650 29 661 442
ARLILE 1,200,000 1,200,000 375,000 270,345 52 278 1,025
BAREARE 500,000 340,000 106,250 19,387 = = =
BNEZRE 500,000 180,000 56,250 19,132 2 58 157
MR 990,000 160,000 50,000 28,368 16 74 199
BMH 4,570,000 1,220,000 381,250 237,277 20 805 1,403
RARE 14,000 14,000 4,375 =
BRER 48,000 48,000 13,714 2
R85 53,000 53,000 15,143 =
pias LRI 1,157,000 1,157,000 362,000 36,378 140 100 706
am 600,000 600,000 160,000 44,366 6 183 Yl
S# 4,592,000 923,000 288,000 63,854 i 125 362
MNIRBER 312,000 220,000 68,750 =
Jip!d BNEER 370,000 270,000 84,375 4,032 27 9 40
) 760,000 52,000 16,000 28,440 6 16 72
B & 340,000 72,000 23,000 3,826 = 13 12
EHm 230,000 32,000 10,000 15973 20 17 110
EllEE 170,000 72,000 23,000 20,520 17 74 137
£=8 0% B 4,320,000 788,000 246,000 168,420 123 401 879
Filg B
YHE AEE
HEHE 750,000 750,000 234,000 438 1 1 35
BMEHE 150,000 90,000 28,125 —
E% 515,000 310,000 96,875 9,611 = 30 64
BHEFNE 918,000 70,000 21,875 =
Ef 430,000 156,000 52,000 35,289 1 26 83
5% 600,000 150,000 40,000 8,344 3 26 40
gh5g 300,000 67,000 20938 =

SREHE 830,000 380,000 118,750 -
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LEHTER @

B & B 5,990,000 677,000 188,000 64,329 15 200 VIE]
BRE FOM 3,260,000 400,000 125,000 56,267 3 246 212
M 3,580,000 1,300,000 406,000 204,055 13 629 1,085
BisH 7 718,000 200,000 63,000 31,637 1 61 146
BETRERZER 200,000 200,000 62,500 2492 5 19 15
RE 2,450,000 250,000 78,125 19,788 = 28 127
BE 3,730,000 330,000 103,125 8,438 = 6 51
A 1,820,000 210,000 70,000 2,520 = 2 1
BE 6,850,000 2,600,000 740,000 558,330 2 1,440 1,924
RE 430,000 100,000 31,250 —
2 2,300,000 682,889 213,403 6312 5 18
E¥ 1,900,000 250,000 78,125 2,000 18
b} 1,630,000 600,000 187,500 =
30 1,100,000 720,000 225,000 —
P 451,600 310,000 96,875 =
A& 410,000 300,000 93,750 =
R B 3,720,000 1,020,000 319,000 378,929 103 1334 1221
B 111 & 458,000 150,000 47,000 =
Rtk 3,370,000 500,000 156,000 3,041 1 = 17
333 87,000 25,000 7813 =
BR b 6,700,000 1,200,000 375,000 36,367 = 51 180
(2[4 630,000 300,000 94,000 28313 30 66 284
1M 1,237,000 886,000 250,000 32,357 4 64 22
£3 2,600,000 260,000 100,000 15913 = 60 120
WE 3,150,000 350,000 109,000 6,489 = 9 40
MAg 450,000 80,000 30,000 4,965 15 2 =
)14 650,000 208,000 70,000 1,326 1 3 18
FEg 250,000 50,000 15,000 3,675 = 6 28
AEE 534,400 198,000 61,875 2,111 1 2 18
REH 1,275,800 489,000 152,813 918 3 1 13
feM 1,304,564 580,000 181,250 7,864 = 3 29

e o] 8 290,000 90,000 27,000 =
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BE #E 2,260,000 1,415,000 442,000 279,119 10 6,148 429
BMEERGHER 80,000 80,000 25,000 43,045 9 161 105
BHHEZLE 430,000 430,000 112,000 45,538 20 302 309
AESHARE 830,000 450,000 140,625 39,788 5 30 159
&b 1,824,000 716,000 223,750 81,993 38 276 598
EM 730,000 287,000 103,000 16,035 5 33 81
oot 910,000 284,375 88,867 28,179 5 55 174
FATIEE 97,000 69,000 21,563 =
LHE 830,000 300,000 93,750 7,053 10 17 78
EERERR 86,348 63,200 19,750 —
BHATA 120,000 65,000 20,313 =
HES 320,000 150,000 46,875 =
BMEBENE 29,000 13,000 4,063 4174 9 20
&R & 350,000 160,000 50,000 1,409 =
ARBIEE -
BY& =
B 220,000 150,000 46,875 =
RELET 34,800 34,800 10,875 —

] At 920,000 877,000 274,063 120,405 27 6,282 354

1T M 5,616,000 1,598,000 499,375 165,549 17 1,723 426
58 7,560,000 2,790,000 871,875 826,399 10 4,081 2,020
£ 810,000 350,000 109,375 =
e 640,000 160,000 50,000 32,69 9 100 156
Mk 620,000 168,000 50,000 6,108 5 46 60
HENR 147,000 160,000 50,000 14,508 3 4 74
RO BBEERER 96,600 96,000 96,000 =
Wi 260,000 260,000 74,300
BNXBEIER
B 1,280,000 1,280,000 365,714 229,084 30 678 260
ETEERRE 167,000 167,000 47,714 36,757 73 50 343
P 9,000 9,000 2,571 37 2

iy} B 350,000 350,000 109,375 76,848 3 566 634

X2 BELEREE 600,000 150,000 43,000 14,722 8 2 187
FTII4E 50,000 50,000 50,000 =

=L B/ 43,000 22,000 6,875 1,794 8
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RS s 2,580,000 1,700,000 531,000 558,370 9% 6,400 1,746
BRE 58 105,000 50,000 19,000 18,955 = 355 =
A 2,100,000 1,300,000 406,000 367,613 240 2,59 1,910

MBS 187,000 90,000 28,125 =

iR 200,000 120,000 37,500 =

17 350,000 95,000 29,688 —

2% 180,000 60,000 18,750 =

s R 200,000 132,000 41,250 =

MiEBSHA 30,000 30,000 9,375 =

T#EE

FERRETER 13,000 5,800 1,813 —

5 550,000 330,000 103,125 =

S 450,000 150,000 46,875 =

EEL R 10,000,000 5,000,000 1,562,000 1,413,094 81 8,403 2,480
AR 2,480,000 820,000 256,250 136,896 5 483 508

L3 900,000 250,000 78,125 =

HHT 2,750,000 800,000 250,000 86,793 3 224 279
ARZENRERE 550,000 160,000 50,000 5,285 = 3 37

#)I1& 220,000 137,000 42,813 9,062 1 27 2,983

R 330,445 101,500 31,719 1,876 7 9 14

BB 461,000 124,000 38,750 1,875 7 10 8

ZE% 220,000 100,000 31,250 =

Ehs 210,000 90,000 28,125 =
#ATIERERE 70,000 70,000 21,875 =

REERE 209,700 150,000 46,875 —

B 150,000 85,000 26,563 =

TRATEDHE 14,000 14,000 4375 =

N | 262,000 120,000 37,500 =

kit 198,000 198,000 56,571 2,020 =

ZEEH% ol 1,060,000 560,000 175,000 28,610 10 1,43 347
BRRE B R 1,550,000 240,000 75,000 2,180 40
BE 30f@4 T,/ e 4,450,000 4,450,000 1,390,625 509,515 209 950 4591
=§ 2,500,000 1,200,000 375,000 =

B 165,000 165,000 47,143 = =

LE BETEER 84,000 37,000 10,000 7,533 2 18 85
2% 780,000 193,000 60,313 12,641 5 59 270

#Zm 370,000 82,000 25,625 =

ZRE 330,000 71,000 22,188 877 1 19

HEE 230,000 65,000 20,313 =

HE BAG 230,000 105,000 32,813 =
225 173,000 103,000 32,188 =

#Eg 480,000 91,000 28,438 =

ESH 95,000 30,000 9,375 =

5 131,100 43,000 13,438 =

Ak 200,000 70,000 21,875 -
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] ] 700,000 700,000 220,000 82,852 6 342 1,365
T 3,660,000 800,000 228,571 192,762 56 561 333
T 130,000 130,000 37,143 11,766 12 55 7
BB % 520,000 520,000 148,571 12,000
BERE 90,000 90,000 25,714 4,187 2 20 136
2mm 7{EE A 2,600,000 600,000 171,429 142,683 78 418 592
i3 32,800 32,800 9371
ERm 400,000 400,000 114,286 79,284 109 570 461
= P 390,000 390,000 111,429 51,489 13 170 260
PR 54 53,000 53,000 15,143
=PRI % 7
BEM 120,000 120,000 34,286
Efm 150,000 150,000 42,857 18,688 50 60 204
KT 400,000 400,000 114,286 32,776 1 80 248
KAEXR 35,000 35,000 10,000 1
HEm 250,000 250,000 71,429 20,975 15 85 29
EM HEm 1,060,000 430,000 134,375 —
25 ABBRHE 80,000 80,000 80,000 =
m EE EES% 52,526 1 1,086 551
EiE AEH RE 2,775 10 33 324
BRE 5% 22,824 2 469 430
X2 PN 2 36
it ZR 1 202
=15 1 71
EH—Ais _
bl B 2 51
B 43 73
1 EERM 3 134
Iif:] EFE—HM 43
RE &
L& #it
- By 210,398,157 75,504,764 23,447,811 10,306,995 2,714 59,479 47,668
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02 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BRI AR A T

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 AN E

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Gas
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 4 to 194, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March
31, 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2014,
and of the Group'’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

June 25, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEBEm&E

For the year ended March 31,2014 &= —NF=A=+—HILFE

[ fib 2 [H WA 3R 3R

2013
—E—=%F
Notes HK$'000
Mo 5E FA& T
(restated)
(&E7)
Revenue B A 7 26,007,997 17,955,672
Cost of sales 3 & R (20,721,862) (14,179,505)
Gross profit E 7 5,286,135 3,776,167
Other income E A A 9 405,355 444,483
Other gains and losses Hmlszs R ER 10 79,292 143,646
Selling and distribution costs $HE & D AR (871,038) (661,376)
Administrative expenses TR & (1,200,432) (1,127,058)
Finance costs % ER 11 (614,967) (691,016)
Share of results of associates JERE & N A 2 ¥ 8 290,437 333,294
Share of results of joint ventures A e /N1 A 345,814 218,427
Profit before taxation & B B 5% A 3,720,596 2,436,567
Taxation 7 18 12 (741,301) (400,489)
Profit for the year F 55 A 13 2,979,295 2,036,078
Other comprehensive income H A 2 E A
ltems that will not be reclassified HeTaesHfnER
subsequently to profit or loss: Bam2HEE
Increase in fair value on AHHEZIRE
available-for-sale investments NS 2,299 1,039
Exchange differences arising WMEEEZ
on translation [E & =58 105,407 193,569
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EEA
for the year 107,706 194,608
Total comprehensive income FEAZEBA
for the year 3,087,001 2,230,686
Profit for the year attributable to: FEmNEE
Owners of the Company ZiNNCTE 7 =N 2,575,506 1,764,264
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR S 403,789 271,814
2,979,295 2,036,078
Total comprehensive income THBALESR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEETE? P =N 2,659,918 1,922,775
Non-controlling interests FE1E R fE = 427,083 307,911
3,087,001 2,230,686
Earnings per share T & A 17
Basic BN HK53.58 cents &1l [IEERyA I
Diluted e HK51.61 cents j&1l [lElRX:lR iRl
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

3.31.2014

255,068
17,834,621
1,171,179
2,686,039
4,117,689
162,984
2,337,439
1,984,329

385,225
97,159

189,887
110,798

31,332,417

1,207,282
529,365

4,736,597
175,759
536,324
33,425
8,813
250,748

6,453,899

Non-current assets FEMENEE
Investment properties wEME
Property, plant and equipment ME Eﬁ?% K&
Prepaid lease payments B EHKIE
Investments in associates REEE RN R 2 E
Investments in joint ventures REBERAIZKE
Available-for-sale investments AEREZRE
Goodwill S
Other intangible assets HitnEREE
Deposits for acquisition of WHEM % - BB &
property, plant and equipment REEE
Deposits for acquisition of U BE BT BB A Al
subsidiaries, joint ventures and EERAR
associates BANT RS
Amount due from an associate JIE U Bt 2 1 B 3R I8
Deferred tax assets EEFEEE
Current assets e ﬁfg
Inventories rE
Amounts due from customers for JEJ%Z%}E'Z £ T2
contract work IR
Trade and other receivables fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’r@
FE W AR 18
Amounts due from associates JiE WA Bt 5 1 B 3R IA
Amounts due from joint ventures  FEUN A & A & 2B
Prepaid lease payments TR E IR
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEKRE
Pledged bank deposits BHEARITER
Bank balances and cash BITH T_&fﬁﬁ
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables B 5 ERNERRK
3 J’M‘%“\HE-EIE
Amounts due to customers for [ENEEZA#HTIIE
contract work IR
Taxation I8
Amounts due to associates JE (T & R B R TE
Amounts due to joint ventures & EREHRIE
Amount due to a non-controlling  F& < i /B A & 3E 4% A%
interest of a subsidiary T IR
Bank and other borrowings — PATRE M —
due within one year R —F R E| H#

6,079,095

136,811
304,796

2,675

5,760,676

12,284,053

3.31.2013 4.1.2012
—E2—=F —E—_fF
=A=+—H” mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
(restated) (restated)
(E7) (E71)
244,967 228,396
13,896,203 11,432,413
971,843 920,634
2,581,685 2,225,194
3,260,581 3,002,302
36,805 36,119
908,691 745,334
843,077 853,414
112,686 171,514
187,462 141,932
97,236 94,065
23,141,236 19,851,317
952,104 1,514,280
240,545 138,977
3,347,349 2,719,530
180,334 117,174
91,020 58,617
32,033 29,671
11,110 10,893
540,117 597,521
3,959,191 4,582,426
9,353,803 9,769,089
4,147,834 3,813,114
248,811 109,295
166,677 169,939
2,907 68
1,356 —
4,366 5,165
8,445,193 8,646,378
13,017,144 12,743,959
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continueD)
mEBMBERRER@®

At March 31,2014 R=ZF—MFE=A=+—H

3.31.2014 3.31.2013 4.1.2012
—E-NF —E-=F —ZT——f
=ZA=1+—H =Rl mA—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 &R FAT FAT
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (E31)
Net current assets (liabilities) nBEE(RRE)FE 1,648,159 (3,663,341)  (2,974,870)
Total assets less current liabilities REERTEEE 32,980,576 19,477,895 16,876,447
Equity g
Share capital f% 72X 35 49,953 45,697 43,831
Reserves i 15,733,536 11,438,943 9,698,382
Equity attributable to owners EEARAEAA
of the Company RS 15,783,489 11,484,640 9,742,213
Non-controlling interests JEIERR RE = 2,373,523 1,258,145 968,072
Total equity WE T 4B R 18,157,012 12,742,785 10,710,285
Non-current liabilities 3 ?miﬁ =
Bank and other borrowings — TRAMEES
due after one year E/\ F 12 5 5 34 14,192,186 6,355,830 5,789,251
Deferred taxation iR RE A% I8 631,378 379,280 376,911
14,823,564 6,735,110 6,166,162
32,980,576 19,477,895 16,876,447

The consolidated financial statements on pages 4 to 194 were FA4F1UBE 7 EAHBHRE BRESS
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June #t EXWHBER T —ME A -+ H B F
25, 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

ZHOU Si
B2
Director

EF

B CAUNTEERERRSE

LIU Ming Hui
21eAE

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BEADAEAA
Employee
share-based Investment ~ Properties Non-
Share Share  compensation ~ Translation ~ revaluation revaluation ~ Special  Capital  Statutory Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserve  reserve funds profits Total interests Total
EERH RABH NEER

e R &R SMEE EXEE i Bt FORE BAABE ZEEe  RHEd a5t FERES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR Thn TEx Thz TER TR TR TR TR

(note 36)  (note 36) (note i) (note if)
(Wi336)  (Hi&E36) (i) (&)
At April 1, 2012 (restated) ZZ-ZFMA-A
(E51) 43831 5,865,071 94,087 554,513 3782 1,601 1,602 30,160 368,076 2,779,490 9,742,213 968,072 10,710,285

Other comprehensive income FREBZENA

for the year — - — 157,472 1,039 - - - - - 158,511 36,097 194,608
Profit for the year FERF - — = = = = = = = 1,764,264 1,764,264 271,814 2,036,078
Total comprehensive income FRZAKALE

for the year — — — 157,472 1,039 — — — — 1,764,264 1,922,775 307911 2,230,686
Recognition of equity-settled BRERALES

share-based payments ZBABH A = — 4919 = = = = = = = 4919 = 4919
Transfer to accumulated profits R EBRERRE

upon cancellation of share options Z:HR — — (1,440) — — — — — — 1,440 — — —
Acquisition of additional interest KERBAARMES

of subsidiaries (note 38(B)) (H#£38(8)) — = = = = = —  (100,956) - — (100,956)  (36,828) (137,784
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) WEHBAR (H39) — — — — — — — — — — — 25,781 25,781
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) HERBAR (H:40) — - - — — — — (14) - - (14) (3557)  (357)
Exercise of share options TEERE 1,866 244,906 (53,409) - - - — - - - 193,363 - 193,363
Capital contribution from il PGE3 e 3

non-controlling interests HE

of subsidiaries — - — — — — - - — — — 68,704 68,704
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to il PGIVARE 2233

non-controlling interests BEZRE — — — — — — — — — — — (71,938)  (71,938)
Dividends paid ERRE - = = — — - — — — (277,660)  (277,660) —  (277,660)
Transfer g% - - — — - — - — 69,067 (69,067) - - —
At March 31, 2013 (restated) —E—=

ZRA=T-R(E5) 45697 6,109,977 44157 711,985 4,821 1,601 1602 (70810) 437,143 4198467 11484640 1,258,145 12,742,785
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CONSQLlDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continueD)
REREZEBHR@®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRAD
Employee
share-based Investment
Share Share compensation Translation revaluation
capital premium reserve  reserve  reserve
EERH REEf
B& RHEE aMEE EXfG &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAR FEr  FEx TR
(note 36)  (note 36)
(HHE36)  (Mri3e)
At April 1, 2013 (restated) ZZ-=FfMmA-A
(E31) 45697 6,109,977 711,985
Other comprehensive income FREBZERA
for the year
Profit for the year FEET
Total comprehensive income FE2AKALE
for the year
Acquisition of additional interest WENE L R MER
of a subsidiary (note 38(A)) (F3E38(8) - -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 39) Yt I8 2 7 (Fit5£39) - -
Issue of shares BRH 1,842 1,558,158 -
Exercise of share options AEERE 2414 521,614 (26,421)
Capital contribution from WELA
non-controlling interests FRRERLE
of subsidiaries
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to R AR
non-controlling interests FERER RS
Dividends paid BRRE
Transfer 5
At March 31, 2014 —E-|mE
=A=t-8 49,953 8,189,749 17,736 794,098 7120

Notes:

(ii)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

In accordance with statutory requirements in the People’s Republic of China, other
than Hong Kong (the “PRC"), subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
transfer a certain percentage of the annual net income from accumulated profits
to the statutory funds, until the statutory funds is accumulated up to 50% of its
registered capital. Under normal circumstances, the statutory funds is not allowed
to be distributed to the subsidiary’s shareholders as dividends. The statutory funds
shall only be used for making good losses, capitalisation into paid-in capital and
expansion of its productions and operations.

AREA

Properties

revaluation

reserve
NEER
BE
HK$'000
TR

1,601

(ii)

Special
reserve

BRIRE
HK$'000
TEn
(note i)

((GE:2)

1,602

Non-

Capital Statutory Accumulated controlling

reserve funds profits Total interests Total

ExGh
HKS$'000
TER

EEEE
HK$'000
Thx
(note i)

(Wiatii)

RitEA
HKS'000
TiEn

Bt FERES
HK$'000  HK$'000
THR TR

it
HKS'000
TR

(70,810) 437,143 4,198467 11,484,640 1,258,145 12,742,785

PAYERI

84,412
2,575,506

23,294
403,789

107,706
2,979,295

2,575506 2,659,918 427,083 3,087,001

(7.882)

(7.882)
1,560,000
497,607

(15)
71192

(7.897)
717,922
1,560,000
497,607

138294 138,294

(410,794)
(191,051)

(410,794)

(167,906)  (167,906)

(410,794)

191,051

(78,692) 628194 6,172,128 15783489 2373523 18,157,012

AEBZEHFBDEAARMKEBHBEARZ
BOBEEERRBRHR - ANEF EHAEH
EAPRETRBRETRIEEZZ®E

REFEARANBE(HE] TREEE) 00X
TERRE - B B AR AP S & R 1L R EH s A A
HEEFRAETEOLBEEIERES BEEE
EESEBHTIMEARS0% A I £ —RIER
T AEREETR/DIRT %M E R B BRRERK
BoZEEcENREBMER BXEEHA
AANBEREEREE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Change in fair value of investment
properties
Allowance for trade receivables
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate
Gain on deemed disposal of joint ventures
Interest expense
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Share-based payments

e
B Bt 41 2
AT B
REMET ATEED

B 5 R RREE
ME- BERRBZITE

LEBNHEERA
B A EHH
REEEREZATEED

HEMFE BB REEBE

=N =N L E
BIEHEBERRZER
BIELERE QR 2 W
B FX
g R NETE 3
BIERERAIES

A B A7 72 A 3R

Interest income M ERKA
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEFH 2

in working capital REXBREM
Decrease in inventories BFERD

Increase in amounts due from customers
for contract work

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in amounts due from associates

Increase in trade and other payables

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to
customers for contract work

(Decrease) Increase in amounts due to

& P 2 & # T2 RIALE

B 5 I8 U AR SR e L A MK AR TR

& Ui Bt & 2 ) SR IR AE h0

B 5 & A AR SR e H A A R TR A

ENEFPZEHTRREA
O 4) 32 A

J& A Y B8 2 A SE 42 A A 25 SRR

non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (G 4>) 12 n
Cash from operations KEEBEER®
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EPREGEMER

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REXBABREFHE

2014
—2-nsE
HK$'000
T

3,720,596

(8,957)
64,579

653,089
37,730
58,262

1,214

6,169

15,033
(78,807)

614,967
(290,437)
(345,814)

(56,810)

4,390,814
79,849

(285,775)

(CEY@AN)
(22,879)
937,011

(115,150)

(6,274)

4,040,396
(657,325)

2013

HK$'000
FAT
(restated)
(E7%1)

2,436,567

(13,575)
3,775

543,192
28,154
31,633

(217)

5,529
(2,421)

691,016
(333,294)
(218,427)

4,919
(76,966)

3,099,885

600,061
(98,094)
(504,347)
(15,503)
78,867
136,784
14,807
3,312,460
(416,021)

2,896,439
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conTinue)
HERESERERmW

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FTHET FAT
(restated)
(E%)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Interest received 2 U F & 56,810 76,966
Repayment from associates B N RIENR 89,915 7,388
Advance to associates M HE & A AE L 2 B (60,230) (94,097)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEME  BE k&

property, plant and equipment BftiEE (383,799) (51,818)
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries, WEHEB AR - 5228

joint ventures and associates K& RRIENRE (97,159) —
Placement of pledged bank deposits EERRITERFA (26,544) (509,814)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REREERRITFER 322,750 582,156
Addition of property, plant and NEWE  BER&E

equipment (3,069,562) (2,395,793)
Addition of prepaid lease payments ANETENEERIE (138,523) (60,790)
Addition of available-for-sale investments 7 B A] it tH &£ % & (128,092) (409)
Proceeds from disposal of HEITHREEZRE

available-for-sale investments FT15 518 4,894 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERZE

plant and equipment and RIEMNHEERIBHRERIE

prepaid lease payment 49,697 26,165
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading H &3F{FE =& & 1§ A

investments 1,083 —
Acquisition of businesses, net of WEE TS - HIBRATER &

cash and cash equivalents acquired kRS EEIER 39 (1,471,735) (107,001)
Disposal of a subsidiary & B A Al 40 — (3,702)
Addition of investments in joint ventures RER A LR Al 2% & (120,684) —
Repayment from non-controlling interests [t [ /A & JE3% AR #E 2538 X

of subsidiaries 4,270 47,788
Advance to non-controlling interests EENEMNGIE 2 g

of subsidiaries ER Z 83 (13,655) (51,231)
Advance to joint ventures RAERAAELEZE8H (210,250) (30,938)
Capital injection into an associate mEtE N TER (5,002) (15,213)
Dividends paid by associates B & R A B TR E 42,305 4,728
Dividends paid by joint ventures aENFEMNEE 12,441 =

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES #% & & & pr 3R €% %8

(2,575,615)
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HERERERW

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

Note
B 5

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Proceed of issue of ordinary shares

Proceed of exercise of share options

Dividends paid

New bank and other borrowings raised

Repayments of bank and
other borrowings

Advance from non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary

Repayment to non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries

(Repayment to) advance from
associates

(Repayment to) advance from
joint ventures

Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries

Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

Dividend paid by subsidiaries to

BEED

B HE
BITEBRBRZEHRIA
17158 BB BEUHE P15 3RIR
ENBE
MESRITLREMER
EERTREMEES

(P INEIEIE Y g Sk BN
1) P /B8 2 B] I 122 4 a5 4R 3K

(%A TER),/
OGP
(e EATER),/
ABATBR
M B B 2 4B S
38
I 2 0 3¢ 42 AR 25 1

(R INCIVERE R e

non-controlling interests i =
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) mEEESRE (FFA)ES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES F R

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

RehBREFEHEB ZEM
O )88

FNzRERRLSEES
B EE e

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR

FRZ\SRAEEEER

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash

BekREFEER
BRI
RITEBRLAS

2014
—®2-m%F
HK$'000
BT

(540,207)

497,607
(410,794)
19,777,922

(15,048,376)

(8,843)

(2,944)

(1,356)

(7.897)

138,294

(167,906)

2,467,501

3,959,191

27,207

6,453,899

6,453,899

2013
HK$'000
T
(restated)
(E%))

(692,794)
193,363

(277,660)
10,780,042

(10,813,233)
11,360
(39,981)
2,837

1,356
(137,784)
68,704

(71,938)
(975,728)

(654,904)
4,582,426

31,669

3,959,191

3,959,191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR M A

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office and
principal place of business are disclosed in the section headed

“Corporate Information” of the Group’s annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out note 48.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB”). As the
Company is listed entity in Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company consider that it is appropriate to present the

consolidated financial statements in HK$.

—REHR

ARARREREEMR T2 ARE
RAF A—RMEREERAF X
B 1R E BB A R 5 AR A R (T8
R bW ARA 2 EMBEER
TEEEMERAEEFEA AR
B — 0 B -

ARA B —BEREZERRF - KD
TEWBRAZEEHNM T8 -

HAaMBRERDABTTETD I
T MARBREMBARZYEE
BABARBETARED BARAER
BARREBEELMZER RARAE
ERBUNBT2INGEAVBHRRE

T E
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HE=-ZT—NFE=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"):

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Recoverable amount disclosure
for non-financial assets

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS36

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

Consolidated financial
statements, joint arrangements
and disclosure of interests in
other entities: Transition

guidance

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in associates
and joint ventures

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
other entities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HK(IFRIC)-INT 20 Stripping costs in the production

phase of a surface mine

Bt#& R4 FINANCIAL REPORT 2014 13

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuen)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, HKFRS
12 "Disclosure of interests in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) “Separate financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011) “Investments in associates and joint ventures”,
together with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance. HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it deals only with
separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) INT-12 “Consolidation —
Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor has control over an investee when (a)
it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and (c)
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over
an investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been
included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control
over an investee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuen)

e MR R M E @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has
control over an investee. The adoption does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
investee as at April 1, 2013.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”, and
the guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC)-INT
13 “Jointly controlled entities — Non-monetary contributions by
venturers”, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified and
accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types of
joint arrangements — joint operations and joint ventures. The
classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 s
determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to the
joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal form
of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the
parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and
circumstances. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint
operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated three types
of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled operations and jointly controlled assets. The
classification of joint arrangements under HKAS 31 was
primarily determined based on the legal form of the
arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was established
through a separate entity was accounted for as a jointly
controlled entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FEEAH
A 3
|

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint
operations is different. Investments in joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly
held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from the sale
of the output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator
accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and
expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in
accordance with the applicable standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements
in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 11 and
concluded that the joint arrangement of the Group, which were
classified as a jointly controlled entity under HKAS31 and was
accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method,
should be classified as a joint venture under HKFRS 11 and
accounted for using the equity method.

The change in accounting of the Group’s investment in joint
ventures has been applied in accordance with the relevant
transitional provisions set out in HKFRS11. The initial
investments as at April 1, 2012 for the purposes of applying the
equity method is measured as the aggregate of the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities that the Group had
previously proportionately consolidated (see the tables below
for details). Also, the directors performed an impairment
assessment on the initial investments as at April 1, 2012 and
concluded that no impairment loss is required. Comparative
amounts for 2012 have been restated to reflect the change in
accounting of the Group's investments in joint arrangements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuen)

e MR R M E @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
associates, joint arrangements and entities that have interests in
subsidiaries. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements (please see notes 4, 21 and 22 respectively for
details).

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and
disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS
13 is broad, and applies to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, subject to few exceptions.

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability,
in the case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive
disclosure requirements.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the
Group has applied the new fair value measurement and
disclosure requirement prospectively. Other than the additional
disclosures as set out in notes 6 and 18, the application of this
new standard has not had any material impact on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of items of other comprehensive income”. Upon the adoption
of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’'s “statement of
comprehensive income” is renamed as the “statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income”. The amendments to
HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the existing
option to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the
changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does
not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and total comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuen)
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The Group has early applied amendments to HKAS 36
“Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets” in
advance to its effective date (i.e. January 1, 2014). The
amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclosure
the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (“CGU") to
which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives had been allocated when there has been no impairment or
reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and
valuation techniques used when the recoverable amount of an
asset or CGU was determined based on its fair value less costs
of disposal. Accordingly, the Group has not disclosed the
recoverable amounts of the Group’s CGUs to which goodwill
had been allocated, there is no other impact to the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.

The Group has not early applied other new or revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the current

accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuep)
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 &=

B 7% 3R 3} B 5 )

—E-NE=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. fEM %é &l g g1 *7IJ EER Zg
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS LEEH([F ,%E IR EE
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED) Al ﬁ ()

The effects of changes in accounting policies described above LtiiestBEEHEHFE_T — =
on the results for the year ended March 31, 2013 are as follows: FZRA=1T—"HLEGFEXHZ2TE
N
Amendments to
As originally HKFRS 11
stated adjustments  As restated
BEBUBEHS
ERFENMHEZ
R 5l & 5T Fr{E A & Eg]]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Revenue A . 21,250,266 (3,294,594) 17,955,672
Cost of sales 5 & B AR (16,876,300) 2,696,795  (14,179,505)
Gross profit S 4,373,966 (597,799) 3,776,167
Other income E i Uy A 459,525 (15,042) 444,483
Other gains and losses B Wz & &5 18 226,936 (83,290) 143,646
Selling and distribution costs $HE RO KA (849,816) 188,440 (661,376)
Administrative expenses TR X (1,315,287) 188,229 (1,127,058)
Finance costs B 5 & A (726,989) 35,973 (691,016)
Share of results of associates RS AR 28 339,614 (6,320) 333,294
Share of results of joint ventures EEAEERNR X248 — 218,427 218,427
Profit before taxation 4 %5 A % ) 2,507,949 (71,382) 2,436,567
Taxation 7 18 (466,631) 66,142 (400,489)
Profit for the year N B i A 2,041,318 (5,240) 2,036,078
Other comprehensive income Hb 2@ A
Items that will not be classified ERTe2EHDHB
subsequently to profit or loss: £18=m 2B HE
Increase in fair value on AHEE 2 RE
available-for-sales investments NFEE M 1,039 — 1,039
Exchange difference arising BREELZ
on translation PE 5 =8 193,569 — 193,569
Other comprehensive income REFHAMEEBA
for the year 194,608 — 194,608
Total comprehensive income FEAZERA
for the year 2,235,926 (5,240) 2,230,686
Profit for the year attributable to: FRERAFESB
Owners of the Company RRARER A 1,764,264 — 1,764,264
Non-controlling interests FEI A% ME 25 277,054 (5,240) 271,814
2,041,318 (5,240) 2,036,078
Total comprehensive income ZHEHRABEFES
attributable to:
Owners of the Company Vi N/NE=| Tgﬁﬁ/\ 1,922,775 — 1,922,775
Non-controlling interests FE 128 A e 2w 313,151 (5,240) 307,911
2,235,926 (5,240) 2,230,686
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HE=-ZT—NFE=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EER#HI REBITE BT K
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS REER((ERYBEREE
("HKFRSS") (CONTINUED) Al ) i)

Summary of the effects of the above changes g RSS2 ERE
in accounting policies (Continued) (#&)
The effects of the above changes in accounting policies on the ST HEREHEHAERRN T —

financial positions of the Group as at April 1, 2012 and March

31, 2013 is as follows:

“FEWNA—HARZ
—BZHBRRZFZENT

F-=E=f=+

HKFRS 11 HKFRS 11
adjustments adjustments
As at and As at As at and As at
4.1.2012 reclassification 4.1.2012 3.31.2013 reclassification 3.31.2013
BEMBRSE EBUBHRE
iy ZAIE 115 i ERIZE1585
—T—-F AR ZZT—-F
mA—AR BHOK mA—AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHET THT FTExT TER
(originally (originally
stated) (restated) stated) (restated)
(R51) (E7) (B 51) (E251)
Investment properties REW % 450,600 (222,204) 228,396 244,967 244,967
Property, plant and equipment WE BERRE 14,423,598 (2,991,185) 11,432,413 [EVELIAIT) (3,.461,746) 13,896,203
Prepaid lease payments BAEERE
— non-current portion — IEENEER 17 1,093,945 (173,311) 920,634 AREYREL (160,292) 971,843
Investments in associates REERR 2 BE 2,286,243 (61,049) 2,225,194 2,652,109 (70,424) 2,581,685
Investments in joint ventures REBDNEIZERE — 3,002,302 3,002,302 — 3,260,581 3,260,581
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZRE 76,658 (40,539) 36,119 78,983 (42,178) 36,805
Goodwill Sk 1,038,591 (293,257) 745,334 1,209,279 (300,588) 908,691
Other intangible assets HihBmE EE 1,281,448 (428,034) 853,414 1,267,221 (424,144) 843,077
Deposit for acquisition of property, — KEM 2 « BE Rk
plant and equipment HiEES 202,919 (31,405) 171,514 165,305 (52,619) 112,686
Amount due from an associate FE Y EE & 1 R AR
— non-current portion — EENERER D 141,932 = 141,932 187,462 = 187,462
Deferred tax assets EERIBELE 94,065 = 94,065 97,236 — 97,236
Inventories FE 1,743,372 (229,092) 1,514,280 1,122,838 (170,734) 952,104
Amounts due from customers BUEEPZEHTRE
for contract work IA 173,519 (34,542) 138,977 305,658 ((FRNE)] 240,545
Amounts due from joint ventures EWASNRIRE — 58,617 58,617 — 91,020 91,020
Trade and other receivables B HRW RS K
H o fE Wt BR IE 3,169,928 (450,398) 2,719,530 4,019,190 ((YARZY)] 3,347,349
Amounts due from associates & LI&ZH;» EVNGE ]
— current BIE 124,792 (7,618) 17,174 185,605 (5,271) 180,334
Prepaid lease payments A fﬁgﬁ I8
— current portion — BN ERER (R 33,656 (3,985) 29,671 34,586 (2,553) 32,033
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBERE 10,893 — 10,893 11,110 — 11,110
Pledged bank deposits BEABRITER 710,459 (112,938) 597,521 650,711 (110,594) 540,117
Bank balances and cash ROBGERES 4,817,767 (235,341) 4,582,426 4,298,095 (338,904) 3,959,191
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELENEE — — — 347,121 (347,121) =
Trade and other payables ZEFRAR
Hih e BRE (4,737,019) 923,905 (3,813,114) (5,543,696) 1,395,862 (4,147,834)
Amounts due to customers for BREFZAEHNTRE
contract work I8 (244,667) 135,372 (109,295) (310,280) 61,469 (248,811)
Taxation FiE (189,339) 19,400 (169,939) (WENED)] 13,053 (166,677)
Amounts due to associates JE B & X B SRR (2,302) 2,234 (68) (2,907) — (2,907)
Amounts due to joint venture EBREERAHE = = = — (1,356) (1,356)
Amount due to a non-controlling FEfT—RIKT B A R
interest of a subsidiary JEE AR S e (5,165) — (5,165) (4,366) — (4,366)
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE
— due within one year — RN —FREH (8,963,385) 317,007 (8,646,378) (9,082,138) 636,945 (8,445,193)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
— due after one year — R —FREH (6,406,777) 617,526 (5,789,251) MN(F:IFHALD)] 506,880 (6,355,830)
Deferred taxation RIEFIE (526,741) 149,830 (376,911) (545,003) 165,723 (379,280)
Non-controlling interests #f*ﬂ%’éﬁﬁ (1,056,777) 88,705 (968,072) (1,352,090) 93,945 (1,258,145)
Total effects on net assets HEEEZVERR 9,742,213 9,742,213 IERRWEININ] 11,484,640
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—Z—WFE=A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FEAH T RKEBIE BB
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEER(FEBHBEREE
("HKFRSSs") (CONTINUED) Al 1) &)

Impact on cash flows for the year ended March FE A £ 4t 3 5T & £ 48 7T 2E Al ¥
31, 2013 on the application of the above new BE2-ZE—=%=H=+—H
and revised Standards LFEFENBEESREFE

HKFRS 11

adjustments

ERAMBERE

R FE 115

ZHEE

HK$’000

FH& T

Net cash outflow from operating activities KRR G NI TR (485,160)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEESR RN FE 540,598

Net cash outflow from financing activities BB EBIR SR L FEE (108,690)

Net cash outflow BERLFEE (53,252)
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 39

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14

HK(IFRIC)-INT 21

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle*

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle’

Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures’

Investment entities'

Accounting for acquisitions
of interests in joint operations®

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions’

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities'

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting'

Financial instruments’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Levies'

ERAF REETEENE
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, with earlier
application permitted.

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, with limited
exceptions.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after
January 1, 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in the future will have impact on the classification and
measurement in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments but not on the Group’s other financial assets and
financial liabilities. It is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

3.

EXETEHE

REMBBRRDBEBEEEGMAQ
CRM2BEM B RELENREE - 1t
S IREMBERRTFAAZTEHR AR
SHMAERABAES EMRREFER
BEPIFAARENEREEER -

BRREMERETERTARE®RS
HARBAFEFE(RTXEFAERE
MBRRR) S SR A MRS R TV IR L X
AREEFEE - FEERAN—RIBREEN
EMEREANREZAFE-

AFEARFERREMHLEE L
REEFRZFTHE-—HEEMSK
B EE-—RAEmMS N ZER
(BERZEBERSEERTEERRAS
—fAERTGHFmMEL) - bt —8
BESRABZATER AEEZE
BERRBEZRB(WMmE28ES
RAERHEREELRBEERZE
BZERR) REEFAMBRERT
REAER /EARBEZ XA FETZIL
EREE HEEEPBREENF 2R
[GA B4R 72 25 5K ) 46 B R A B £ 7 2
B2HRRH  BAESAERNEIT75R
HEIRERNZHER S MERFE
EROBUELIFAFEZFE W
EEERMEAFE2RAEFEZTE
REEXBEGTEREI6H 2 EB
BERRI -



Bt# R4 FINANCIAL REPORT 2014 27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 HE=-ZT—NFE=F=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted (the
carrying amount of the net assets attributable to non-controlling
interests) and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HZ—-ZF—

3.

B 7 3R 3% B 5 )

ME=A=+—RIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or, when

applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected

the amounts recognised as of that date.

Changes resulting from events after the acquisition date are not
measurement period adjustments. Such changes are therefore

accounted for separately from the business combination.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see
the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to

benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwiill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’'s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint
venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is
classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is
a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associates
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be classified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets),
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

3 the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of natural gas, liquefied petroleum gas
("LPG"), coke and gas appliances are recognised when the gas
or goods are delivered and title has passed.

Deposits received by the Group prior to meeting the above for
revenue recognition criteria are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Connection revenue from gas pipeline construction is recognised
when the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably and
the stage of completion at the end of the reporting period can
be measured reliably. Revenue from gas connection contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the proportion of contract cost incurred for
work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract
costs. When the outcome of a gas connection contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract cost incurred that it is probable to be recoverable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction services is described in the accounting policy for
construction contracts below.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Property, plant and equipment including land (classified as
finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods and services, or for administrative purposes,
(other than construction in progress and described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for production
or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included as
part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

J the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis that
are acquired separately.

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair values at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, measured based on the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to
the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not
be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to
the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its
receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as amounts due from customers for contract work. For
contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for contract
work. Amounts received before the related work is performed
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position,
as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade and
other receivables.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories, including construction materials, gas appliances and
gas for sales, LPG, coke, consumables and spare parts, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or
an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

] exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’'s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributable to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before
January 1, 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign currency
items of the acquirer and reported using the historical cost
prevailing at the date of acquisition.

BEAEBE @

RGEEEE T BEHRRE  NEEEII
EBZEERABREBREH R
BUTEXRESASENEREE
(BETT) - WA R HARBAZF
VEXRME - FRIFEREHEAKE
KE - EZBEAT MERRZBEH
MBITEXR - FIELEZENZH (W0
B) SREMEERAER R
ERDSNELFEERT (BBNIFE
PetEs - @A) -

REEBIIEH(BHERNREERE
SRz 2w ES RS RKREHE
ERCEIE AN - NGRS E - vl
E HHERESBIEBTZALER
BE B 2 W] B 1) 4 2R T fE PR B AR
DB REREE)R  RARBEEA
BEXRB IS RFTZMBELEZE

EFoBEER-

AN A B EMBRRLRER
REBREHZWB LR 22 5%
ALK RAELZREHNBRE
FERELD ATERNERER -
BEEMES Y HE (AN D H S
RAFABLMARERAKE K
EERFENRHAREHE)ME - A
BUGKRAELZBEHROBER
e

R-_ZETAF—H— B RKEEI
EGMELAZEREABRMNEERE
RAFEFHEEREET 2FEEIH
WIHEB YR WEABRERE RN
K2R



Bt#5 R4 FINANCIAL REPORT 2014 45

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after January 1, 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction on production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
FVTPL, of which interest income included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group
comprise held for trading financial assets.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling

in the near future; or

] on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line item. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associates and joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of

interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as (a) loan and receivable, (b)
held to maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on available-for-sale
equity investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

AR ED A E

AHEESREETDKEE S BRI
FWEFARATERZEMEAM
ﬁ%m#ﬁilﬂ'ﬁgm&f%m

COFEEIHERE  HOQBAF
ﬁﬁkﬁ@Z@ﬂﬁE

REEBEZRARBRES TS
ATHEEETRERTBEE R E
FEWREATESE - SR ERA
R EHEHASEBH A& S
WS REENEEESD LGS
ERABENRE  NIBRENER -
EpaftE s BEAENE AR
REMRERATER L2HER
BB R T o % 0 R
RRER BERIRBESHER
BT EBESAEE EFSOES
BR(RTXsREEREGRES®
HEE) -

]

AHEHERATANKRERAK
B 70 18 2

e WA AR B 2 A
Eﬁu/u °

AN ERMSTEMEREREQTF
BEEEASEFE 2 JHEE ZBRAE
E UEkHZEBRERATAEEH
WENSNZETBEEE T4 T A
ﬁa*&%Tﬁﬁ%Zkﬁ&ﬁ&m
AETERERERRERADBEME
HERBEEBEEFE(F2ETXE#H
CREERBEREZEFTEE) -



Bt# R4 FINANCIAL REPORT 2014 51

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuen)

ﬁlg‘aﬁl_/_\

For the year ended March 31, 2014 HZ—-ZF—

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default and delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent financial liabilities held for
trading, which comprise derivatives that are not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

At the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates, joint ventures and a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary and bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (employee share-based compensation reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to employee share-based
compensation reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful life to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount which is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value. When the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at March 31, 2014, the carrying
amount of goodwill was HK$2,337,439,000 (2013:
HK$908,691,000) with no impairment loss recognised. Details
of the recoverable amount calculation disclosed in note 24.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
the estimated residual value. The Group assesses annually the
residual value and the useful life of the property, plant and
equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimates, such differences from the original estimates will
impact the depreciation charges in the year in which the
estimates change.
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(CONTINUED)

As at March 31, 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$3,718,893,000 (2013: HK$3,371,554,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset in relation to
these unused tax losses approximately to HK$3,635,208,000
(2013: HK$3,289,673,000) has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In cases where
there are future profits generated to utilise the tax losses, a
material deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the period in which the
estimated future profits are expected.

Construction revenue from gas connection contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the proportion of the contract costs incurred for
the work performed to date over the estimated total contract
costs. Accordingly, any changes to the estimated total contract
cost may have material impact on the contract revenue
recognised in each accounting period over the contract term.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include the amount due to a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary and bank and other borrowings disclosed in notes 33
and 34 respectively, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital disclosed in note 35,
reserves and accumulated profits as disclosed in consolidated
statements of changes in equity.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. {5 FABHBARZZ2EERIR
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 5. EXEREE@
The management reviews the capital structure by considering EERBEEZEANKAN K MR ER
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of BEREE2RBRTENGEHE - ERN
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the EEEZEZ AEEBERARMSK
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the B BOHIREETHEXEBRIEAS
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of B FEHEBREBERLERE -
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T@ITA
Categories of financial instruments £ R T A¥E5
2014 2013
—E-—OF —ZT—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
(restated)
(E31))
Financial assets TRLEE
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 162,984 36,805
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 8,813 11,110
Loans and receivables (including cash and B M ERFE (B
cash equivalents) WE LRSS EIER) 10,165,554 6,523,169
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Amortised cost # $8 pk AN 23,966,821 17,468,368

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, held-for-trading investments, amounts due
from/to associates/joint ventures, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries, bank and other borrowings, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks

Currency risk

The Group collects most of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures as well as capital expenditures are also
denominated in RMB. However, the Group has certain bank
balances, amount due to a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary and bank and other borrowings that are not
denominated in functional currency of the respective group
entities. The appreciation or devaluation of RMB against foreign
currencies may have positive or negative impact on the results
of operations of the Group.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the directors monitor foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. As at end of the reporting period, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in foreign currency are as follows:

Assets

BE

2014
—E-mF
HK$'000
FHT

United States Dollars (“USD") 27t ([ZE 7T]) 995,204
HK$ B JT 208,654

Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(RHE]D =
Euro Dollar (“EURQ") Bt ([T ) —

—T—= —2-DmF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

(restated)

675,884 13,727,926

/T AW

BHEREEBERBEGE)

5 B B

BEER
AEBREBOBABAARE U -
MABPAIREARITHRAAR
BEtE- T8 AEETEE TRT
FEER - PR HT B R B JEE AR ME &R K IR
RBRITRAMEEYIFASHBEEE
ERNMEERE - ARBHINE
FEXREAEEHASREZEEE
BEENEELEETE -

AEEEMYEINEHPBER A
EXZARERIERR WAFE-
SEREMEARINERR - N WS H
R AKEUINEFECEREER
BEZEEEDT :

Liabilities
=
2013 2014 2013

F&E T TET FET
(restated)

(&%) (&%)

3,120,733
24,010 = =
= 590,493 486,104
= 37,408 48,181
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2013:
5%) increase and decrease in RMB against respective foreign
currencies. 5% (2013: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in
foreign currencies rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5% (2013: 5%)
against the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening
of RMB against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the result for the year and the balance
below would be negative.

/T AW

BHEREEBRERBEKGE)

45 2 B (48

B b (E)

BREE DT
TRHFDAEBGRARE X & HNEE
HEREES%(ZE—=F:5%) 2

HEE 5% (ZF—=F :5%) &M
FTEEBABRIBERIINERR Z
BEELLE  WREREEERINEE
$Aﬁ‘f ERBEIT 2 HEE
SPMEBRETENZIINEFEE
BIEE WHINEER Z25% (=% —
S 5% R RERRARE S
Ho NRFTRZIESIEHMARER
EHEEEFEN(ZZTE—Z=F :5%)
B BREBRENEEMLEA - WMAR
S AR e EES (T — = F

5%) iﬂlym'iif*é%%%ﬁiifﬁﬁ@&
MzwE BTHERERBR-

Increase (decrease)
in post-tax profit for the year

USD impact
HK$ impact
JPY impact
EURO impact

m o A
S S

o
IS DRSO o

Wwww

F B BRBL % 0% 18 i CF 2>)
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=

HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET T T
(restated)

(E31)

477,477 55,115
(7,825) (710)
22,144 18,229
1,403 1,807

493,199 74,441

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on interest
rate level as well as potential impact on the Group’s financial
position arising from volatility. Interest rate swap is the hedging
instrument most commonly used by the Group to manage
interest rate exposure.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
amounts due from associates, amount due to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary and fixed-rate bank and other
borrowings issued by the Group (see notes 26, 33 and 34 for
details of these borrowings respectively).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and floating-rate bank
and other borrowings (see notes 31 and 34 for details of bank
balances and these borrowings respectively). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rate risk for both floating-rate bank and
other borrowings, together with the interest capitalised to
construction in progress at the end of the reporting period.
Floating-rate bank balances have not been included in the
sensitivity analysis as the management considers that the
interest rate would not fluctuate significantly in the near future
and therefore the financial impact to the group is not
significant. A change of 100 basis points (2013: 100 basis
points) was applied to the yield curves and interest rate on both
floating-rate bank and other borrowings, together with the
interest capitalised to construction in progress. The applied
change is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
If the interest rate of variable rate bank and other borrowings,
together with the interest capitalised to construction in progress
had been 100 basis points (2013: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year, after taking amount of interest capitalised,
would decrease/increase by HK$130,530,000 (2013:
HK$75,667,000).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk

The Group's available-for-sale investments and held-for-trading
investments are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity
price risk. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks of listed equity instrument at the
reporting date. A 10% (2013: 10%) change is used when
reporting equity price risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in equity price.

For the year ended March 31, 2014, if the market bid prices of
the listed investments had been 10% (2013: 10%) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year would increase/decrease by HK$736,000 (2013:
HK$928,000) and the Group’s investment revaluation reserve
will increase/decrease by HK$1,239,000 (2013: HK$1,009,000)
respectively. This is mainly attributable to the changes in fair
values of the listed held-for-trading investments and available-
for-sale investments respectively.

Credit risk

As at March 31, 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties or debtors
provided by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt at each half-reporting end date and
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial
instruments is limited because the counterparties are reputable
banks in the PRC and banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period, other than concentration of
credit risk on amounts due from a single associate of
HK$247,743,000 (2013: HK$267,250,000). The associate
operates in the business of sales of piped natural gas and gas
pipeline construction in the PRC and no default payment history
was noted. In order to minimise the credit risk on amount due
from an associate, the directors of the Company closely
monitors the subsequent settlement and does not grant long
credit period to the counterparty. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significant
reduced. The Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade receivables, with exposure
spread over a number of sub-contractors, commercial and
household customers.

The policy of allowances for doubtful debts of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s estimate. In determining
whether impairment is required, the Group takes into
consideration of aging status and likelihood of collection.
Specific allowance is only made for receivables that are unlikely
to be collected and is recognised on the difference between the
estimated future cash flows expected to receive discounted
using the original effective interest rate and the carrying value.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HE=-ZT—NFE=F=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €@ T H @)
Liquidity risk BB % R

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition to
issuance of new shares, the Group also relies on bank and other
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank and other borrowings. As at
March 31, 2014, the Group had available unutilised long-term
bank loans facilities of HK$45,658,724,000 (2013:
HK$34,519,782,000). Details of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings at March 31, 2014 are set out in note 34.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal gross cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.

E(‘EEE/;luibﬁ%FLAH%'$‘§@H%EE
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TEREMEEZER R —NF
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& BB R 17 B 3 @ & A 45,658,724,000
BIL( =& — = F :34,519,782,000 5
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. TR ITHu@m
Financial risk management objectives and BEEkRERE B ZERBGR(E)
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) i 45 JE fiz (&)
LIqUIdlty tables ///b j@ﬁ_\%i‘%
Weighted Carrying
average amount at
contractual  Payable Between  Between Total the end of
interest on Less than 1to3 3months  Between Over undiscounted  reporting
rate  demand 1month  months  to1year 1to5years 5years  cash flows period
mEFH ZEEER SR @R =f8A KER RAEHK
EEIbES & -fR Z=fiA E-F -FEEF IEHE RENLE BREE
%  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr Thérn Tin THL TEL TAL FiHL FHL
At March 31, 2014 R-Z-ME=F=+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 £ m& &
Trade and bill payables EHRNEARERZE 792,019 309,206 968,217 LNEE] 2535475  2,535475
Other payables and accrued charges ﬁ TR ERE R ETEH 1,050,276 244,698 109,138 - 1,404,112 1,404,112
Amounts due to non-controlling AR EINGE 20T 3
interests of subsidiaries 2B 71,697 71,697
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE
— fixed rate -8 - — 1,703,569 2,320,442 528,722 4,552,733 4,116,724
— floating rate — 28 267,332 1,722,605 2,167,503 11,345,194 1,365,167 16,867,801 15,836,138
Amount due to anon-controling ~ [ER—RIKBAF
interest of a subsidiary FERER U 2,675 2,675

At March 31, 2013 (restated)

R-B-=£=f=1-A
(E5)

2,109,627

2,276,509

4,948,427

14,131,669

1,893,889 25,434,493

23,966,821

Trade and bill payables BHRAEFRERNRE — — 49,142 978307 420913 - — 1891362 1,891,362
Other payables and accrued charges £ ftt fE (1 BR 18 |2 fE =t B — — 511,105 119,079 53,111 — = 683,295 683,295
Amounts due to non-controlling Lol PNGE 228§

interests of subsidiaries a4 — 84,059 — — — — - 84,059 84,059
Amounts due to associates ERBLANERE - 2,907 - - - — — 2,907 2,907
Bank and other borrowings ﬁEﬁ REMEE

— fived rate —T8 6.17 = = — 4945164 341,452 895,105 6,181,721 5,612,089

— floating rate —%8 8.15 = 1214 33257 4295506 3509365 3,243,756 11,083,098 9,188,934
Amount due to a non-controlling Ef—RHKEAR

interest of a subsidiary JEVERRAE S 2 7B 2 4,453 — — — - - 4,453 4,366
Amount due to a joint venture EN-HA%RARHE — 1,356 — — — — — 1,356 1,356

92,775 1,004461 1,130,643 971469 30850817 4138861 19,932,251 17,468,368

The amounts included above for variable rate bank borrowings fisl )% B N 2R &) B Bh B RIS B AR AT

are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

EEMGET AR QA ERF BRTT
fEEF RN ERAGHE -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. €T Hm@m)
Fair value measurements of financial EtRMEELAFEFE
instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines AR EBEAEB NN EE S A
fair values of various financial assets. CHMEEATFEZER -
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that () KEEFREZEEERZINF
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BifBz2@mMEENFE
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair REFEEAFEF ABEZZSH
value at the end of each reporting period. The following BEIINSHRERARIZAFES
table gives information about how the fair values of these 2 TREREFUZEZCREE
financial assets are determined. ANEENAEEZER
Fair value
AFE Fair value
Financial assets 2014 2013 hierarchy
SREE —E-—MmEF —E—=fF RTEEER
Held-for-trading investments Listed equity securities in Listed equity securities in Level 1
Hong Kong — HK$8,813,000 Hong Kong — HK$11,110,000
FIEEERE BERETRAES BB EHIRAE 5 E—R
— 8,813,000 % JT — 11,110,000/ 7T
Available-for-sale investments B EE T BT [T A=Y (=0T Listed equity securities in Level 1
Hong Kong — HK$12,392,000 Hong Kong — HK$10,093,000
AHEERE EBLTREAES BA ETRANE 3 E—H
—12,392,000 % JT — 10,093,000/ 7T
Available-for-sale investments @ [F]sR (5] o1=y =L E Club debentures in Level 2
Hong Kong — HK$1,105,000 Hong Kong — HK$5,999,000
AHEERE EBEMES—1,105000% T AR E- B
—5,999,000% 7T
There were no transfer between instruments in Level 1 F—N_RBRITEERAREEE

and 2 in both years. HmaER o
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
a recurring basis
The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cashflow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate their respective fair
values.

7. REVENUE

Revenue mainly represents the net amounts received and
receivable for sales of piped gas, LPG and coke and gas
appliances and construction contract revenue from gas
connection contracts by the Group for the year and is analysed

€@ I E @)
ERMEEDFEMNE (E)

(if)

RIEHEREL S AT
HEZLBMEERSBALR
AFE
EHesREERSBRABAFE
DREAR EEBRAMEE -
VRBERSRERRBR D

ARREEZRBRBEHRA AR
ZHEEREEREBRBE K
EEEESEEAFERES-

A

WAETEEFALXAEEHEEEBERR
B RAL AR R B R B R B R A
EREMREBRANZIRAEHOEA
Ze WK EIGRIBEFEE - DT

as follows:
2014 2013
—E-QmEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TAT
(restated)
(E5)
Sales of piped gas EEKARIBE 10,884,700 7,351,505
Gas connection income MR R B U A 3,837,397 2,709,445
Sales of LPG AL AR RS 11,276,912 7,886,736
Sales of coke and gas appliances R R R EEHE 8,988 7,986

26,007,997 17,955,672
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker (“CODM"), being the managing directors of the Group,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods or services
rendered which is also consistent with the basis of organisation
of the Group.

The Group has acquired 100% equity interest of Fortune Gas
Investment Holdings Limited (“Fortune Gas”) during the year
ended March 31, 2014. The CODM reviewed the results of
Fortune Gas being consolidated by the Group and Fortune Gas
is a single operating segment.

The CODM reviewed the results of Zhongyu Gas Holdings
Limited (“Zhongyu Gas”), an associate of the Group, being
shared by the Group under equity accounting and Zhongyu Gas
is a single operating segment.

The Group'’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

() Sales of piped gas;

(i)  Gas connection;

(i) Sales of LPG;

(iv)  Sales of coke and gas appliances;
(v)  Fortune Gas; and

(vi)  Zhongyu Gas

The segment information was re-presented upon the application
of HKFRS 11 which results exclusions of the financial
information of joint ventures from the reportable and operating
segments as at March 31, 2014 and the year then ended.
Previously, the joint venture’s income, certain expenses, assets
and liabilities were included in the measure of segment revenue,
segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities
respectively. Certain comparative figures of segment information
have been restated.

Information regarding the above segments is presented below.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. #ZEE®m@m
Segment revenues and results DHBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results REFZEFLEEDIE D 2 WA
by reportable and operating segment. REEDHFOT
For the year ended March 31, 2014 Bz _—_F—-—NMF=FA=+—HI
FE

Sales of
coke
Sales of Gas Salesof andgas Fortune Zhongyu Segment
piped gas connection LPG appliances Gas Gas Total
EE &1t RER
ARR BHR RERE
HE MEER HE HE EHMRE THRRE IHEH
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHT 2 FER  TER  Fax TR FER  TER

Segment revenue from REINABREZ

external customers 2 EBUA 10,168,707 3,657,582 11,268,183 8,988 904,537 — 26,007,997
Segment profit (loss) s IC T 1451236 1,979,238 167,124 (394) 199,897 115531 3,912,632
Change in fair value BREMENFE

of investment properties £ &) 8,957
Interest and other gains A B R H AUz 62,101
Unallocated corporate AAPEARFAX

expenses (PAEWE{)]
Finance costs MBER (G ERYL))
Loss on deemed disposal of 18 /& H &5t 4 A 7

an associate ZE#E (15,033)
Gain on deemed disposal B AHEALB AT

of joint ventures 2 Wz 78,807
Share of results of FE(h IE BB

unlisted associates NG ¥ 173,695
Share of results of BEEERR

joint ventures ZEE 328,245

Profit before taxation R 753 A s A 3,720,596
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. DEER W@
Segment revenues and results (Continued) T EBUR A K EAE (5])
For the year ended March 31, 2013 (restated) P E—=F=H=+—HI
FE(EZ)
Sales of
coke
Sales of Gas Salesof  andgas Zhongyu  Segment
piped gas connection LPG appliances Gas Total
EREl BAE  BRER
RAR AHR REBRE

HE MRER HE HE THHRR DHeHE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET THET TERT TAT

Segment revenue from REINAEFZ

external customers o EA 7,351,505 2,709,445 7,886,736 7,986 — 17,955,672
Segment profit (loss) SEHE A (EBE) 1,177,580 1,565,704 (6,545) (224) 99,571 2,836,086
Change in fair value of BREMELNFEE

investment properties 13,575
Interest and other gains B K E b U 2k 93,242
Unallocated corporate expenses &% & 2 &5 X (269,891)
Finance costs BT 15 & R (691,016)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & BB R Rl 2 e 2,421
Share of results of e i NG

unlisted associates ZEE 233,723
Share of results of joint ventures B A E R Al 2 £ 218,427

Profit before taxation B 75 B Vi A 2,436,567
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external
customers and no inter-segment sales are noted for current and
prior years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Except
for segment profit of Zhongyu Gas and Fortune Gas, segment
profit (loss) for remaining reportable segments represents the
profit earned by or loss from each segment without allocation
of bank interest income and other gains, central administration
cost, change in fair value of investment properties, gain on
disposal of a subsidiary, loss on deemed disposal of an associate,
gain on deemed disposal of joint ventures, share of results of
unlisted associates other than amount attributable to Fortune
Gas's associates, share of results of joint ventures other than
amount attributable to Fortune Gas's joint ventures and finance
costs. The segment profit of Fortune Gas represents the profit
before tax of Fortune Gas. The segment profit of Zhongyu Gas
represents share of results of Zhongyu Gas. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

T EER @
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. ZEEHm@m
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERER

The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment assets and
segment liabilities that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker:

UTRASERTIEZLERRETH
BENOBEEERSBEED N :

At March 31, 2014

Sales of
coke
Sales of Gas Sales of ENGIGEY Fortune  Zhongyu  Segment
piped gas connection LPG appliances Gas Gas Total
EiE v &[4 RER
RAR AR RERB
HE MRER HE HE EHRE THRE IBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT TR TR THER THER TER
Assets EE
Segment assets DEEE 20,293,382 2,129,336 4,883,455 140,779 3,625,417 1,229,006 32,301,375
Investment properties REMZE 255,068
Property, plant and mE - HER
equipment (for corporate) =& f& (A &) 178,508
Prepaid lease payments ERNEERE
(for corporate) (A7) 35,356
Investments in unlisted RIE EmEE DA
associates ZRE 1,444,089
Investments in joint ventures A& E AR ZIKE 3,797,417
Amounts due from B & & A RHRE
joint ventures 204,080
Available-for-sale investments ] fit !\ & & & 162,984
Deferred tax assets ERETIRE E 110,798
Held-for-trading investments  #{EEE & & 8,813
Other receivables H i fE IR
(for corporate) (A7) 447,313
Pledged bank deposits BEMARITIER 250,748
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE S 6,068,080
Consolidated total assets RABERS 45,264,629
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities HPBEEE 1,541,998 2,851,948 655,581 124,012 814,008 — 5,987,547
Other payables H i FE 7 AR 1B
(for corporate) (Ra) 644,386
Taxation TiE 267,765
Bank and other borrowings  $R77 % H fh f& & 19,831,551
Amount due to JE 151 B BB A 7]
a non-controlling FERERTE
interest of a subsidiary 2,675
Deferred taxation ERETIR 373,693

Consolidated total liabilities

27,107,617
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. SEEHM®W
Sales of
coke
Sales of Gas Sales of andgas  Zhongyu
piped gas  connection LPG  appliances Gas Total
BB RAE TR &
ARR ABE REBR
HE MRER HE HE HHRR 1B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT FAT FHET FAT FAT
Assets &E
Segment assets DEEE 15,133,826 1,659,565 4,109,813 233,360 1,095,868 22,232,432
Investment properties BEME 244,967
Property, plant and equipment ME - BER
(for corporate) FE (AR 172,009
Prepaid lease payments (for corporate) &+ # & 318
(~a) 34,914
Investments in unlisted associates RIELETE R A
ZRE 1,485,817
Investments in joint ventures REBRAIZIZE 3,260,581
Amounts due from joint ventures A &R RHRE 91,020
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 36,805
Deferred tax assets BERBEEE 97,236
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 11,110
Other receivables (for corporate) H fh & Uy Z0E
(7)) 328,840
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFRIT TR 540,117
Bank balances and cash RITHERRE S 3,959,191
Consolidated total assets RERERT 32,495,039
Liabilities =L
Segment liabilities PEEE 1,224,655 2,580,521 235,861 96,114 — 4,137,151
Other payables (for corporate) H i 15 BR 1B
(7)) 262,401
Taxation TR E 166,677
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 14,801,023
Amount due to a non-controlling FE {5t B B A &
interest of a subsidiary R R R IE 4,366
Amounts due to joint ventures & &R RFIA 1,356
Deferred taxation EERE 379,280
Consolidated total liabilities ReBEEE

19,752,254
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. "EER @
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERSPBBRELASERSEER
allocating resources between segments: =

All assets are allocated to operating segments, except for
the assets attributable to Fortune Gas, the investments in
associates other than Zhongyu Gas and associates held by
Fortune Gas, investments in joint ventures other than
amount attributable to Fortune Gas, available-for-sale
investments, amounts due from joint ventures other than
amount attributable to Fortune Gas, property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments for corporate use,
deferred tax assets other than amount attributable to
Fortune Gas, held-for-trading investments, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash of the Group other
than amount attributable to Fortune Gas, and corporate
assets of the Group.

All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than the liabilities attributable to Fortune Gas, taxation
other than amount attributable to Fortune Gas, bank and
other borrowings other than amount attributable to
Fortune Gas, amount due to a non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary, amounts due to joint ventures and deferred
taxation of the Group other than amount attributable to
Fortune Gas, and corporate liabilities of the Group.

s KREHMREGLEE RBZ22
A(TEEFRRRR) kP RRR
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B AHEERE ENAER
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FIFEENRE CDEMRITHER
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EEMRREESE) ARAE
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EEENM -

e KEMMREGRE WA
EREEHMRREGLEE)  RT
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. DEER m@m
Other segment information Hi o EE R
Sales of
coke
Sales of Gas  Salesof andgas  Fortune Zhongyu Segment
piped gas  connection LPG appliances Gas Gas total Unallocated Consolidated
BB Rt  BRER
RARR BhR RERE
HE MRER HE HE EHME THRRE 28B4H AR #e

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TRz TExr  TET  TAT  TET AR TAL TAL

Amounts included in the measure of BEEGTESERRN
segment profit or loss or segment assets: A EEEM L :

2014 ZE-QmE
Additions of prepaid lease payment BENHERERE 119,393 4,256 14,604 138,253 138,253
Additions to goodwil HERE 161,081 309,940 944,950 1,415,971 1,415,971
Additions to property, plant and n% BERIERE

equipment 2,969,459 31,924 179,856 3,181,239 3,182,248
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LENE  BERRED

equipment B8 4722 1,447 6,169 6,169
Amortisation of intangible assets ENEEEH 31,071 - 58,262 58,262
Release of prepaid lease payment FERMAENE 22,426 14,567 737 37,730 37,730
Depreciation of property, plant and h% BERIENE

equipment 457,664 — 163223 27,082 — 647,969 5120 653,089
Allowance for trade receivables BHRKEHRE (63413) 127,992 = — 64579 = 64,579
Share of results of associates i NG+ - - 1,211 115531 116,742 173,695 290,437
Share of results of joint ventures BEEERAZEE — - 17,569 — 17,569 328,245 345,814
2013 (restated) “E-ZE(EN)
Additions of prepaid lease payment ENHERERE 60,790 = = = = — 60790 = 60,790
Additions to goodwil BERE 145,426 — — — — — 145426 = 145,426
Additions to property, plant and N BEREZERE

equipment 2,509,851 — — — — — 2,509,851 876 2,510,727
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERXEN

equipment B 339 — 213 = = — 559 - 5,529
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEEBE 31,633 — — — — — 31,633 — 31,633
Release of prepaid lease payment BERAREHE 13,874 — 14280 — — - 28154 — 28,154
Depreciation of property, plant and NE BERRENE

equipment 385,953 — 152,501 — — — 538454 4,738 543,192
Allowance for trade receivables BHRMERRE = 3,775 = = = = 3,775 = 3,775
Share of results of associates i NG+ — — — — — 99,571 99,571 233,723 333,294

Share of results of joint ventures EERERRIER — — — — — = = 218427 218427
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information
The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC.

All of the Group’s revenue contributed by the external
customers in the PRC.

None of the customers contributed over 10% of total revenue
of the Group.

The following is the information about non-current assets other
than financial instruments and deferred tax assets by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

TEER @wm)
AEENEBRTSHRAE -

AEEEHBREREETENIIRE
}50

BEZFPHASEBWRAI0%NL -
NTRREEMEMEIDNIERDE

E(SRMIAREEHELERS)
A

Hong Kong S
PRC kil

2014 2013
=—F-OmF —F—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FET

(restated)

(E31)

155,962 156,168

30,712,786 22,663,565

30,868,748 22,819,733
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

9. OTHER INCOME

Hitb g A

2014 2013
—EF-MF == =
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FER T
(restated)
(E5)
Interest income B WA 56,810 76,966
Subsidies from PRC governmental authorities: H1 [ [ /i #% 78 2~ # Bk
— compensation for loss incurred in coal —HEREBSIBNEEDY
gas operation (note a) B (& (fd7Ea) 15,479 22,552
— subsidy for replacement of pipelines —EMRARMEEEZ
for natural gas supply (note b) Bk (FF 3ED) 67,678 83,795
— tax refund (note ) — R F (F5Ec) 18,987 25,661
Repair and maintenance services fee HBERREREE 22,524 24,277
Other services income H At g 75 M A 58,960 58,262
Income from gas storage containers it A WA 40,602 42,251
Income from leasing of equipment A 2R A 28,362 32,093
Transportation income JER N 32,983 30,512
Others H b 62,970 48,114
Notes: B 5
(a) Pursuant to notice of compensation dated August 28, 2007 issued by the @ BETPHREBABRNHEAR_-"ZZTLF/N\A

relevant government authority in the PRC, ¥#EIE-R AR GR AR
("HENEF "), a subsidiary of the Company, received compensations from
the government authority to subsidise for the increase in cost of sales of
natural gas by reference to monthly purchase volume by #EIER A for both
years.

For the year ended March 31, 2014, #EIE-R KA and SR R AB T A R R
BRAGE (“FOAFRR") received a subsidy of HK$34,936,000 (2013:
HK$41,100,000) and HK$18,548,000 (2013: HK$10,831,000) from #EJIE
MEEF and A TIHEREERB respectively for the cost incurred for
connection contracts relating to pipeline network for customers in new
urban areas and replacement of old pipeline network of the natural gas
users in Fushun city and Zhaugnha city respectively. All the required work
has been completed by #EIEFA and HERAFKA. All the costs incurred
were recognised as cost of sales in profit or loss during the year.

In addition, ¥R ERER AR (“ERFIR"), a subsidiary of the
Company, received subsidies of HK$14,194,000 for the year (2013:
HK$25,114,000) from YEEMEIE/E for its additional costs incurred in
certain gas connection contracts in which the connection fee is fixed by
the relevant government authority in the PRC.

—TNABEHMEEBAE  ARANE
REEIERRIB T ERAE R ([HRIES
KAL) 75 HE A 5% P 8] 4F [ 18 R T 4% R S
B AR RAREERAEZN(2E
IR G ABEE) -

BE-_ZT-—NWNEF=-A=+—ALFE"
WMIBRRRETRRBTREIEREAR
A (TEER AR HR]) 2 B4 4 B B B B &
3R] TH I 2 R B B B 2% ER 4 Bl 34,936,000
Bt ( = Z — = 4 : 41,000,000/ 7T) &
18,548,000 Jt (= Z — = £ : 10,831,000
HIL) + A9 B & BY R IE T K SRl T RT T
BEAFEEMBRAZERANRARARA
FHETERBERELENKA - BIEH MR
REFNFRMRE TR ERELR - FTA K
AERAFEZBHRHERABIHERR -

BN ERAARMERRERF BB T
FERAM A A (PR ]) 1k m m i
BEBHBEE14,1940008 T (ZE—=4:
25,114,0007870) ' AfHERE TEERRT A
A (EPrERE T A+ A 6 BT
BE)FTE% 2 BN A -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

During the year ended March 31, 2013 in order to attract business in
Dangyang city, the government authority provided a subsidiary of
HK$6,750,000 to E[5HIAKRARAR AT, a subsidiary of the Company
for the cost incurred in the certain gas connection contracts. No subsidiary
was received in 2014 since no new connection contract was signed during
current year.

(@] The PRC government authorities have granted a tax incentive to certain
subsidiaries in the PRC by way of tax refund for natural gas business
operated in the PRC.

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
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Ha A om

BeE - ()

(b)

(&)

)

BHE-_ZT-—=f=ZA=+—RALEE" A
EEBMEMBREZ XL BUTHKER
ARFIMBRARESGRRRARBERA A
IR A6,750,0008 7L - LEBE TR
BERANFEELEZKA - BF NI EFET
FERAH  —T —NFHEKEE A

B e

Other gains and losses comprise:
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 40)

Loss on deemed disposal of an associate

(note 39(B))

Gain on deemed disposal of joint ventures
(note 22 and note 39(C))

Change in fair value of investment properties

Change in fair value of held-for-trading

investments

Allowance for trade receivables (note 29)

Exchange gain

HitWam REEERE -

HE M B2 B e e

(Fft 5% 40)

BIEHEBERRNER

(Bt 7E39(B))

BRIEHES B R AU
(B 722 K2 Bt 5E39(C))

BEMENRATFEES

BIEBEERENATFEESD

B 5 FE W R BB s (P 5E29)

BEE 3¢, g

10. Ht W HE K G E

2014
—E-MF
HK$°000
FHET

(15,033)

78,807
8,957

(1.214)
(64,579)
72,354

TEBRFEEERLE -ARKREETET
HPEMEAR BREEFEEERAR
EBZHIA -

2013

HK$'000
FAT
(restated)
(E31))

13,575

217
(3,775)
131,208

143,646



80 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BRI A% B PR A &l

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
e B 7S 3R 3R M R e

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

STATEMENTS (conminuen)

1. BB EH

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
TER FHET
(restated)
(E7%1)
Interest on: IATIEER ZHE
Bank loans and other borrowings BN AE Wi\%ﬂ B2
wholly repayable within five years BITERREMEE 501,112 541,567
Bank loans and other borrowings BERAFANEZHEEZ
not wholly repayable within five years RITEFRREMEE 317,658 276,479
818,770 818,046
Interest capitalised to construction in progress 7t f£ £ T 12 & 78 7 K| B (203,803) (127,030)

614,967 691,016

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation
rate of 7.12% (2013: 5.98%) per annum to expenditure on
qualifying assets.

AEENEBRERAZIEERNANTIE
EH—REEEAES  RARAER
BENR Y 2712% (T — =4F:
5.98%) M FEERNELEFTE -

12. TAXATION 12. Bi1g

2014 2013

—E-ImF —EF—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#& T TBT

(restated)

(E7)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax REERFR 765,080 408,510
Deferred taxation (note 37) IEAEFL A (M 5E37) (23,779) (8,021)

400,489

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no
assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for both years.

HRASERZMEFEYLEREE
EERRBUEN - BILRNERE W B
WAE BN SHAEL BEE -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

12. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 12. BE @)
The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% except for the tax BT HEERI PN B A A
relief explained below. ZIEB25% ©
Certain PRC group entities are entitled to (i) the preferential tax ETHEESBE QAR BEE=ZFOREMR
rate pursuant to the relevant regulations applicable to SRR ERA NN P BT IS
enterprises situated in the western regions of the PRC and (ii) an HERFRX: RiVReHEy FAERNE
exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the two years ERFAMENFPBECERESR - KHE
starting from their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% B=FEHBERYE HE_ZE—NF=
tax deduction in the three years thereafter. The applicable tax A=+—BLFE ZSHEHEEAQ
rate of those PRC group entities is 15% for the year ended AMBEAME BI5%(ZE —=
March 31, 2014 (2013: 7.5% to 15%). 75% % 15%) °
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit FERBEGEEIZEWMARRARE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss AT (EE) HMNZHEWT -
and other comprehensive income as follows:
Hong Kong PRC Total
B 7 st
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
- SUE =T = F bRl =T = el =T — =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TR TAET TERT FHET
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&51) (E51) (&51)
(Loss) profit before taxation K% A (B5148) i A (134,302) (9,154) BERETRLLN 2,445,721 BENPIRLIN 2,436,567
Tax at the domestic income tax rate 3R B35 K5 &1
B 963,725 611,430 941,565 609,919
Tax effect of share of results BB EDREREY
of associates MEZE (72,609) QECEEVZNY  (72,609) [ECERYZ))
Tax effect of share of results BEEEARIEELZ
of joint ventures MEZE (LN (54,607) EGIRETIE  (54,607)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 574 38 1 = /4~ A #1135
for tax purpose RXZBHEZE 14,566 10,870 14,566 11,682
Tax effect of income not taxable RIEMmE BARM
for tax purpose WAZHEZE (WAL (49,155) REERRPE)]  (50,814)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses W EHER 2 (T E
not recognised EEZRETE 49,690 131,797 73,908 134,155
Tax effect of income tax at REBHEFHEMGH
concessionary rate P4 (COELP (166,522) (COELP)]  (166,522)
Taxation B8 741,301 EEIGPEEN 741,301 EEEPTGRLE
Note: The applicable tax rate for Hong Kong and PRC are 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) M : HEERPEZERBMRES R A16.5% (=
and 25% (2013: 25%) respectively. T—=F:165%) k25% (=T —=F:

25%) °
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. FEBH

2014
—E-MF
HK$°000
FTER

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Release of prepaid lease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets included
in cost of sales

Minimum lease payments for operating
leases in respect of:
— rented premises
— equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment
Share of tax of associates

(included in share of results of associates)
Share of tax of joint ventures

(included in share of results of joint ventures)

Staff costs:
Directors’ emoluments (note 14)
Salaries and allowances of other staff
Contributions to retirement benefit
scheme contributions of other staff

Less: Amount capitalised in construction
in progress

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
in respect of:

Sales of piped gas

Sales of LPG

Contract costs recognised as expense
in respect of gas connection
construction contracts

Sales of coke and gas appliances

Rental income from investment properties less % & ¥ % & & 2 £ W A

outgoings of HK$4,417,000
(2013: HK$1,522,000)

R AIE B GEA)
TH & -

2% SR B & 9,000
ME- BENMEBZITE
653,089
FEEBMNEERE 37,730
BREEHERARNZ EF
BEHE 58,262
LEROZHERS
—HEWE 66,175
— s 21,696

87,871

HEME BMELXHZ
518 6,169
FEEEBEARBIE(BREE

JE(RERE N R EBERN) 83,997
BhHEERARIMIEB(BREE
BIEEEBERRIXEEN) 99,412
BITRA:
B (KIaE14) 25,085
Ef(E B 2 3 & ERL 980,071
BEMES RRKEF
sHEIE R 228,862
W BARERIRERZ
&R (65,464)
1,168,554
RATEHEERRARSZ
FERA :
BEBAARABEE 8,745,660
BIEAHBRES 9,979,014
RRRIEBRTREOER
BREXHE LKA
933,359
MIER REEREHEE 5,234

19,663,267

il S2 854,417,000 7T
(Z=T— =4 :1,522,000
B IT)

(restated)
(E%1)

6,800

543,192
28,154

31,633

70,722
9,688

80,410
5,529
151,119

66,142

42,339
713,907

148,629

(48,504)

856,371

5,890,798
7,098,260

824,570
17,012

13,830,640

(12,663)




Bt#& R4 FINANCIAL REPORT 2014 83

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTinuep)
#r e B 7S 3R 3R M EE

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S 14. EER#HITEIEM S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors =

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 19 (2013: 15) B EMNSI9R(ZFE — =415
directors and the chief executive were as follow: ZVEERTHEH M T :

2014

—2-mF

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
Directors’ and other benefits Total
fees benefits scheme emoluments
FeR RIKEF
EEnwe HiEA sr Bl Ak

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TET TERT
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Zhou Si (Chairman) (Note i) BEEE(ER)
(Bt =)

Mr. Liu Ming Hui Z|BE B L £
(Executive Chairman and (BTERERES
Managing Director) (Note ii) s aR) (B i)

Mr. Huang Yong (Note iii) & B 0 (B Rl

Mr. Leung Wing Cheong, Eric RxExRE(BIES
(Deputy Managing Director) )

Mr. Pang Ying Xue (Note iv) FEE B4 (Mt sTiv)

Mr. Zhu Wei Wei REERRE

Mr. Ma Jin Long SeELE

Mr. Chen Xin Guo (Note v) B 2 B 5% A (T sEv)

Ms. Li Ching (Note vi) & G2t (M sEvi)

Non-executive directors FHTES

Mr. Yu Jeong Joon BIREAE R
(Vice Chairman) (Note v) (1) (FiFzEv)

Mr. Kim Yong Joong (Note vii) SAMEE

(Bt 2 vii)
Mr. Rajeev Mathur (Note viii) Rajeev Mathur %t 4
(P =E viii)
Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi (Note ix) R 2 5 A (T aix)
Mr. Premesh Kumar Jain (Note x) Premesh Kumar Jain
5 4 (Pt 3 x)
Mr. Jo Yamagata (Note xi) 1L 8% 7R 4 A (Bt 7 xi)
Mr. Moon Duk Kyu (Note xi) B E A& (M Exi)
Independent non-executive directors BV IEHITESR

Ms. Wong Sin Yue, Cynthia BEMLL

Mr. Zhao Yu Hua HEELE

Dr. Mao Er Wan E-8BT

Mr. Ho Yeung ] ¥ 5 &=

Ms. Chen Yan Yan BRAEF T

2,794 22,220 25,085
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Appointed on August 23, 2013

(i) Appointed as a non-executive director on August 17, 2012, became an
executive director on September 10, 2012 and appointed as Executive
Chairman on April 18, 2013

(iii) Appointed on June 26, 2013

(iv) Resigned on January 10, 2014

(v) Appointed on April 18, 2013

(vi) Appointed on January 10, 2014

(vii) Resigned on April 18, 2013 as alternative to Mr. Moon Duk Kyu and
appointed as alternate to Mr. Yu Jeong Joon on April 18, 2013

(viii)  Appointed on November 26, 2013

(ix) Not re-elected at the Annual General Meeting of the Company on August
20, 2013

(%) Resigned on November 26,2013

(xi) Resigned on April 18, 2013

14. EERITEEHNE @

E5 (&)
GEE

(i) RZE-—=FN\A-+=BEZE

(i) RZE-——FNA+LtAEZRERINTT
EE R-_ZT-—_FAATAKRBNTE
= YR -_E-=ZFHA+/\BEZEH
TER

iy MZF—=F A=+ BEZ{E

vy R-ZT—NmHE—A+BHE

(v) R=ZT—=FMA+N\BEZF

v) R-ZTE-—HFE—ATHEZRT

Vi) RZTE—=FEATN \BHEXEEX4E
ZEITEE R-_T—=-FWA+N\BAE
ZEAMMELEZETES

(i) RZF—=F+—A=+BEZEE

(x) IRE_Z-—=FNA-_THZRRBF
AgLER

® RoE—=F+—A-tAAEE

) R-ZE-—=FEA+N\BEE
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S 14. EERHTEIHEM S @)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2013
—EBE—=F
Contributions
Salaries Special Share-  to retirement
Directors’  and other bonus based benefits Total
fees  benefits  payments  payments scheme emoluments
Hek PARR 17 RIKER
Exne HMER BREL FASK SEET MesE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000
FAEL AT FAEL TET TET TET
(Note vii)
(Bt vii)
Executive directors HITEZ
Mr. Liu Ming Hui (Executive Chairman BIRBEL(RTERR
and Managing Director) (Note i) B () - 2,010 — — 8 2,018
Mr. Leung Wing Cheong, Eric AKERE
(Deputy Managing Director) (BlEZRLE) — 6,949 4,000 349 15 11,313
Mr. Pang Ying Xue BEERE — 5,547 3,000 — 15 8,562
Mr. Zhu Wei Wei rERTE = 4,851 2,000 = 15 6,866
Mr. Ma Jin Long BeExE = 3,485 1,500 = — 4,985
Non-executive directors FHRTES
Mr. Feng Zhuo Zhi BEELE 240 600 — — — 840
Mr. Premesh Kumar Jain Premesh Kumar Jain 7 & 240 = = = — 240
Mr. Mulham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jarf Mulham Basheer Abdullah
(Note i) Al-Jarf 75 2 (=5 90 — — — — 90
Mr. Mark Douglas Gelinas (Note iii) Mark Douglas Gelinas 72 4
(B i) — = = — — _
Mr. Jo Yamagata (Note iv) 1Ly 8 7% 55 4 (B =Eiv) 240 — — — = 240
Mr. Moon Duk Kyu (Note iv) peEL AR 240 — — = = 240
Mr. Kim Yong Joong (Note v) SAMEE (i) - 1,503 — — — 1,503
Independent non-executive directors BUFNTES
Ms. Wong Sin Yue, Cynthia HEMTL 480 3,836 — — — 4316
Mr. Zhao Yu Hua HEELEE 480 — — — — 480
Dr. Mao Er Wan EZEBET 480 — — — — 480
Mr. Ho Yeung (Note vi) % o 4 (BT & vi) 90 — = — — 90
Ms. Chen Yan Yan (Note vii) B 3 3 4z £ (Bt 2 vii) 76 — — — _ 76

2,656 28,781 10,500 349 53 42,339
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 #HZE—

14.

B 7% 3R 3} B 5 )

TMES A=+ —AILEE

DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Appointed as a non-executive director on August 17, 2012, became an
executive director on September 10, 2012 and appointed as Executive
Chairman on April 18, 2013

(i) Resigned on August 16, 2012

(iii) Appointed as alternate to Mr. Mulham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jarf on April
20, 2011 and resigned on August 16, 2012

(iv) Resigned on April 18, 2013

(v) Resigned on April 18, 2013 as alternative to Mr. Mon Duk Kuyu

(vi) Appointed on December 12, 2012
(vii)  Appointed on December 31, 2012

(viii)

The special bonus payments was paid to the relevant directors for the
additional duties and responsibilities that they assumed during the period
starting from December 31, 2010 for Mr. Leung Wing Cheong, Eric and
Mr. Zhu Wei Wei, January 28, 2011 for Mr. Pang Ying Xue and March 1,
2011 for Mr. Ma Jin Long, in each case up to March 31, 2012, which are
stated in the employment contracts of respective directors as approved by
the special general meeting of the shareholders of the Company on
September 10, 2012.

Mr. Liu Ming Hui (“Mr. Liu”) is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above included those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. Apart from
the emoluments payables to Mr. Liu for the years ended March
31, 2013 and 2014 disclosed above, during the year ended
March 31, 2013, Mr. Liu received HK$33,814,000 and
HK$17,834,000 as the bonus payments for the financial years
ended March 31, 2010 and 2011 respectively in accordance
with the terms of his services contract with the Company. The
Remuneration Committee received a note from Mr. Liu in
respect of his declaration to donate, the entire proceeds from
the bonus payment made to him for the financial years ended
March 31, 2010 and 2011 as an obligation on him to establish
a foundation. This foundation aims to incentivise the directors,
senior management and staff of the Company for their
contribution, past and future, to the Company and to reward
supporters to the Company for their legitimate help in the
Company'’s development paths.

14.

BEERFATEENS @)

0] R-B-——FNAT+LtRABEERIHTT
BEE R -—FAATAKRRNTE

E RRERZE—Z=ZFNA+N\BEZES
WITER

(ii) N=ZT—=—FNA+BEE

iy RZFE——FHNA-_+HEBEZEAR

Mulham Basheer Abdullah Al-Jarf %t & 2 & {T
EE RZZE—-FNA+HEE

(iv) AZZE—=FmMA+N\B&EE

v R =FWA+N\BEEXEELE
ETES

vi) RIE-—-—F+-_A+-HEZR#E

(i) RZE-——F+-_A=t+—HEZ{F

ARABEBRBR-T—Z—FAATHBR
ARAREFERAE LHENSEENER
EHRBERESAENEIBRE(A=F
—EF+-_A=+—HEHME: BXkE%X
ERAEREE BT ——F—A=+
NBRESHE: BERBEERE-_T——F
—A—HREHM: EEELE L BERA
HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIE)AKS
AR BIFEAT ©

(viii)

AABEELE(RELED MAARALZ
THEH  LHmEECZHESEER
HETTRAREH®RORS XM

E-BRLAFMBRBERE_T—=FK
—E-EAFE=A=t+—HLFEREN
FrREZHEN RBEE-T—=F

“A=t+—BULEFE B4R ER
KRR ZBRBEEHNBRRAABE_F —

TEN_FT——F=ZA=+—HI1t
BB E o Bl i EX 33,814,000 7T K&
17,834,000 8 T E4AL - HTZ B &
WRRIGEMBAN BREBEEREZ
—E-ZEFR-_EFE——F=ZA=+—

RIEMBFERSEAZEBL  F
F%HEXI%%E’J%W SZETERER
BARARES- EEAEBNMET

EIRANN ﬂi@fi&*XPﬂ’Eﬁ%ﬁEﬁ
I B 8RN DQ A X ERANR AN E R
BEPRENEEERD -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HZ—-ZF—

15.

16.

EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, of the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, all of
them were directors which included the Executive Chairman of
the Company whose emoluments are included in note 14.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the chief executive
or the directors as an inducement to join the Group or as a

compensation for loss of office for both years.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any

emoluments during both years.

DIVIDENDS

ME=A=+—HIFE

15. EEfM <

REBEE-_ZFT-NFR-_FT—=%=A
=S+-BLFE AKERRHFZH
ZEAT 2B /EF(BRARFH
TER) BRAMSSHNME14-

1A 7% {8 F J2 7N 5% [ A 4 1A 1T IR AR AR
HEEXNEMMHESERMAREE

Final dividend paid in respect of year ended
March 31, 2013 of HK$0.0628
(2013: HK$0.0392 in respect of year ended
March 31, 2012) per share

Interim dividend paid in respect of six months
ended September 30, 2013 of HK$0.022
(2013: HK$0.022 in respect of six months
ended September 30, 2012) per share

A final dividend of HK$0.0986 in respect of the year ended
March 31, 2014 (2013: final dividend of HK$0.0628 in respect

of the year ended March 31,

2013) per share has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forth coming and general meeting.

2B S BEREEE -
THRARIERNZESHENZWEF
ERREEMBE -
16. K&
2014 2013
—E-OF e =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FBT
ENEE-_E—=F=A4
—t+—BLEEFEEER
0.0682B L (=T —=4F:
@i_?*iﬁzﬂ
=+ HIEFESRK
0.03927%70) 2 REARR B 300,981 177,167
ENEE-_E—=
NAZ=Z+BIENEREK
0.022FTL(ZZE—=%F:
ﬁi_i_ii
NA=+HBINEB &K
0.022%870) 2 # Hif% B 109,813 100,493
EEERRBEEE_T-—NE=A=
+—HIEFEEFMRK0.0986E L (=T —
=FE:HBE-E—=F=A=+—8

I FEE/R0.0628E T2 REKE) 2
REWE  HEACHRRNEREBRRA
SHETAEE -



88 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BB R IR A R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
e B 7S 3R 3R M R e

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. 8RER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RKARBEEAEBEEGRERARBER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the AR T BB E -

following data:

2014 2013
—ZE—NE —F—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FET

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted st & G MR EAR L #E R 2
earnings per share, being profit for the year ~ &% (Bl &R RQ BIHEA A

attributable to owners of the Company B RN FE R A) 1,764,264
2014 2013
—F-HmEF =F—=
‘000 ‘000
Sl T Bz
Weighted average number of ordinary shares stESREARRF] 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 3 AR AN AE 15 2 4,806,622 4,481,353
Adjustment for effect of dilutive TRREEH S FE
potential ordinary shares: I
Share options i A A 183,560 305,089
Weighted average number of ordinary shares stE S #EE R T 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share I 38 f% N # F 15 24X 4,990,182 4,786,442
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REM*
HK$'000
FHET
At April 1, 2012 (restated) R-_ZE——FmMAF—H(F7) 228,396
Exchange adjustments VE 5, 38 B 2,996
Change in fair value NEBEEY 13,575
At March 31, 2013 (restated) RZZB—=F=ZA=+—H(EH) 244,967
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 B 1,144
Change in fair value NEBEEY 8,957

At March 31, 2014 RZZT-—NF=R=+—H 255,068
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group's investment properties are analysed as follows:

18. BEWXE @)

AREBZEEMESFMOT

2014 2013
—F-MIF —==
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Properties held under medium term leases: RPBBEAOEE 2
— in Hong Kong —fLREB 120,800 119,000
— in the PRC — LR 134,268 125,967

255,068 244,967

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong at March 31, 2014 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out as on the respective dates by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected to the Group. The resulting surplus of
HK$1,800,000 (2013: HK$10,450,000) was included in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to comparable market transactions available in the
relevant markets for similar properties in the similar locations
and conditions, where approximate.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in the PRC
at March 31, 2014 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out at these dates by CB Richard Ellis Limited.
The resulting surplus of HK$7,157,000 (2013: HK$3,125,000)
was credited to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to comparable market transactions available in the
relevant markets for similar properties in the similar locations
and conditions, where approximate.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

AEBMNRBEBZEEMER=_F—
ME=ZA=Z+—HBZRAFENREE
AEBVEBENB LS ERBTEM
ERMFEBITRHEMER A AINZA#E
T2 mER H - Atk E £ 21,800,000
BT E%B(=ZZT — =4 :10,450,000/8
LB AGZEBRS REM2E KA
wER-HEDIZEZHUDERE LU
BAUNEREGH T ZHEMS I ESD
AELBEMBR MG -

W-ZT—mME=F=1+—08 A&H
MNRFPBRZEENEZ A FETRE
EHRIBEER A RNZES B HET
ZHES - Bt E £ 27,157,000
TTE (= ZT — =4 3,125,000/ 7T)
BIAGEABEREME2TBKAR
Ko HEDISZEHBUDERE U E
MNERGETZHEEM ST ESHT
BHBRMBERXZMEE -

AEBE2BREQLEROFTH U BRI
HEHEREABBZMEREE I
RFEEANYNERBEL AKRLIER
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. REW % &)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as March 31, 2014 are as follows:

ARERE-F-ME=A=1—A
R AN E KA WA TESRARE
BT :

Fair value — Level 3
REE—F=H
2014 2013
—E—@mE —_F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T

Commercial property units located: EAMEEMAR
— in Hong Kong — &8
— in the PRC —

120,800 119,000
134,268 125,967

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the
Group works closely with the independent qualified external
valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors
of the Company.

FALBEARBEHE=H -

REERAR AEHEEERBLA
ERINEEEMBETSE RE =R
RFEFERILBEEEAGKET X
RBABE HEEATFEAERE
B FHEHRASKAARARNEER

%o
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
The following table shows the valuation techniques used in the

determination of fair values for investment properties and the
key unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

18. BEWXE @)

TRETWEREMEEE R FERM
BEETERGEERMBEESA
B ABUE -

Fair value as at Range of unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Description March 31,2014 Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs inputs inputs to fair value
R-Z-OF
EFEAr=0
R ZATE fHELE TABRRAAHE TUERBABEEE TABRBAUBRATE
HK$'000
TEL
Commercial units 120,800 Comparison approach  Adjusted transaction price to reflect HK$21,263-HK$24,501 per The higher the adjusted transaction
located in Hong Kong market value of similar or square meter price the higher the fair value
substitute properties
R BB A B HEE BRAER S ERARBEAMS 212638 E24,5018 1,/ KAEXFERES
BROENTE SRR ATEER
Offices located 134,268 Comparison approach  Adjusted transaction price to reflect RMB18,637-RMB35,000 per The higher the adjusted transaction
in the PRC market value of similar or square meter price the higher the fair value
substitute properties
URPEOBRAE HEE BRERSERARBEALS ARBIB6IITEARE BRERSERES
BROERNTE 35,0007/ &F 7K ATERS
255,068

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group's
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the Group’s
investment properties has been measured based on the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amounts entirely
through use.

RABNBAAFERIUFENREY
XELAWRELERE  ARAEEFCR
AASBHRENFEASG  BEwmoAN
SBEIREMETIRE AR EMIEE
BHEHRREVEMESNBRE
DEENERBEENXRBRARFA -
At RAEAKEREMENELT
BIEK EEWHE MAXFEER
AENREMENREEDEBHEE
2HRENBEREWER - AL &
AAKREREMENELEHRAD RIE
BREERE2BUEFREENRBERR

HE -
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. W% -BERZE

Leasehold Machinery  Furniture
land and Construction and and Motor
buildings  Pipelines in progress equipment  fixtures  vehicles  Vessels Total
BELH BER B
REF EE ERIE #fE REERE "E M @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tar TAn TiEr  FEn TEr ThAr TiEzr TEn
cosT K&
At April 1, 2012 (restated) R-Z-—£MA-H(E)]) 1,635713 6887525 2,086,097 1910238 188,147 316,108 204,487 13,228315
Exchange adjustments Rk 31,225 169,888 55778 50,296 4,674 7,733 5783 325377
Additions RE 70023 443569 1704201 135877 61427 95,630 — 2510727
Acquired on acquisitions businesses Wi BE £ FT 5 16,578 78,738 118,149 18,935 1125 14537 — 248,062
Disposal for the year FERLE (1,128)  (18,912) = (4,727) (6,132)  (28,186) —  (59,085)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBARA — — (606) — @75 (1,299 —  (176)
Reclassification BNAK 59981 1,041276  (1,166323) 65,066 — — — -
At March 31, 2013 (restated) R-ZE-=%#=fA=1+-H
(E7) 1812392 8,602,084 279729 2175685 248966 404527 210,270 16,251,220
Bxchange adjustments EREE 18,047 108,661 36,493 28,827 3137 5,035 3,001 203,201
Additions RE 50875 102422 2713845 139,647 42,176 133,283 — 3,182,248
Acquired on acquisitions businesses W EE £ T AT 158,543 485,622 320,144 223532 16,542 78,028 — 1,282,411
Disposal for the year ERHE (8,540)  (22,654) —  (1581) (2,463)  (12,219) — (67457
Reclassification B 47,698 1,412,076  (1515331) 55557 - - - -
At March 31, 2014 RoT-ME=F=+-0 2079015 10688211 4,352,447 2,601,667 308358 608,654 213271 20,851,623
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 17 % R i f&
At April 1, 2012 (restated) R-Z——EMA—H(EF) 209637 891,502 — 45380 72814 152216 15931 1,795,902
Exchange adjustments EHAE 4277 21,881 - 11,481 1,798 3,695 399 43531
Provided for the year FREE 52,021 273576 — 138520 25716 48,029 5330 543,192
Eliminated on disposals L& &M 818  (6,674) - (2,013) @mns)  (15171) —  (739)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary (& i B 7 &) % i & — — - — (76) (141) — 217)
At March 31, 2013 (restated) R-Z-=%#=fA=1+-H
(Z7)) 265,117 1,180,285 — 601,790 97537 188628 21,660 2,355,017
Bxchange adjustments EREE 275 15,008 - 7418 1223 2329 274 29,007
Provided for the year EREE 56,630 324,820 — 161,260 46977 47543 15859 653,089
Eliminated on disposals L& E MR (2,239) (305) — (8,385) (173)  (7459) —  (20111)
At March 31, 2014 R-ZF-ME=ZA=+-H 322,263 1519808 — 762,083 144014 231,041 37,793 3,017,002
CARRYING VALUES REE
At March 31, 2014 RoT-ME=F=+—-H 175,752 9168403 4352447 1839584 164344 377,613 175478 17,834,621
At March 31, 2013 (restated) W-_Z-=%#=F=+-H
(E751) 1547275 7,421,799 279729 1573895 151,429 215899 188,610 13,896,203
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE
19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The carrying value of land and buildings of the Group shown
above is situated on land with the following lease terms:

19. ¥ BERRXE @

AREBUR 32 HE T3R8

In Hong Kong REE
Long lease R HEAIME A

In PRC A B
Long lease REAHK
Medium term lease R ERAE A

FrEEENMEHEEHOT -

2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T&E T F&T
(restated)
(E2%))
26,854 27,509
432,474 379,941
1,297,424 1,139,825

1,547,275

The pipelines of the Group are located in the PRC.

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
terms of the leases or 50 years

Pipelines Over the shorter of 30 years or
the operation period of the
relevant company

Machinery and equipment 5%-10%

Furniture and fixtures 15%-50%
Motor vehicles 25%
Vessels 7% (new vessels acquired from

suppliers) or 34% (acquired
from second hand market)

At March 31, 2014, interest capitalised in construction in
progress amounted to HK$203,803,000 (2013:
HK$127,030,000).

As March 31, 2014, the Group is in the process of obtaining
title deeds from relevant government authorities for its land and
buildings in the PRC amounting to HK$54,897,000 (2013:
HK$47,347,000). In the opinion of the directors, the Group is
not required to incur additional cost in obtaining the title deeds
for its land and buildings in the PRC.

AEBEzBREEMNTE -

timE - -BERREERR(TERE
BIR)NRESEATIERTE

MELHRET BOKRTFHHL

S50F R AEH
EiE 30FHEBAFZ
A EE S
H2S Rk 5%—-10%
RERETEEE 15%-50%
R 25%
aRsls 7% (1 £ FE 75 BE A
ZETHAR) 234%
(=—F W5
BEA)

RZEBE—NME=A=+—H BHx&E
ETREARZFE A203,803,000/8 7T
— T — =4 :127,030,0005% 7T) °

RZE—NUE=ZA=1+—H x5 H
IF 3t 2 (B (& 54,897,000/ T (=& —=
F 1 47,347,000 70) fL A B 2 £ 4B
MEF HBBEITKEEIRR A E
LA -BERE AEBETERHER
PRI REFIARZOMESE
REINRK AN ©



94 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED H EMAE =% AR A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuep)

4R e B 7% 3R R M & @

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. % BERRKE @
(CONTINUED)
At March 31, 2014, the directors of the Company considered R-ZE—NWEFE=A=+—H ' &R
that the leasehold land and buildings with elements in respect AIEEREETURFTRH ZYER
of certain properties located in the PRC carrying value of M 80,055,000/ (=& — =
HK$80,055,000 (2013: HK$123,630,000) cannot be separately 123,630,000 7T) 2 HE T R 18 F
identified. o EEDHAZR o
20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 20. ARHEERE
2014 2013
—E-ImF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
(restated)
(E5)
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: 7~ 5= [& 7 &8 {78 & 318
BIE
Leasehold land in the PRC RPEZHE T
Long lease R HEIME A 485,343 499,568
Medium term lease R HAAE 49 719,261 504,308
1’003'876
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLEIRIEE 25T :
Non-current portion FEBNER &P 5 1,171,179 971,843
Current portion BN EA 26 5> 33,425 32,033

1,204,604 1,003,876

The leasehold land and land use rights are charged to
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of
the leases.

During the year, the Group is in the process of obtaining title
deeds from relevant government authorities for its prepaid lease
payments in the PRC amounting to HK$27,000,000 (2013:
HK$25,428,000). In the opinion of the directors, the Group is
not required to incur additional cost in obtaining the title deeds
for its prepaid lease payments in the PRC.

HMEL R T ERENEREEE
EFMGF AR BREREMEZE KA
W& e

F QR A& B IEHE (B 527,000,000
BT (ZZF— =4 : 25,428,000/ 7T ) iz
RABRzZEBEMEERE 5 EBF
MEAEDNMAERZYN EFRAE K
EEfeRERTHEENEERE L
FT 76 e 3249 1 EE HE REINBC AN o
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. RBE QAR ZRE
2014 2013
—B-mF ==
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TAT
(restated)
(&%)
Cost of investments in associates: BRI E R R 2 KA
Listed in Hong Kong REAEM 881,765 881,765
Unlisted JE LT 848,697 978,771
Share of pre-acquisition dividend 51 Y B BT A B (1,296) (1,296)
Share of post-acquisition profit and 215 U B 12 5 A Ko
other comprehensive income fRE YA (FBR B AR B)
(net of dividends received) 723,903 489,475
Discount on acquisition of associates W B BSt 8 R B 2 3T R 232,970 232,970
2,686,039 2,581,685
Fair value of listed investments, EmEEZAFEE
based on quoted market price (EmESEREFTE) 3,024,461
The Group had interests in the following significant associates: REBRUTE S e EEER
Place of Principal Proportion of nominal value
Form of business registration/  place of Class of of registered/issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation  operations  capital held by the Group Principal activities
37424 TEER AEBAEEMR BT
BERER EBEBER i B it B BRAER i 24 TE 8 B TEER
2013
—z-=%
%
EHEDM)IRARITREREMR AR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 44.00 Sales of natural gas
joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
IR BRE R i AT AARHERRE
BEEER
EESEEEROHARRAR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 38.69 Exploration, collection

joint venture transportation,
purification and
sales of natural gas

R K& EE -
FIERRAR
HE

FHRELE HE FE i
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. RN T 2R E )

Place of Principal Proportion of nominal value
Form of business registration/ place of Class of of registered/issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation  operations  capital held by the Group Principal activities
G318 FTEEHE AEBMEEM ERT
EHEER ERRBEA it B it 86 iR 2 38 5l IR A B L Bl TEXH
2013
—E—=F
%
EEMALEEARATERAE  Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 47.83 Sales of natural gas
joint venture
IS BRE F HE Gl AAREE
BRETEMRREREELH Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 48.00 Sales of nature gas
("TRERBTE") joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
IR BRE R HE AT RAARHEER
MREERR
BEAZIEERILERAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 35.00 Refining process,
company storage of LPG
EREEDA FE i R BALE B RERR
MIEE - B
WL REBIRAARAER AR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 25.00 Sales of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
EREEDA FE i Al AARHE K
MREERR
BN RERAR Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 40.00 Sales of LPG
(BN company
BEREMEADA R A Al HERILAAR
Zhongyu Gas Limited liability Cayman Island ~ PRC Ordinary 44.05 44.05 Investment holding,
company (note a) (note a)  sales of natural gas
(H=xa) (KfzFa)  and gas pipeline
construction
HIRIRR BEREERA REe/HS I gl REZER  RAR
HERREE
&
Panva Gas Holdings Limited Limited liability British Virgin PRC Ordinary — 49.00 Investment holding
(“Panva Gas") company Islands (“BVI") (note b) (noteb)  and sales of LPG
BIRRERAERA A BREEAR RBRLZES HE gl (Bt aEDb) (Bt zEDb) HEEMR R IHE
(MraImal ([ZBRZ BAE A B R
#5l)
BN AT E R IR T A R R Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 44.00 Sales of natural gas
BRAR (HEHE") company (note ©)  and gas pipeline
(BiizEc)  construction
BEREFEADA F B B Al AARHE R
MREBRR
R IRRARERAA Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 25.00 — Sales of natural gas
(“BIARAR R ") company (note d) and gas pipeline
(Bt aEd) construction
BEREFEADA F B R AARHE R

MREBER
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended March 31, 2013, 1,000,000 options were exercised
at exercise price of HK$0.49 per share in accordance with the share option
scheme of Zhongyu Gas. As a result of the exercises of share options, the
Group's effective interest in Zhongyu Gas was reduced from approximately
44.07% to approximately 44.05%.

On March 10, 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into an equity transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer Agreement”) with
independent third parties (“Panva Gas Vendors”) to acquire 100% equity
interest in Panva Gas at a total cash consideration of HK$530,000,000.
Panva Gas is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in retail business of LPG in the PRC.

On June 4, 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
the supplemental agreement with Panva Gas Vendors to amend and
supplement the Equity Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which (i) a
subsidiary of the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase and Panva
Gas Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell 49% of the entire shares of
Panva Gas for a total cash consideration of HK$259,700,000; and (ii)
Panva Gas Vendors have agreed to grant the call option (“Call Option”) to
the Group for acquiring the remaining 51% issued shares of Panva Gas
held by Panva Gas Vendors at a total cash consideration of
HK$270,300,000 within 1 year after the completion of the acquisition of
49% of the entire shares of Panva Gas by the Group (“Option Exercise
Period”). The exercise of Call Option to acquire the remaining 51% issued
shares of Panva Gas is subjected to obtaining of the substantive approvals
for anti-trust application, having been obtained from the relevant
competent PRC authorities. The acquisition of 49% issued shares of Panva
Gas was completed in June 2011.

On May 29, 2012, a subsidiary of the Company entered into the second
supplemental agreement with Panva Gas Vendors, pursuant to which
Panva Gas Vendors agreed to extend the Option Exercise Period to
September 30, 2012.

On July 27, 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to
the Call Option, entered into an agreement (“51% Agreement”) with the
Panva Gas Vendors pursuant to which the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company has conditionally agreed to purchase and the Panva Gas Vendors
have conditionally agreed to sell 51% of the issued shares of Panva Gas
for a total cash consideration of HK$270,300,000. As at March 31, 2013,
the substantive approvals for anti-trust application have not been obtained
from the relevant competent PRC authorities and the 51% Agreement has
not been completed.
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21. RBERA 2 RE ®

HE-ZT—=F=A=+—8 BEPHK
MR 2 BT 2] - 1,000,00017 B8 A% 4 1%
BRR049B T Z ITIEBEITEE - ARTTE
BRE AEERTHRENERIERE
F 4944.07% B& = #944.05%

RZZE——F=ZA+RH AQRFAZ2EMN
BRrAaByvsE=r(BIRIRESD
Rl kSRS ((REEERZE] - A
530,000,000 Jt 2 #23 & X B W B8 | /TR
REHBRE - BIRRAEREERAA -
HBAREZEFBEKERIELABREN
TEXER-

EA:Z: —FXNANA ARA BB

NRIEEIMAE H MM - B
ARk REREEERGZ B OVAAF
MEAREKRKHERERERBIRAE
FEGKHERELEBIRIEDRMZ
49% @ #833 % (X (B /&259,700,0007 7T : &
(DEPas BEFRERMASER FTRE
HAHE (TRIEHRE]) - MR A B KR

BIMREHRMN 249%% — F R K
EIEHDKREEIRTRESFE IR
KRB TS1%ZERETRG LESREA
270,300,000 - FFHEEBEE REH
HEREETERFER - A T{E R AR K
BEIMIBTS1%ZEBTRNG - WHE
BIMRRAIO%EBITRO —FER=FT—
—FERNATAK -

R-ZB——FERA-+TNLB KXAFHKHE
ARIEBHIMRKBEATLE D H T
HCBLEBIRKRESRE K AETES
EE=ZZT—=—FNA=+H-

R=ZFT——FtA=+tH AAREE
MEBARRERBHEEG IMRRE S
i ((51% %] - Bk A A [ 2 &M

NABHRHEREBEMAEINRE A
ERHERELEEEIRACETRNZ
51% @ 4838 & X {8 %270,300,0007% 7T ° A
—E—=Ff=A=+—H ' WEABRBHEH
EHREREEMERERNBERS1%HE
1 AR FERK ©
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Sae

For the year ended March 31, 2014 HZ=—

21.

B 7% 3R 3} B 5 )

F-mE=A=+—AILEFR

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

On August 20, 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a supplemental agreement to the 51% Agreement (“51%
Supplemental Agreement”) with Panva Gas Vendors. Pursuant to 51%
supplemental agreement, remaining 51% of the issued shares of Panva
Gas was acquired by the Group as detailed in note 39(B).

(c) During the year ended March 31, 2013, 218 %[ ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Group and become an associate as a result of the partial disposal of
interest in Z/&FE as detailed in note 40.

(d) During the year ended March 31, 2014, #i#fF# ceased to be a joint
venture of the Group and become an associate as the Group's effective
interest was reduced from 40% to 25% due to the diluation by new
investor. The amount of gain on deemed disposal of joint venture of
HK$27,672,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2014.

At March 31, 2014, included in the cost of investment in
associates is goodwill of HK$483,469,000 (2013:
HK$708,010,000).

The financial year end date for Zhongyu Gas is December 31.
For the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting,
the consolidated financial statements of Zhongyu Gas for the
year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 have been used as
the Group considers that it is impracticable for Zhongyu Gas
with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange to provide a
separate and complete set of financial statements as of March
31. Appropriate adjustments have been made accordingly for
the effects of significant transactions between that date and
March 31, 2014.

21. REBEE QT 2 RE @)
B2+ ()

() (&)

R-ZB—=NA=-1H xAA2E&MH
BARIEB IMAEH AT L51% W% 2
MrEmE (1% mEz@mamEl) RiE
S1% sz fatpd BIRRBRTE
BEITRRD 251% B 2N 5 B 40 B (5% B M &%

39(B)) °

() HE-ZT—=F=A=+—RHALFE" ' H
REEBLRBEFHE 2= (GERME
4) HEFETBAANEBEZHEA A
i B 2 Bt & 1 7]

d #HE-Z-NWE=A=+—HLFE B

RAEEZBRE=ETNRE AZEMH
AP RTIBAERNEEZ
EEARIMAAKE AR - RIFLESE
A A2 WS F 27,672,000 EHE =
T—NE=A=+—HILFENELER

40% F& % 25%

REMPEBARATER

R_FE-—WNFE=A=+—8"

AlZ %x &k 7R B 3 7 22 483,469,000 75

T (=ZZF—=%:708,010,0005 T) °

PHRR IV BEFEAERART A
St B-REREZEE AK
BOERATRRREBEE_T—=FK
— -+ _A=t—BLFEZ
RaMBHmx REARXAKEERRT
BIRR (AR KB P £ ) A Al RE

— =

RER=ZA=+T"BZBITE

BBHmR ARBECHEEHEEH
ME=H=

B URBRZEE_-T—
T-RHEZELENERRS -

iiM/‘\
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. RE

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs for the purpose of preparation of these consolidated
financial statements.

All of the Group's associates are accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements: Z BIFSSRR AALR :
BRHEEFE BEEPE

A

BEEH

Current assets mENE E
Non-current assets EREEE
Current liabilities mEEE
Non-current liabilities IEnRBEaE
Net assets BEFE
Revenue g 2%

F RN L2 U A B

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

2014
—E-MOF
HK$"000
FHET

773,906
2,837,599
(856,848)

(460,661)

2,293,996
1,880,278

338,478

Al ZBE @)
&N T B & E R

AEEREEMERR ZHBER
REINWT - TXHEI 2 BER M
BEARESEVMBHRRMRBREETE
BTSSRI AR B 2 Bt 2 1 A B IS
RETREHE e

REEMABERARTRAEDERN

HK$'000
TET

836,716
2,525,896
(847,950)
(513,510)

2,001,152

1,676,568

435,680
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

21.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. REEERARIZRE @)
Summarised financial information of material EEBRE LTI EERHAL
associates (Continued) (#&)

14 /@ & P B (Continued) BEEFE (&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LB B ERBEEN G AR E
the carrying amount of the investments in associates recognised BRBERNAZREREELER

in the consolidated financial statements:

2014 2013

—E-—OF —E—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Net assets of FAFEE T & BMREFENEESFE 2,293,996 2,001,152
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBREREREZ

interest in FEERVER & 5 R s e A 48% 48%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AREBREREREZ
WS FE R reflected in the Group's EREEE(EREER

consolidated statement of financial position %4 B 5 itk 1 & 1 [ ) 960,553
Zhongyu Gas and its subsidiaries R m R E M B LAl

2014 2013

—Z-NF —_F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFH&E T TBT

Current assets mEEE 881,942 730,863

Non-current assets EREEE 3,816,972 2,817,838

Current liabilities mE A& (1,458,776) (1,417,705)

Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,311,464) (569,534)

Net assets B EFE 1,928,674 1 561,462

Revenue W 28 3,130,885 2,754,084

Profit and total comprehensive income F R H &2 ERARE
for the year 368,823 295,942
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 78 2 &]#E & A JE {5 % K 262,248 226,021
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21. REEE N T 2R E )
B

Summarised financial information of material EEKMENABMEE R R
associates (Continued) (#&)

Zhongyu Gas and its subsidiaries (Continued) R R ENE A A (E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to Fai B EER M BEERES IS RE
the carrying amount of the investments in associates recognised BRBERAZREREELEK

in the consolidated financial statements:

2014 2013
—ZE—MEF —FT—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHBT

Equity attributable to owners of Zhongyu Gas %2 & B IS 3R 3% P 2 T 48

reported in the consolidated financial MRIER NS

statement 1,692,480 1,390,235
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7 £ B 74 R ¥ A & 2 ¥ /5 4%

in Zhongyu Gas 7 75 bk 51 44.05% 44.05%
Goodwill & 483,469 483,469
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AREBRPRRA 2 EE

in Zhongyu Gas reflected in the Group's FHBE(EASBE KRG

consolidated statement of financial position B F& AR S 3R R e Bf) 1,229,006 1,095,868
Aggregate information of associates that are BRIMSYHFEER2EE DT
not individually material V& T E R

2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

The Group's share of profit N & B FE 5% A 24,606

Aggregate carrying amount of K&
the Group's interests in these associates FE 2 B

525,264
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

22. AEERQRRZRE

2014
—BF-NF
HK$'000
TERT
Cost of investments REEBRBZREKAR
in joint ventures — unlisted — 3k 2,307,909
Share of post-acquisition profit and 715 U B 12 % A1 K2
other comprehensive income 2 WA (Br 2= BT i BR
(net of dividends received) %2 1,624,374
Discount on acquisition of joint ventures WEEASE RN alITE 185,406

As at March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group had interests in the

following significant joint ventures:

2013

— = _

HK$'000
TAET

1,812,878

1,262,297
185,406

4,117,689 3,260,581

M_F-MER-_F-=F#=F=+
—H AEBERUATEEEERAF

Principal activity

TEERK

AR
Place of Principal Proportion of nominal value
Form of business registration/ place of Class of of registered/ issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation  operations  capital held by the Group
R TERE AEBMEEM ERT
EHEER EREBEA it B it 86 i 2 38 5l IR AT B L
2013
—E—=
%
WM AR IR TR R A R A A Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0
joint venture
PG BRE i Gl i
BN TR ERERA A Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0
joint venture
PGB i HE 1R
AR R IR R E B AR A8 Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 51.0
("RERME R R joint venture
PGB RE 1 H i
BN TR R ERER AR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0
joint venture
HINEBRE F R i i

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

AARHE K
MREERR

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

AARHE K
MREBERR

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

AARHE K
MREBERR

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction

AARHE K
MREEBRR
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (cONTINUED) 22. REE R B2 1R E @)

Place of Principal Proportion of nominal value
Form of business registration/ place of Class of of registered/ issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation  operations  capital held by the Group Principal activity
7= TERE AEBAEEM BT
BRAH EBRBREA it B it 86 &Nl R 2 TE {2 L 4 TEXH
2013
—2-=F
%
HFPRETEFTEMEER AR Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered 50.0 Nature gas refill
joint venture service and
gas station
administration
IR BRE F Bl HE AT RARMERS R
B2 IR
China Gas — SK Energy Holdings Co. Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong  Ordinary 50.0 Sales of natural gas
Limited (“China Gas — SK Energy”) and gas pipeline
construction
FR—EBRERERERAR FEMAKL BB B il RAARHER
(MR —E BEER]) MREBERR
RREARARRBR AT Equity joint PRC PRC Registered 51.0 Sales of natural gas
venture
BEME F Bl B Al AARHE
Fujian Anran Gas Investment Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49.0 Investment holding
Company Limited (“Fujian Anran”) ~ company
BREZARREBTRDA BEREMEAA R HE AT REEZER
(BERA])
EERBEAARBEAREMAR  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 49.0 Sales of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
BREMEAA i H Al RAAREER
MREBERR
BRI Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 40.0 Sales of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
BEREERA R H AT RAARHEER
MEEERR
RENIETRMRREB)AERAAE  Limited liability PRC PRC Registered — Gas pipeline
company construction
BREMERA F R HE Gl MREERR
AP RE BRERTRRER Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered — Sales of natural gas
BRAF] joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
TR ERE F i Al AARHE K

MREBER
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22. REE R B2 1R E @)

Place of Principal Proportion of nominal value
Form of business registration/ place of Class of of registered/ issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation  operations  capital held by the Group Principal activity
/AR 3L TERE rEEfEEMR BRI
BEEERE EREBER 1t 2 1t 2 &b R 2 TE B L 4 TEEH
2013
—E-=F
%
SEDRE BREEHMIMAZE  Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered — Retailing and
BRAT joint venture wholesaling of gas
accessories and
provision of
maintenance
service
TS EEE Gaic] i B o it ZERBBERR
Be i RIRHERE
PR %5
KEMREMRRZEEGR DA Limited liability PRC PRC Registered — Provision of pipe
company natural gas
BEREMAA B i B Al RUEERAR
EMYINARRERAA Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong  Ordinary — Exploration and
production of coal
bed methane
EalifoAva B B L@ WREREERER
MM ETRICRAERAR] Sino-foreign equity PRC PRC Registered — Sales and distribution
joint venture of LPG
TPINEBERE Galc R Al RIEERREE R
Vol |
At March 31, 2014, included in the cost of investment in joint RZZE—NFEF=A=+—H 882
ventures is goodwill of HK$265,806,000 (2013: Al 2 | & A B 15 7 2 265,806,000
HK$265,806,000). T (ZZ—=4% : 265,806,000/ 7T) °
Note: During the year ended March 31, 2014, ik} ceased to be a joint M BE=_FT—NF=A=+—HLFE H
venture of the Group and become an associate as the Group’s effective RASEZ B E=EFIRE A#E S
interest was reduced from 40% to 25% due to the dilution by new 40% [ ZE25% MM H R T B RAEE 2
investor. The amount of gain on deemed disposal of joint ventures of BERRIMKABENR - RIELHERE
HK$27,672,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or A E 2z W% F 527,672,000 EH E =
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2014. Z—ME=A=+—HIEFENGEER
REMZEBARATER
Summarised financial information of material EESE QN BELRH M
joint ventures
The summarised financial information below represents TXHINZHBERBERBESR G
amounts shown in the joint venture’s consolidated financial MR EERRE 25BN A BB

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. KRITREEE o
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HE=-ZT—NFE=F=+—HILtFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 2. REERAIZKRE @)
Summarised financial information of material EESELTMBERHM
joint ventures (Continued) (&)

All of the Group's joint ventures are accounted for using the AEBFRESERARANERAERZER
equity method in these consolidated financial statements. IR BB RERANALR
P R & 15 0 1% I 1 & 45 o0 4%
2014 2013
—E2-mF —EF—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
TER FA T
Current assets mENEE 2,054,233 1,588,749
Non-current assets EMENE E 2,283,339 2,746,402
Current liabilities mE A E (1,976,146) (2,036,668)
Non-current liabilities EMBAE (214,955) (188,414)
Net assets BEFE 2,110,069
2014 2013
—E-MOUF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
THER FH T
Revenue Y = 2,073,333 2,245,741
Profit and total comprehensive income FNEMNREEEALEE
for the year 100,112
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to LB ER M EEREE B RE
the carrying amount of the investments in joint ventures BRZEERNR & éf # ﬁﬁ HHR
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2014 2013
—2-MmF —F=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTER FHATT
Net assets reported in the consolidated e VB HmERMZ2®
financial statements of MEANE4E AR A MRS R 2 BE A 2,146,471 2,110,069
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AR EE B RE SRR 2
interest in FFF1E&RF IR A R R e A 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBREERA ZEZRH

interest in the joint venture REE 1,094,700 1,076,135
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

22.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of material

joint ventures (Continued)

Fujian Anran and its subsidiaries

o|

2. REERRAIZRE @)
ESEQAAMBERBL

(,E)

BEZARRANB 2 A

2014
—g-m%
HK$'000
Tl

580,937

1,867,922
(807,771)
(520,866)

2014
—E-OF
HK$°000
FTHERT

Current assets mENE E
Non-current assets EREEE
Current liabilities mEEE
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Net assets EEFE
Revenue g

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

FRENRE2FRABE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the investments in joint ventures

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Lt B 7% A R 2

1,220,284

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FHB T

358,366
1,583,679
(615,039)
(455,350)

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FB T

855,128

174,480

RA B IR R

BRAZEERRAZEK éﬁ%@ﬁﬂﬁ%-

2014
—E-ImF
HK$°000
FTHET

Net assets reported in the consolidated
financial statements of Fujian Anran

Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Fujian Anran

REMBHRME
RRZEEFE
AERERRERAZHRE

et Bl

WmiEE

1,120,222

49%

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture

AEERABERRZEHED

fRmEE

548,909

HK$'000
TAET

871,656

49%

427,111
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22,

Aggregate information of joint ventures that
are not individually material

The Group's share of profit 7N = B FE G Vi A

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AREBRZEEERAAZ

interests in these joint ventures Emma st REE

2013
—E-mF —F—=

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

120,762 81,875

2,474,080 1,757,335

Included in the balance of amounts due from joint ventures are
loans of HK$221,882,000 (2013: HK$90,723,000) which are
unsecured, interest bearing at fixed rates ranging from 5.84%
to 6.08% per annum (2013: 6% to 6.08% per annum). The
remaining balance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. As at March 31, 2014, the balance is
expected to be repayable within twelve months and shown
under current assets. All balances are neither past due nor
impaired at the reporting date as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the Group believes that
the amounts are considered recoverable.

AARKAEERARREEHZE
5£221,882,000/% ;w( = & — = F:
90,723,000/ 70 ) Jh K 1F - 2§ F
584 E £6.08E (=T — =4 : §F6
EZE6.08E) 2 EEMEEE - BTy
EIH - R EERERERZ R =
T—NWFE=ZRA=+—8 #£#%#BAE
Rt+=-—@ARNEE Wit AFERSHE
E-AREEEXTESANE B
AEBEHEEBSERENTTFUE -
MRS EH FEEREEASRR
B °
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. AIHERE

2014 2013
—ZT-NF —2—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FB T
(restated)
(E5)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM ZRAES -
at fair value BRRAFEINE 12,392 10,093
Unlisted equity securities, EETRAZES
at cost less impairment %A AN E 5 (E (FOBR R E) 149,487 20,713
Club debenture, at fair value SMES  EAFEYE 1,105 5,999

162,984 36,805

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair value. The
fair values of listed equity securities are based on quoted market
bid price. Change in fair value of the listed equity securities
classified as available-for-sale investments for the year ended
March 31, 2014 with an increase of HK$2,299,000 (2013: an
increase of HK$1,039,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated
in the PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at the
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

Club debentures are stated at fair value. Fair value of the club
debenture has been determined by reference to the bid prices
quoted in the second hand market. No fair value change was
recognised in both years.

REB LT Z2RAES TR QA FET
BRe FTRRABLF 2 AFETLIRER
WM BEANEET RBEE_ZT—
ME=ZA=+—BILtFEE WHEEAH
AREEREZ FTRABESFZAF
B & 812 12,299,000 T (=T — =
£ : #401,039,0008 ) Rér & B &
HEh2EBRARRER °

3 T IR A 2 5 A o B R A S 2
AR EST - TR B &S BARERA
BB E RERAEATFERE
HZBEAK ARAEFRE K
AFETRT FH0FE -

B (8% TR A T B0 - B E A
PATENEEE—FHBHRLE
ABETE - 5 B4 3 e R A
TEBH -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

24. GOODWILL 24. BHE

HK$'000
FHT
(restated)
(E31)

cosT B
At April 1, 2012 R-ZT——FmA—H 745,334
Exchange adjustments PE 53 38 & 17,931
Arising on acquisitions of businesses (note 39) 2= 4 B Y B 2 7 (Ff 5£39) 145,426
At March 31, 2013 R-E—=f=A=+—H 908,691
Exchange adjustments VE 5§82 12,777
Arising on acquisitions of businesses (note 39) 2 4 B Y B8 2 75 (i 5£39) 1,415,971
At March 31, 2014 R-E-—MFE=A=+—~H 2,337,439
The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and in the REBRESERNVETINEE BB E
financial year in which the acquisition takes place, or more EHe w25 /E 80K
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be REAEE A RERER c @ FEEAH -

impaired.
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

24. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 24.

Impairment testing on goodwiill

Management considered each subsidiary, joint venture or
associate represents a separate CGU for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing.

The carrying amounts of goodwill as at March 31, 2014 and
2013 are allocated as follows:

& @)

7 B R R

ERERA RABERAEHNRTE
SHEAT  ABAATRBLA TR
KBRS E LB -

R-T-MER-FT—=4=ZA=+
—EMEENREESENT

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
(restated)
(E31)
Subsidiaries engaged in RERAREK
natural gas business HY B /B 2 B
Clever Decision Enterprise Limited Clever Decision Enterprise Limited 156,067 154,116
BMNPRE TR RER T8 )M HR BRI T M SR 3 TR
BRAR] (“EMFER") AR AR (B IMALALD 49,339 48,722
e EAR B AR A A I RFEARERERAF 17,114 16,900
MEREE S ERARADFA MERRESERARAF 59,124 58,385
METRETRRERAR AR FA & PR T MR SR B R
("EAEH ") ERAB(EAEFRMR]D 16,441 16,235
EEHRBTRRERERAA EG R TR R ER
("ESHR") BERAB(EEHR]) 29,884 29,510
HATI B RBER AR HATIRBRRABERAA
("HFHIABIR) (ML FHT R @BIAR]) 33,475 33,056
PREG X MmEEIR AR AR PR K ML IR B R A A
("EERBER") (£ &EEIR]) 128,902 127,291
China Gas-SK Energy R —E B RER 100,333 —
Fortune Gas = R 944,950 —
Other CGUs HMBeELESBM 149,881 121,880
LR BEEE R R AR A A bR EUEE R B &
("BEUEE ") ERAB(EREE A 35,564 —
Subsidiaries engaged in LPG business =&\ A MR EEH
Mt & A =
Zhongyou Hua Dain Energy Co. Ltd FHESRERERAA
("Zhongyou Hua Dian") (THmESE]) 232,194 229,292
EEERMBERAR (" DEER") EBERMBERA A
TEEER]) 27,616 27,271
BREERRREARAR ("EERR) BREELRKREERAF
(TEZEIR]) 46,615 46,033
Panva Gas BILR 309,940 =

908,691
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HZ—-ZF—

24,

B 7 3R 3% B 5 )

ME=A=+—RIFE

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs
during the period. Management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flows forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by management for the next
five years. The CGUs cashflows beyond the 5-year period until
the expiry of the relevant operation period or exclusive rights
ranging from 15 to 30 years are extrapolated using a steady 3%
(2013: 3%) growth rate for CGUs in the natural gas business
and 5% (2013: 5%) for CGUs in the LPG business. The financial
budgets and growth rates are estimated according to the stage
of each operation with reference to the development curve of
the natural gas industry in the PRC region. The pre-tax rates
used to discount the forecast cash flows for CGUs are from
13% to 15% (2013: 13% to 15%). In the opinion of the
directors, no material impairment loss is identified for both
years. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of CGUs to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of CGUs.

24. B E ®m)

MEEEBEMN A BKEERTIZES
BEETE - TEFREBEETERREA
HRNEBZITME  BRER KBS
R EERRANE BIEEIR /B E A
THeBZHERERBSELABEMNZ
BEE R R 2 B AT b AL FT AT K o 32
REZENBHERET SEEH
FMEEBERAZRBEEFREBEHMH R
RZEBEMETE o

AEEREBEEEEHERRAF 2 &
M BEEREBSREREE B
BARREBERREARIEBAF
HREEHECE R EREEE
HE (N FI5EEZ0FETE)@mmsii
cELEENRERSNSFRART
BREI%(ZF — ZF:3%) &5%
(ZZT—ZF:5%) ETHEE - 815
EEREERTBRESEE 2 EER
BREZ2ERFBE Z RARITELZ
BRMEEMG ARBARSELE
BUZHRAIRSREN ML EREH13%
i1w6( T—=F:13%&E15%) ~

CEERE RuzuMmMEFTFEMES
KT#MHEEED%EE?%ML
BEZEMNEEAEEENESHHT
CEYHRCELBENUZEARERY
H@anaE R EE -
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

25. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 25. Hh\EF EE

Exclusive
rights of
natural gas Technology Customer
operations right Relationship Total
RAR
EBE2BX
REE BT EFBEE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT THT FHT TAT
CosT R
At April 1, 2012 (restated) RZE—Z—FWHA—H
(EH)) 924,974 — 15,915 940,889
Exchange adjustments b 5 A 22,523 — 398 22,921
At March 31, 2013 (restated) R-—ZE—=F=H=+—8H
(&3l)) 947,497 — 16,313 963,810
Exchange adjustments IS 16,151 — 206 16,357
Acquired on acquisition of U 8 3 7% PR 15 (B 52 39)
businesses (note 39) 1,124,708 59,922 — 1,184,630
At March 31, 2014 RZZT—NMFE=HA=+—H 2,088,356 59,922 16,519 2,164,797
AMORTISATION o5
At April 1, 2012 (restated) R-_ZT——FMWA—H
(&%) 79,315 — 8,160 87,475
Exchange adjustments R 1,439 — 186 1,625
Charge for the year N # 30,115 — 1,518 31,633
At March 31, 2013 (restated) R=ZTE—=%=A=+—8
(&3)) 110,869 — 9,864 120,733
Exchange adjustments ME 5 & 1,348 — 125 1,473
Charge for the year FREH 53,197 3,565 1,500 58,262
At March 31, 2014 R-ZE—NE=A=+—H 165,414 3,565 11,489 180,468
CARRYING VALUES REE
At March 31, 2014 R-ZTE—NME=A=+—H 1,922,942 56,357 5,030 1,984,329
At March 31, 2013 (restated) RZE—=F=A=+—H
(&7 836,628 — 6,449 843,077
Note: The exclusive rights of natural gas operation, technology right and M : RAREBZBRCEE BRTEREP

customer relationship are amortised on a straight-line method over the
period of 30 years, 40 years and 10 years respectively.

BESBR=+F O+-FRTFZHE
AT IAS -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

Included in the balance of amounts due from associates are
loans of HK$247,743,000 (2013: HK$272,772,000) which are
unsecured, interest bearing at fixed rates ranging from 5.88%
t0 6.56% per annum (2013: 5.31% to 6.00% per annum). The
remaining balance of HK$117,903,000 (2013: HK$95,024,000)
are of trade nature aged within 180 days based on invoice date.
A credit period of 30 to 180 days is granted to these trade
customers. As at March 31, 2014, the balance of
HK$189,887,000 (2013: HK$187,462,000) is expected to be
repayable after one year and shown under non-current assets.
The remaining balance is expected to be repayable within
twelve months and shown under current assets. All balances are
neither past due nor impaired at the reporting date as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the Group

believes that the amounts are considered recoverable.

26.

FE W FE 13 Bt & A B FRIE

AFARKBERTDRELEH ZE

FX247,743,0008 T ( = & — = F:
272,772,000 JT) Ty EAK I - T F
5882 2656E(—-FE —=4%: §F

5312 £6.00E ) 2 & T F K5t B o
#4 %8117,903,000/8 (=& — = F :
95,024,000 L) B B B M E - BRI
HZEZAHMLTI80H A - NEE [
ZEEHREFPIXRTFII0HEIS0H 25
B -N=_FE—WFE=ZA=+—8"
45 $:189,887,000 8 (=& — =
187,462,000/ 70) FEET AR —F 14 B
B UWFGAERBDEE - REBAETA
EF+-_BAAEBE Wit ARBDE
E-AREEERTES ANE -
AEBEHREEBESERENTTUE -
HREEH AR EERSER
BB °

27. INVENTORIES 27. # &

2014 2013

—E-MOF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
(restated)
(&%)
Construction materials EM 302,216 358,856
Consumables, spare parts and coke materials & #& 5 « 4 14 R R 1 40 61 388,019 233,361
Natural gas RAR 106,126 53,477
LPG RIE A H R 410,921 306,410

952,104
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS 28. EW (B EBEEFE 244 IR

FOR CONTRACT WORK

RBEHRRZERZTRE:

Contracts in progress at end of
the reporting period:

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits 2 815 2 & #9548 1N
less recognised losses B R AR B R E R
Less: Progress billings A

E2HAEDH

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Amounts due from customers EWERF G TIERIE
for contract work

Amounts due to customers
for contract work

ENEEZEHIRREA

At March 31, 2014 and 2013, there was no retention monies
held by customers for contract work performed. At March 31,
2014, advances received from customers for contract work not
yet commenced amounted to HK$801,053,000 (2013:
HK$665,808,000) which were included in trade and other

i\ p——

—mER=Z

IE
2014 2013
—E-—mF ==

HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
(restated)

(E31))

1,674,683 1,298,683
(1,282,129) (1,306,949)
(8,266)

529,365 240,545
(136,811) (248,811)

M>

—=®€=Hf=+
—B UEREAREAEFHEEET
ZEHNTIREmMBEE R —HF=
A=+—B ERHEABREZEHNT
X FUE 2 # 3 A801,053,000/% 7T

payables in note 32.

(Z= — = £ : 665,808,000/ 7T ) * I
B AW E32E 5 FE R EE 2N H b fE
~ERIE -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2. BEZRUWERRREMENR
BR 18
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FABTT
(restated)
(E5)
Trade receivables E 5 W AR X 1,438,018 1,520,690
Less: Accumulated allowances B BRETEAE (318,613) (250,858)
Trade receivables Z 5 R R 1,119,405 1,269,832
Deposits paid for construction ITREEMMEENES
and other materials 681,232 443,033
Deposits paid for purchase of natural gas BERARLRIAHT
and LPG EfiRE 545,747 458,569
Advance payments to sub-contractors B FoBERIE 538,683 616,669
Rental and utilities deposits HE A ABEEKS 138,340 39,024
Other tax recoverable H b 7] 4R [0 7 IH 162,500 113,506
Other receivables and deposits HMEWiRE ke 1,190,433 177,420
Prepaid operating expenses FENKEERX 320,333 199,064
Amounts due from non-controlling interests & Yz Bt B A &) JE1E AR #E 25
of subsidiaries WIE 39,924 30,157
Amounts due from shareholders FEU A & A AR R FRIE
of joint ventures 75
Total trade and other receivables Z 5 R EER
R H A e Uy BR TH 42 B 3,347,349
Other than certain major customers with good repayment RETHNARAELHERTFZEERFER
history which the Group allows a longer credit period or EEAETFEREREERHRDHBAR
settlement by instalment basis, the Group generally allows an Gh REB—RAEBESEZFIRHEF

average credit period of 30 to 180 days to its trade customers. H30E180B 258 -
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coNTINUED) 29. E 2 E W R & H b fE W

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
impairment losses presented based on invoice date at the end
of the reporting period:

BR 18 (@)

RBEWFK REEANZIZE S
RIS BR 3R (3N R B G 18) 2 BR 9 47
mF -

0-180 days 0-180 H
181-365 days 181-365 H
Over 365 days 365 H A E

2014 2013
—F-MF == =

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TE T

(restated)

(&%)

890,496 1,148,196

182,357 84,615

46,552 37,021

1,269,832

The trade receivables with carrying amount of HK$890,496,000
(2013: HK$1,148,196,000) are neither past due nor impaired at
the reporting date for which the Group believes that the
amounts are considered recoverable.

The Group has policies for allowance of bad and doubtful debts
which are based on the evaluation of collectability and age
analysis of accounts and on the management’s judgment
including the credit creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.

During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Group made an
allowance of HK$64,579,000 (2013: HK$3,775,000) in respect
of the trade receivables related to the gas pipeline construction
business and LPG business, which was past due at the reporting
date with long age and slow repayments were received from
respective customers since the due date. The directors of the
Company considered the related receivables may be impaired
and specific allowance is made.

BR H 18.890,496,0007% T 2 & 5 & W B
H(ZE— =4 :1,148,196,0007% 7T )
RipE B A Em HA sk IR E - &
SEMBEZEREDNHE AT KD -

AEEZRXERBEBRRIDREER
RIAW R 7 MERIEZ Rk DT
I REEEBHEBEBREEFPZER
BE N RMGRIE 48 2 HI I -

RBE-_ZT—NME=ZA=+—HIF
ER ASEREAHREEEZRER
BBz E 5 EWER K {E H 64,579,000
BIL(ZZ — =4 :3,775,0008 L) 2
BiE RRAZSRERHEBHE
M HERARBEEBREFLPAAR
HEUARZERRERE - ADRE
EREEMERKEXGRE  WI1E
e -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

2. ESRBRERRARAEMER

BR IR (@)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts: RIERRBE 2 & E

2014 2013
—ZE—E —F—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
(restated)
(&%)
Balance at the beginning of the year F 1) 4 5 250,858 241,057
Exchange differences P& H = %8 3,176 6,026
Charge for the year FEEE 64,579 3,775
Balance at the end of the year F R MR 250,858

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The trade receivables past due but not provided
for impairment were either subsequently settled as at the date
these consolidated financial statements were authorised for
issuance or no historical default of payments by the respective
customers. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for bad and
doubtful debts.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors, with a
carrying amount of HK$228,909,000 (2013: HK$121,636,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the amount are still considered recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these trade receivable is 325 days (2013: 352
days) as at March 31, 2014.

H B 5 AR RS W m By - A&
BeEtRERREERZERERR
EEVASEEREEZEREHHHE
ZEMEL - BHERELBREZE
HEMBEREFFERRAGA VB R
RERENNZE2HEEN DERIL
BATRREFLE TP ARE
FESEEARY TEHE ®REEE
FEBRAER B ARREFRE
BARRERBEEAIINE - FRERBE
EXxE-o

AEB BEZRUERTEEERER
{8228,909,000 8 T Z RF(ZF — =
£ : 121,636,000/ 7T) * ZEHIER R
CHHEAH BEAEEREREEHE
EREEABLLAESBEMNWEATK
[B] i (4 R R B E s o AN & B I M AR
TEBRBFEEMNERE - R_FT—OF
=A=+—H ZSEBESBRKERZ
FHERER 5325H (=& — =4 : 352
H) e
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

2. ESRERWERRREMEW

BR 18 (@)

EEBERIEREZE S EKER

ZEREDTT

2014
—E-mE
HK$’000
FHx

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

180-365 days 180-365 H
Over 365 days 365H A &

182,357
46,552

The non-trade balances of amounts due from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries and shareholders of joint ventures are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

30. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

2013
—Z—=
HK$'000
FHET
(restated)
(&%)

84,615
37,021

228,909 121,636

UK B AR FEEERREE QT
BRRAZIFBEFEHRYHERR

RRABRERER

30. FFEERE

2014
—g-m%
HK$'000
F#

Equity securities at fair value listed in BEAVEAEZRES LT

Hong Kong RSB 5

2013
==5—=

HK$'000
TAET

11,110
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

31. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES 31. B # B T E B 1T 4& 8

AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less and carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.01% to 2.60% per annum (2013: 0.01% to 2.60% per
annum).

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$250,748,000 (2013: HK$540,117,000) have
been pledged to secure short-term bank loans and undrawn
short-term facilities and are therefore classified as current assets.
The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 1.35% to
3.08% (2013: 1.15% to 3.25%) per annum.

The details of the Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash which are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities are
set out below:

kKRB &

BOERIESEEAEEZTEZE
T RERNR=EA KA ANE S
BRITED BREF001EE260E (=
T—=F:FF001EE260E)zH
R EET B o

ERHERTEREARNGETASE
BzRTPMEMEBERFRITZHF
FX ° 250,748,000 L (—Z & — =
540,117,000/ 7t ) 2 17 5K B 1E & 38 A
BEEHETERERIERZEH R
B AhDEARDEE SHEBR
TEREBF13EEZ30E(ZE—
=F:FF115FEE325E) 2 EEF
EEH B o

AEBUEHREEERZIEER
AN SN FHE 2 B IR SR 1T 17 A
RIRTTEBR IR 2FBHINWT ¢

usD HK$
e & JT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
equivalent
HE R
At March 31, 2014 R-ZZE-—WMF=HA=+—H 995,204 208,654
At March 31, 2013 (restated) R-ZF—=F=A=+—R(EFJ 675,884 24,010
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases and ongoing costs. The following is an aged
analysis of trade and other payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

RNEFENRAREMES

AR 1R

BORNEAREREMBMENREREERE
BREERBEXRAZ REBEE -
RBEHR REZEHM2I2ES
e BR R S EL At FE Y BR IR 2 BR ik 0 AT
LN

2014 2013
—E-—OF —F—=

HK$'000 HK$’000

FER TAT

(restated)

(&E31))

0-90 days 0-90 H 1,101,225 751,353

91-180 days 91-180 H 432,312 222,847

Over 180 days 180H A £ 1,001,938 917,162

Trade and bill payables BHSRNERRENEE 2,535,475 1,891,362

Other payables and accrued charges HAb e BRIE R IEFT & A 563,161 166,926

Construction fee payables R TIIEER 507,833 274,904

Other tax payables JE < EL 4t 75 18 26,348 57,905

Accrued staff costs fEEt B TRk A 70,869 61,623

Loan interest payables FET B K F B 115,947 41,187

Deposits received from customers BEREMEP Z2RE 48,253 76,380

Advance payments from customers KEF 2 EWFIE 1,338,459 827,680
Advances received from customers for contract 2 A i & B B 2 & 4 L 12

works that have not yet been started B WER 2 K 801,053 665,808

Amounts due to non-controlling interests of &1~ Fff & A &) 3E 5= i%
subsidiaries TR A 71,697 84,059

6,079,095 4,147,834

Included in the amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries are trade payables amounting to HK$16,204,000
(2013: HK$22,478,000) respectively. All of the balances were
aged within 90 days based on invoice date and the average
credit period is 90 days.

The non-trade balances of amounts due to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

AR WB AR EERERSZ S H
A8 5 EATBR 7016,204,0008 T (= Z
— =4 : 22,478,000/ JT ) ° FT A & %
ZHREBMEEHEZ A L08R
F{EEH AR -

ENMBARFERER I FESE
RRAEER RERARERKEE-
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

33. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 33. FE ff fff /& 2 =) 3k £ Bt 4% 2%

INTEREST OF A SUBSIDIARY g
The amount was unsecured, bearing fixed-rate interest at 2% I RIBAEER  IRENK2ES S -
per annum, repayable on demand and denominated in JPY. MESRFREERABEGE-
34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 3. RITREMEE
2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(E31))
Bank and other borrowings comprise RITREMEERRE
the following: LATR &35 -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 16,903,985 9,986,281
Trust receipt loans EEKRIEER 1,723,676 2,048,929
Mortgage loan RBEE R = 1,152
Other bank borrowings HiiR7EE 1,253,918 2,756,374
Other loans HimER 71,283 8,287
19,952,862 14,801,023
Secured HHEAR 9,286,053 11,351,757
Unsecured 4 T 4 10,666,809 3,449,266
19,952,862 14,801,023
Other bank borrowings represent the loans from discounting of HRTEEREE2EBHE 2R

intercompany receivables with full recourse. AEIEERRBREENER
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (coNTINUED) 34. $R{T R H it & & (@)

2014 2013
= k2 —T—=F
HK$"000 HK$’000
THERT FH T
(restated)
(&%)
The maturity profile of the above loans FEEZREBERMT
is as follows:
Within one year N—F R 5,760,676 8,445,193
More than one year, but not exceeding ZR—FEBTBBWRE
two years 1,740,506 1,080,945
More than two years, but not exceeding ZHRMERTNEBRAF
five years 10,957,972 2,344,908
More than five years ZRAF 1,493,708 2,929,977
19,952,862 14,801,023
Less: Amount due within one year shown B —F AR A
under current liabilities BB E 2 FKIE (5,760,676) (8,445,193)
Amount due after one year —F 1% B8 2 FIAE 14,192,186 6,355,830
Borrowings comprise: BEERE
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 4,116,724 5,612,089
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE
— The London Interbank Offered Rate — B REFEN X
plus 1.75%-2.35% EI1.758235E 9,759,520 2,828,887
— Base rate of People’s Bank of China — B A RIFITEEFR X 6,076,618 6,360,047

19,952,862 14,801,023
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (coNTINUED) 34. $R{T R H it & & (@)

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to REBEEZERMNEN& B (I
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as BRETAFZ) 0T ¢
follows:

2014 2013
—EB-WF —F—=

Effective interest rate per annum: B R EF X

Fixed-rate borrowings EBEE 2.00%-8.9% 2.00%-7.54%
200 EZ89F XEIEVRYIE
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE 3.84%-8.46% 3.84%-8.46%
3.84E£8.46E REEINEENNIIE
The details of the Group’s borrowings which are denominated AEERSHEBEEER 2EE
in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective BN Z SN E ST E 2 B B F 1B H T

group entities are set out below: wmR
usb JPY EURO
Epn A Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
equivalent equivalent equivalent
HER HER HE R
At March 31, 2014 M-_T-mE=A=+—H 13,727,926 587,818 37,408

At March 31, 2013 RZZE—=F=R=+—H 3,120,733 486,104 48,181
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A
Convertible
Ordinary shares preference shares Total
ZER AERELER &st
No. of shares No. of shares
‘000 at ‘000 at
HK$0.01 each HK$'000 HK$1.00 each HK$'000 HK$'000
T A% ik 8 = Ak T % B% 85 Ak
E{EO0.01% 7T FHEL  HEE001EIT FHET FHE T
Authorised ETE 9,000,000 90,000 124,902 124,902 214,902
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRBRE
At April 1, 2012 R-_T——4F
mA—H 4,383,055 43,831 — — 43,831
Exercise of share options 77 1 & A% # (Fff 75 45)
(note 45) 186,670 1,866 — — 1,866
At March 31, 2013 R-ZE—=
EHA=EF—F 4,569,725 45,697 — — 45,697
Issue of new ordinary shares % U i% 5 7% 1 2% 17
for the acquisition of 7 E A% ()
a business (note) 184,119 1,842 — — 1,842
Exercise of share option 17 {50 B P& 4
(note 45) (H$3E45) 241,444 2,414 — — 2,414
At March 31, 2014 RZZE—F
—A=+—H 4,995,288 49,953 — — 49,953

ERETHRRETEARERNESR
1 [F] #E 25 o

The new shares issued rank pari passu with the existing shares
in all respects.

EEKRESHRR(ER=Z—=F\A
T 2B RE - B E17184,119,463 %
FREE0.01BTH 2 ARA L BAR -

Note: As part of the consideration for the acquisition of Fortune Gas, completion B & -
of which took place on August 2013, 184,119,463 ordinary shares of the
Company with par value of HK$0.01 each was issued.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

36. RESERVES 36. &
2014 2013
= ik =F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T
Translation reserve RE#E
At the beginning of the reporting period R & B A 711,985 554,513
Exchange difference arising on translation RB@EmMEF 2 ERZH 82,113 157,472
At the end of the reporting period KRR &5 B R 794,098 711,985
Investment revaluation reserve REE M #EE
At the beginning of the reporting period ¥R & B4 3,782
Increase in fair value on available-for-sale A ERE R TEE N
investments 1,039

At the end of the reporting period

%

ESy

Iff

&

vl

:b
S
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION

37. IR 1B

The following is the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting

UTRRABRRFERAMBBRFEZ
EERECHBRE(EE) ARIAH

years. B o
Fair value Impairment on
adjustment on trade receivables
property, plant and amounts
Revaluation on and equipment due from
Accelerated tax investment and prepaid Intangible customers for
depreciation properties lease payments  Tax losses assets  contract work Total
ERE 3] ESEBER
EBEAR RERERF
BNHEENE ZEHIR
MEBEFE RENEER ZLTERE  HEFRE W ERVEE MERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TEL TEL TEL TEL
At April 1, 2012 (restated) N-_TB——F
mA—B(E3) 471 22,521 148,960 (12,247) 217,206 (94,065) 282,846
Exchange adjustments EHAR — 270 3,574 — 5,727 (2,352) 7,219
Charge (credit) to profit or loss FRRNBRF MG
for the year (note 12) () (Fi#E12) — 1,910 @77) (1,129) (38.212) (819) (8,021)
At March 31, 2013 (restated) RZZ—=%
S HES ]
(&51) 47 24,701 147,763 (13,376) 219,721 (97,236) 282,044
Exchange adjustments I 5 3% — 149 1,917 — 2,313 (1,233) 3,146
Charge (credit) to profitorloss & AR B H Mk
for the year (note 12) (%) (B FE12) — 2,086 (4,622) (297) (8,617) (12,329) (23,779)
Acquisition of businesses -3 — — — — 259,169 — 259,169
At March 31, 2014 i3
=A=t+-H 471 26,936 145,058 (13,673) 472,586 (110,798) 520,580
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement R2BINGEHBMRAERMS & TE

of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

EHBEERABE THEE - AT
BB BHREN S 2 ELTHBL K

DT

Deferred tax assets FEER B E E
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIB A E

2014 2013
—E-—mF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
(restated)
(E31)

110,798 97,236
(631,378) (379,280)

(520,580)

(282,044)
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HZ—-ZF—

37.

B 7 3R 3% B 5 )

ME=A=+—RIFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
profit earned by PRC subsidiaries from January 1, 2008 onward.
No deferred taxation has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC entities
amounting to HK$5,168,332,000 (2013: HK$2,458,523,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

All joint ventures and associates established in the PRC are held
directly by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC which are therefore not subject to the
above-mentioned withholding tax.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of HK$3,718,070,000 (2013:
HK$3,370,735,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$82,862,000 (2013: HK$81,062,000) of the tax losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised for the remaining
estimated tax losses of HK$3,635,208,000 (2013:
HK$3,289,673,000) due to the uncertainty of future profits
streams. Included in unrecognised estimated tax losses are
losses of HK$2,594,621,000 (2013: HK$2,395,861,000) that
will expire in 5 years from the year of origination which is
ranged from 2014 to 2018. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

3 4 TH ()

BEFBECEMSHE BN
F—R—BE HPENEBQRMR
Bz mAifmEke&REABKERN
oA BRRITERTEETER
B %IJ5168332000,E7E( z2—=
& : 2,458,523,000/8 T) 2 E Ry = R {E
HIREER BEE  RESANSEE 4
Pl ER =R 2ER BERER
RATRET 2 A B R E -

MERERREBERRYARNEE
ERERIZETEZEMBAREE
A A BAZMA LABENK -

RmERR N&EBEAANKEEK
ReEfzbBRSAHEBEEBER B
3,718,070,000%% ot ( = & — = F:
3,370,735,0007% 7t ) ° E 582,862,000
BT (ZZE— =4 : 81,062,000/ 7T) Z
MEEBEERRAEEREBEEE - AR K
Hom A R i TREE - Herfhar I
fE5183,635,208,0008 L (— T — =4 :
3,289,673,000 7% 7t ) I 4% fE 73R FE B 18
BE - ABERGEAHEBEREES
BEFE(ZE—NFE_T—N\F
HAFE) R 51 B 4F A JE i 2 2,594,621,000
B o( =& — = % :2,395,861,000 %
JO)E 1R - b ESIBR mR AR AR o
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HZ - — U&= =+—HILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with the non-
controlling interests of a subsidiary in the PRC in respect
of the acquisition of 5% equity interest in that subsidiary
for a consideration of RMB6,318,000 (approximately
HK$7,897,000). The difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying amount of the additional interest
acquired by the Group of HK$7,882,000 was debited to
equity as capital reserve during the year ended March 31,
2014.

On September 19, 2012, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with the non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary in the PRC in respect of the
acquisition of the remaining 41% equity interest in the
subsidiary of the Group, SBEZ TR R ZEMRTILER
[RE{EZAR] for a consideration of RMB112,983,000
(approximately HK$137,784,000). The difference between
the consideration paid and the carrying amount of the
additional interest acquired by the Group of
HK$100,956,000 was debited to equity as capital reserve
during the year ended March 31, 2013.

38. U B Fff /B 2 B #E S &

REEZE-_T—NOWF=ZA=+—
BIEFE  AEBEEFPEE KK
BARZIEERBRRILES
HE NARBEBEERREARK
6,318,000 7t ( 497,897,000 7T )
Uy B& 2% M B A B15% 2 P& AN #E
me BEXMREERNEETKE
RESME == AR TH (B 2 = ¥7,882,000
BITREBE-_Z—WE=A=1
—BIEFENEAFEGHERERT
HUR ©

RZZE——FNLA+NLA T&
EEAPE—-KMB QR ZIEE
IRIRERET L E B HhiE - WA AR
AR E AR 112,983,000 7T (49
137,784,000 7% 7T ) W B 7s £ [ [t
BARSBEZ TR MEELRR
REERETRARAG F41% 2
AR  EXNREERNER
g iE =R EE 2 =5
100,956,000 TR EEZE =T —=
FZA=Z1+—HILFEAEARGE
B P HR -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES 39. BB XK

On December 16, 2012, the Group has entered into
an acquisition agreement with Fortune Oil PRC
Holdings Limited (“Fortune Oil”) and Wilmar
International Limited (“Wilmar”) (“Fortune
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group has
acquired entire issued interest of Fortune Gas at a
consideration of US$400,000,000 (approximately
HK$3,113,200,000). The acquisition was completed
in August, on that date the control in Fortune Gas
was passed to the Group. Subsidiaries of Fortune
Gas are principally engaged in the business of
natural gas, wholesale and retail distributions,
natural gas refueling, upstream coal bed methane
(“CBM") business, LNG supply to public transit
vehicles and developing LNG dual fuel vessel
refueling business along the Yangtze River.

RZEBE—Z—ZF+=A+
ANB REBEE AR
HEABR R A S F
B EEEHBAERA A
([ 25 B BX J) 7T 32 Y2 B8 175
#Z(EmiHEl &t
AEBERBEEHARI
ZEEEBETRA K
& /A 400,000,000% 7T ( #
3,113,200,0007% 7T ) » Y BE
ERNAZK REHR &
R SR 2 P I R R = R
EE-FHRAZH B R A
FERERATBELRE
ENHER XAINI
EREER(CBM]) ¥ -
mAERESHMEERE
RKARA KRR KLRIEH
TR R R A E R E A A
IMEETS -

Consideration transferred EEZEAE
HK$'000
FE T
Cash R4 1,553,200
Issue of new ordinary shares of BOARRBFHE B
the Company (note) (Fft 5%) 1,560,000
3,113,200

Note: Pursuant to the Fortune Agreement, Fortune Oil and
Wilmar requested the Company to allot and issue
184,119,463 ordinary share of the Company ("“Consideration
Shares”) as part of the consideration for the acquisition in
November 2013. The fair value of the Consideration Shares
is determined by reference to the quoted market price of
the ordinary shares of the company amounted to
HK$1,560,000,000.

MizE: REBEESHHE SRR
55 B R B Sk R R B AL B &
% 17184,119,463 0% AN A 7]
TBER(IRERNDD  EA
T =F+—AKEZM
PRE- RERHZAFEE
T2 ERNDNA L ERAT
R ™ {&1,560,000,0007% 7T &
BT o
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition AEBRWEHRERZE
recognised by the Group: ERAE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and provisional
fair value before
combination

WUE A RS BT
ZEREAEREEAFE
HK$’'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NERE 828,954
Prepaid lease payments A HEERIE 35,223
Investments in associates REE R R ZEE 11,873
Investments in joint ventures REERRIZIEE 309,166
Other intangible assets HiEmEEE 1,183,045
Inventories =g 56,462
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE AR 3R I E A fE WK AR 18 196,675
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW & & A R FIA 233,902
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRE S 300,653
Trade and other payables B SRR R E A B ARIE (332,896)
Taxation Bi1E (25,166)
Bank borrowings RITEE (105,016)
Deferred taxation i E B 18 (254,833)
Non-controlling interests of B RMEB AR
the subsidiaries of Fortune Gas 2 FEVE R R (269,792)
2,168,250
Goodwill S 944,950
3,113,200

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt
of professional valuation in relation to property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payment and
other intangible asset.

LW E 2 E &R E
DEREE DAFREE
BMYE BB N&E AN
MEFREAREMETLEE
ZHEERGEREE -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WX @)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$196,675 at the date of acquisition.
The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
is nil.

RIWER: FTkEZE S
FE W BR SR & H h FE Y BR 1B
ZAFERGEHNBEREA
196,6757% JT o R U BE A ¥
FEHELZNE A YRS R
ZEREMAT -

Goodwill arising on acquisition B Y FE 1T E 2
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred BEZENE 3,113,200
Less: Provisional fair value of B TR EE AT B RE B E
identifiable net assets acquired ZEERNFEE (2,168,250)
Goodwill arising on acquisition AUWEmEE 2 /2 944,950

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Fortune
Gas is attributed to anticipated profitability of its
natural gas business, complementary business
portfolio facilities synergy integration with the
Group and the prospects of CBM business and LNG
vessel and vehicle refueling business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

AKEEHMAaMEEZ
BEDEREEXRARGE
e TBEAR L - ET54E
B IEE A EEE
& T X 1 [ 2 K& PA K CBM
X% RRIC KA R E M
REBRAI= o

EHYERZRKENE
EZEBEAMBREA -
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

39. WEB ¥ @)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition B U B i E £ 2 B £ 7
H

HK$'000

FHET

Bank balances and cash acquired Friig  RITHEB R R 300,653

Cash consideration paid X zBERE (1,553,200)

(1,252,547)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the Group's profit for the year ended
March 31, 2014 is HK$135,420,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by Fortune Gas.
Revenue included in the Group’s revenue for the
year ended March 31, 2014 amounted to
HK$904,537,000.

On July 30, 2012, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into an acquisition agreement with the
independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group acquired 84% equity interest of EFEEF
EEERRIREERAA ("EAEFE") at a
consideration of RMB30,450,000 (approximately to
HK$38,063,000). The acquisition was completed in
April 2013, on that date the control in EFAEYF
was passed to the Group. BEFAHETF is principally
engaged in natural gas business.

WEH A EFEE 2 ZE
AEFBBEZE-_ZT—NE=
B=Z+—BLEFEZ&EF
BREFEREHHRIZE
N F 5 2 135,420,000 7%
Lot AREEHE T —
mME=ZA=+—HBILtFE
I 25 /9 UR z& & 904,537,000
BT ©

R—ZE—=—&F+ A=+
B ARRMWEB QR HEB
VARt B VAR
Bt ANEBE U ERE
THEEEERIIRERR
ARIEAEFT]) 284%
KrEzm REAEARK
30,450,000 7T (938,063,000
BIL) c WBER=-_ZT—=
FOATEK - RER B
HEEzEGEEEEAE
e -BEAEFEERERA
RER -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WHE X7 )

A RZZ—HEEBWEK

(A) Acquisition of a business through purchase

of subsidiaries in 2014 (Continued) BArWEBER(E)
(ii) (Continued) (i) (%)
Consideration transferred EEZEAE
HK$'000
FB T
Cash B 38,063

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition NREBRKEAIERZE
recognised by the Group: ERAEE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
before combination

WU 5 RE BEA

ZEEEREELFE

HK$’000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 7,094
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W AR 3R % H A jE U AR 1E 3,848
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE ® 14,905
Trade and other payables B 5 BRI H Ath B BRI (1,707)
24,146

Non-controlling interests FE 72 AR HE 2 (3,863)
Goodwiill &S 17,780

38,063
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$3,848,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected is nil.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in E a4 recognised
at the date of the acquisition was measured by
reference to the respective proportionate shares of
recognised amounts of net assets of relevant
subsidiary and amounted to HK$3,863,000.

RWER IkKEZES
FE W BR SR & H h FE Y2 BR 1B
ZRAFEREHNBESL
3,848,000/ 7T o 7 W B A
HEHEEZRDE OE £
M REMETRE -

FEE IR 2
RWEBEERZEAETF
IR EZEDR2ZERBNR
BAREEFEMNSHA
EERcBLATES
3,863,0007% T °

Goodwill arising on acquisition Y i T BE A 2 B
HK$’000
FH T
Consideration transferred EEERE 38,063
Plus: Non-controlling interests N JEFE R R
(16% share of net assets in (EREFEFEEE
EFaET) Z16%) 3,863
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B PTURE A R BIE A B
assets acquired Z YA (24,140)
Goodwill arising on acquisition EAWEmMELE 2mE 17,780
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of & Fa#EF WEEREYMELZ
is attributed to anticipated profitability of its natural AEDERERAREL
gas business. Z TEEAFEE T -

EHYERZRKENE
EZEBEAMEBEA -

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

39. B @)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition B U B i EE £ 2 B £ 7w
JHEE

HK$'000

FHET

Bank balances and cash acquired Fri g v SRITHE B R R € 14,905

Cash consideration paid FrxftzEerRE (38,063)

(23,158)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the Group's profit for the year ended
March 31, 2014 is HK$2,294,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by EFaEEF. Revenue
included in the Group'’s revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2014 amounted to HK$6,829,000.

On June 3, 2013, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into an acquisition agreement with the
independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group acquired 54.57% equity interest of BIJEE /7
at a consideration of RMB87,708,000 (approximately
to HK$111,023,000). The acquisition was completed
on July 26, 2013, on that date the control in BIEE
71 was passed to the Group. BI/EE 7 is principally
engaged in natural gas business.

WA EFREE FE

AEEEHEZ —_T—NE=
A=+—HLEFEZEH
PREEBREAEF ZE
4N ¥ 1§ 22,294,000 TT °
AN EBRHEE_ZT— @O
FZA=1+—HIEFEK
25 HY Uk 25 /456,829,00058 7T ©

%

AZE—=F,XA=H"
AKRARMKE R EB L
F=FRI KRB B
e AEBKEBERBEE S
Z5457% M A RE
B AR #87,708,000 7T ( 49
111,023,000 L) - WEE
R-_E—=Ft A8 =+~
HEK REH BEEEN
ZEFEEREAEEH-
BEHENEZRERAR
EY X

Consideration transferred E#EEAE
HK$'000
TBT
Cash " & 111,023
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB EK @
Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition AEBRWEHRERZE
recognised by the Group: ERAE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and provisional
fair value before
combination

WU EE R A B A

ZEREEREEATE

HK$'000

FAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - WE RERE 103,750
Investments in associates REERNF 2I&E 1,392
Inventories FE 7,384
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE YRR 3R K H At FE W AR IR 72,022
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHB RIS 28,855

Trade and other payables B 5 R BRI H At A BR IR (52,344)

Bank borrowings RITEE (22,779)
138,280

Non-controlling interests I 12 AR HE 2 (62,821)
Goodwill S 35,564
111,023

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has Pt EE S
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt BREDERET  NAFIN
of professional valuation in relation to property, BEBYYE WMENZEY

plant and equipment. EXREHERERE -

The fair value as well as the gross contractual RUER: TNE 22 5
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired FEWER R HMEIKER
amounted to HK$72,022,000 at the date of ZAFTERBLHNBEREL
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of 72,022,000 7T o 7N W EE A
the contractual cash flows not expected to be WIEHEEZWE S YHE S

collected is nil. M REBTAE -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

Non-controlling interests

39. B @)

IR o
RUEBEEBRRZBEBE N

The non-controlling interests in BJE & 71 recognised
at the date of the acquisition was measured by
reference to the respective proportionate shares of
recognised amounts of net assets of relevant
subsidiary and amounted to HK$62,821,000.

FEREZE2ZHEN
BRARIEEFENSIEMA
ERABACHBLOIAESR
62,821,000/ 7T °

Goodwill arising on acquisition B B T BE A 2 B
HK$'000
FE T
Consideration transferred BEZENE 111,023
Plus: Non-controlling interests N JERE R R e
(45.43% share of net assets in (BEEhFEEELZ
BlEE ) 45.43%) 62,821
Less: Provisional fair value of B TR BRI FEEZ
identifiable net assets acquired ;ENFEE (138,280)
Goodwill arising on acquisition AUWEmES 22 35,564

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of BEE 71
is attributed to anticipated profitability of its natural
gas business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is

RpBEBE I IMELEZ
BAEDERERARARER
ZTREAR NIBE 7T ©

FHYERZBREME

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 2 BRI HURTIE °
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition B fg T EE A 2 B i M
H R
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Friig v RITHEB R R € 28,855
Cash consideration paid FrxftzEeRE (111,023)

(82,168)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the Group's profit for the year ended
March 31, 2014 is HK$6,528,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by BlJEE /7. Revenue
included in the Group's revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2014 amounted to HK$153,798,000.

On November 9, 2011, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into an acquisition agreement with the
independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group acquired 100% equity interest of #E/JH %422
FIRRARBRAR] (“HEINEEZL ") and ZJRGZH MR
RARBR AT (“ZRFWR") at a consideration of
RMB8,045,000 (approximately to HK$10,183,000).
The acquisition was completed in April 2013, on
that date the control in #E/MN%%Z and ZERAHA
were passed to the Group. #EM 2422 and ZF A
are principally engaged in natural gas business.

WhEH AR E B EE

AEBHE_Z—NFE=
A=+—HLEFEEZ&F
BESBREBE 2@
4N ¥ 1% 26,528,000 JT °
AAREEREEE T — T
FZA=Z+—HBHLEFEK
#= /M W z= A153,798,000

B AARKE AR B
NE=ZFRIMWE R
Bt A& EKEEMNT
BLZPRMRARIBRA A
(MM %)) R ERE T
MRARABR QB[ ZER
R 22 E AR R
8 A A R % 8,045,000 7T (#)
10,183,000/ ;v ) - W E B
RZE—Z=ZFMNAZK ' »
BB M RERFR R
GRS EAEE - B
M REBERB R EZHR

Consideration transferred EEZEAE
HK$'000
FBT
Cash 5 10,183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB EK @
Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition AEBRWBEHERZE
recognised by the Group: ExAE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
before combination

WS RE BtAT

ZERHEEREELAFE

HK$'000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment Y BB REE 21,984
Inventories FE 54
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W AR TR % B FE U AR 1R 77
Bank balances and cash MITHEBRRE ® 1
Trade and other payables B 5 AR N E Ath FE S BRIE (15,539)
6,577

Goodwill S 3,606
10,183

The fair value as well as the gross contractual RUKEER  FTBE 2 E 5 1E
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired W BR 3R K B fE W BR 18 2
amounted to HK$77,000 at the date of acquisition. NEBERE HHREE 77,000
The best estimate at acquisition date of the PETT o AU EE B TR HR AU
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected WE&KHWRES R HEM

is nil. AAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WX @)
Goodwill arising on acquisition ] Y FiE i BE A 2 AR
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred BEZEAE 10,183
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W T AT R R B E
assets acquired ZEERNFE (6,577)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEAZHE 3,606
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of #EJ|£4% U B8 RN 22 22 | 2R &
and ZEJREHAM are attributed to anticipated MMEE MBI ERA
profitability of its natural gas business. RAREBL 2B AT 82
jj o
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is T8 HA O AR B 5% 1E WO T &=
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 2 AR DR IE o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition B fg T EE A 2 B i M
JHEE
HK$’000
FH T
Bank balances and cash acquired Friig v RITHEBR EIRE 1
Cash consideration paid FrxftziEeRE (10,183)
(10,182)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WEH A EEREE ZE
Included in the Group’s profit for the year ended AEBHEE-_ZT—NF=
March 31, 2014 is losses of HK$3,134,000 A=+t—HILEFEZ2EIE
attributable to the additional business generated by BEBEEREMNEZZ K
N E% and ZEJRAH KR Revenue included in the BRBPM2BINZEH 2
Group's revenue for the year ended March 31, 2014 3,134,008 T st AR EE
amounted to HK$1,171,000. HE-_ZT-—NE=ZA=+

—HLEFERENKES
1,171,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WHE X7 )

On December 26, 2013, a subsidiary of the R—_ZE—=F+_AF=-+
Company entered into an acquisition agreement Ay = NG NG =R
with the independent third party, pursuant to which NE=ZFE L WE R B
the Group acquired 100% equity interest of T AE I AEBREREDRS
WERERBRTARERERAT ("AANEDP EFRRETAREREBR
#X") at a consideration of RMB13,000,000 UNGI(E NN o D
(approximately to HK$16,456,000). The acquisition 2HERAER  RER/RAR
was completed on March 31, 2014, on that date # 13,000,000 7T ( 47 16,456,000
the control in A AFEMALA was passed to the BIL) c WHEERZZT —IY
Group. AAEMAMR is principally engaged in FZA=Z+—HZ=K RE
natural gas business. B+ B KE MR PR 2 1 Hi A
EEEAREBR - A KEMPR

Consideration transferred EHEZEMAE
HK$'000
FHET
Cash " e 16,456
Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition AEBRKEBARBRZE

recognised by the Group: ERAE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and provisional
fair value before
combination

W B S RE Bt AT
ZERHEERETEXFE
HK$'000

TET

Property, plant and equipment M BE K& 3,474
Trade and other receivables B 5 e W AR K % B b e W AR 1R 9,184

12,658
3,798

o
1

Goodwill

16,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuep)

e B R R MR @

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt
of professional valuation in relation to property,
plant and equipment.

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$9,184,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be

ERRBER S &G
RETLERETE  NAFN
BERYE BENREREZ
BEXMGBERETE -

RWER MkEZES
JE W2 BR 51 & H h FE Y BR 18
ZRARFTEREHNBES
9,184,000/ jr o 1 I 8 H
HBHEEZRDE OHE S

collected is nil. M2 EEBTHEE -
Goodwill arising on acquisition B 5 T E A 2 A
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred EEERE 16,456
Less: Provisional fair value of W T AT R R B E
identifiable net assets acquired ZEERNFE (12,658)
Goodwill arising on acquisition E S mEE 2 e 3,798
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of T AZEH W B 1 K 4 R R T E
AR is attributed to anticipated profitability of its SCEHEDERERAR

natural gas business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

X EHAMES -

EHYERZRKENE
EZEBAMBRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WX @)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition B U B i EE £ 2 B £ 7w
H

HK$'000

FAET

Cash consideration paid FrxftzEeRE (16,456)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the Group's profit for the year ended
March 31, 2014 is loss of HK$17,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by T A3 A KA.
No revenue contributed by FAZEMAMA for the
year ended March 31, 2014.

On October 15, 2013, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into an acquisition agreement with the
independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group acquired 51% equity interest of {RTE AT
EERERBERLA ("REHPM") at a
consideration of RMB19,125,000 (approximately to
HK$24,209,000). The acquisition was completed on
December 31, 2013, on that date the control in
REFPL was passed to the Group. REFKA is
principally engaged in natural gas business.

WEEH A EEFE ZE

A=+T—BILEFEZHEHN
BIEE B R A KEM R R
Z FHNETE 2 B51817,00078
T AREMFRNEEZ
T-—mWFE=/F=+—HI1E
FEIEE REA W as o

W-—Z—-—=%+A/A+5
B A2R2RKEBA R EE L
B=ZFAN KB E &
It REBKBRTEPRT
EFZERAR QAR
FEARR]) 2 51% M ARz
REAARE19,125,0007T
(#4924,209,0007% 7T ) » Y BE
ER-_ZE—=%+=-/R=
+—HBEK - RER  RE
R ZESEERERE
H-REFREIERERA
RER -

Consideration transferred EEZEAE
HK$'000
FBT
Cash He 24,209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB EK @
Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition AEBRWEHRERZE
recognised by the Group: ERAE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and provisional
fair value before
combination

WS RE BHAT

ZEEHEREERATE

HK$'000

FHT

Property, plant and equipment M BE K& 58,059

Trade and other receivables B 5 W AR R H b R U AR IR 339

Bank balances and cash MITHEBRNRE ® 206

Trade and other payables B 5P AR 3 N E At FE S BR 1B (11,136)

47,468

Non-controlling interests FE 12 A (23,259)

24,209

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has Pt BEEE 95 g

been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt BREERETE - HEFI

of professional valuation in relation to property, BEBYE BMENMKEZ
plant and equipment. HEMEBERETE ©

The fair value as well as the gross contractual RIWER: FTkEZE 5

amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired FE W BR 51 & H 8 Y BR 18

amounted to HK$339,000 at the date of acquisition. ZAFTEREBHBEREE

The best estimate at acquisition date of the 339,000/ 7t ° P U B %

contractual cash flows not expected to be collected EHEAKD &SNNSR

is nil. ZEREMFTRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WHE X7 )
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR
The non-controlling interests in {RE A #A recognised RUE B ERZRTE TR
at the date of the acquisition was measured by R ERE2ZEEN
reference to the respective proportionate shares of BAREEFEMNSIHEAE
recognised amounts of net assets of relevant EERecBALIFER
subsidiary and amounted to HK$23,259,000. 23,259,000 It ©
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition B EmELZEL R
JH
HK$’000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Friig v RITHEBR RIRE 206
Cash consideration paid It zHERE (24,209)
(24,003)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WhEH K EFEEZZE
During the year ended March 31, 2014, there is no HE_Z-—NF=H=+
profit or loss attributable to the additional business —BLIEFEE UEEFNERE
generated by fR7EH KA. No revenue contributed by EERRESR M 2 EINE
{REFKA for the year ended March 31, 2014. o REFMAEBE_F—

ME=ZA=+—"HLFE
I 8 B BHET U S e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

Pursuant to 51% Supplemental Agreement, the Group
acquired the remaining 51% issued shares of Panva Gas
in August 2013. Since then, the Group’s equity interest in
Panva Gas has increased from 49% to 100%, Panva Gas
become the subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to 51% Supplemental Agreement, the cash
consideration of the acquisition was reduced from
HK$270,300,000 to HK$173,300,000. Clauses under
51% Agreement in respect of the undertaking by Panva
Gas Vendors to compensate the shortfall between the
actual profit of Panva Gas and its affiliate companies and
HK$60,000,000 (“Shortfall”) are deleted. The Group
agrees to waive any rights to compensation or otherwise
claim against Panva Gas Vendors in respect of the
Shortfall.

BESI1%HEEHRE  AEERZ
TE—=ZFNAKRBEINRERHT
51% 2 BETIRG - & A&
BERBEIMA 2R B49%
#ZE100% AT R A MK A
ARG ZHBRAA -

BIES1% @R HBE  WE 2R
R {& H 270,300,000 7T &l B =
173,300,000 7T ° B @ B /T AR
EhEREHERINRRARER S
A7) & B % F E260,000,000% 7T
MEB(EBDZ251%H#EET
BT AMER - B 5 R ERE
BEZEMENXEERER AL
MREFRLEMREZEAR -

The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase WEEHRBEBEEAR-
method.
Consideration transferred BEZEAE

HK$'000

FAT

Cash e 170,300
Fair value of the shortfall EBATE 58,817
Fair value of previously held interests LRI Em 2 A TE 220,132

449,249
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB EK @
Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition recognised AEBRKWEEBRAZEE R
by the Group: BE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
before combination

WUWE A RE BEA
ZEEEREELATE
HK$'000
F#& T
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 258,773
Prepaid lease payments TN E KB 63,664
Investments in associates REEERRIZIRE 728
Investments in joint ventures RELRAIZEKE 27,661
Inventories rE 259,075
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 1,585
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W AR 3 % H A fE W AR IE 178,019
Bank balance and cash RITEHRRIES 267,801
Trade and other payables B 5 RN R R E A B RR IR (332,430)
Amount due to group companies FES & B A R FkIE (127,073)
Taxation T8 (3,088)
Bank borrowings RITEE (92,883)
Deferred taxation IR RE T I8 (4,336)
Non-controlling interests of B RME R F]
the subsidiaries of Panva Gas Z IR R = (358,187)
139,309
Goodwill RS 309,940

449,249
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuep)

e B R R MR @

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts of
the trade and other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$178,019,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected is nil.

RUER - FrliE 2 B 5 B IER
HAEEMEKEEZ AFERE
#) 4238 /178,019,000 7t ° AUk
BHSBEEEREEHRER
ZEREMBFRE

Goodwill on acquisition Y 5 T B A 2 B
HK$'000
TH& T
Cash consideration transferred BEEERSKE 170,300
Fair value of the Shortfall EZBZNYE 58,817
Previously held interest in Panva Gas BRATFEFELAMEHE QT
as an associate, at fair value ALIMRRZ R 220,132
Less: fair value of identifiable net B BT T SRR B E
assets acquired Z2EFEAFEE (139,309)
309,940

The goodwill arising on the acquisition on Panva Gas is
attributed to anticipated profitability of its LPG retail
business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

AEBR IRRMELE ZEET)
ENEREAMRTERH 2|
HAReER -

BHTERNZBARBEMELEZRA
BAIHURTLIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuen)

R e B 7% 3R R M & @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 HZ—-ZF—

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(B) Acquisition of a business through purchase
of additional in interests in an associate

(Continued)

Loss on deemed disposal of an associate

ME=A=+—HIFE

39. W XK @

(B) ZBWE —REERQ
ShEm WBEK (&)

7] 78

BRHE—FBERAIZER

HK$'000
FAT
Carrying amount of Panva Gas BEARRIMENEE B
as an associate as at date of disposal ZEEmEE (293,982)
Fair value of the Shortfall EBH2ATEE 58,817
Fair value of the Group'’s previously AEBEEAAFELIRE
held equity interest in Panva Gas AR 2 ANFE 220,132
(15,033)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition AU BEmEEZES A FEE
HK$’000
THT
Bank balances and cash acquired Frii s < IiR1THE R RIR® 267,801
Cash consideration paid st 2B & KB (170,300)
97,501

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the Group’s profit for the year ended March
31, 2014 is HK$3,965,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by Panva Gas. Revenue included in the
Group’s revenue for the year ended March 31,

amounted to HK$2,725,172,000.

WS R EFE R
AEBHZE-ZZE—HWF=A=+
—BLtFEZEANEEEBERA
TTIA R 2 BN 2 3,965,000 7%
Lot AREBEHE T —NF
A=+ HALEFERTZHRE
/$2,725,172,00078 7T °

2014
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EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

On September 3, 2013, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into an acquisition agreement with the
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
acquired the remaining 50% equity interest of China Gas
— SK Energy at a consideration of RMB129,500,000
(approximately to HK$163,384,000). The acquisition was
completed in September 17, 2013, on that date the
control in China Gas — SK Energy was passed to the
Group. Since then China Gas — SK Energy become the
subsidiary of the Group. China Gas — SK Energy is an
investment holding which subsidiaries are principally
engaged in natural gas business.

RZE—=FLA=H ' AQF
MEAREBYE =75 UKE
e Bt AEERBRR —
B AR T50% % AR
RAE A AR # 129,500,000 7T (49
163,384,000/ 7t ) - WEEE K =
E—=FNATEHEK ' RE
B R — T BRI
EREAEE - WE TR —F
BHRERKARAEBZHEB A
Ao PR — B ERERAE—HIX
Bl ag A B AR EZH
ERARER -

Consideration transferred EEZEAE
HK$'000
FET
Cash I 4 163,384
Fair value of previously held interests ERHIFTR =S 2 AT E 163,385

326,769
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB EK @
Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition recognised AEBRKWEEBRAZEE R
by the Group: BE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and provisional
fair value before
combination

B 5 R A B A

ZERAEREEAFE

HK$'000

FAT

Property, plant and equipment ME  WFEE&E 323

Investments in associates REERAIZIRE 40,258

Investments in joint ventures RELRAIZHKE 190,187

Trade and other receivables B 5 e WAR 3 N E b e Uk BR 1R 299

Bank balances and cash IRITHEHB RIS 2,662

Trade and other payables B 5 FE N AR A % H A FE AR IE (7,293)

226,436

Goodwill = 100,333

326,769

The initial accounting for the above acquisition has been Lt EEE 2SS RE

determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of NERETE NASNEEBED

professional valuation in relation to property, plant and 2 BMEREHEZEXHERKE
equipment. TE °

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts of RUGE R - FridiE 2 & 5 EWEE

the trade and other receivables acquired amounted to IR HMEKEBRB AEERES

HK$299,000 at the date of acquisition. The best estimate %) 48 %8 /299,000 7T o R U BB

at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not HEfEHEEIKEEAOBE SR

expected to be collected is nil. SEMEAS
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EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

Goodwill arising on acquisition AU mEE B E
HK$’000
F& T
Consideration transferred BEENAE 326,769
Less: Provisional fair value of B FTUEE R B RE B E
identifiable net assets acquired Z2EFENTEE (226,436)
Goodwill arising on acquisition R EmEE 2 EE 100,333

HERR— 2 B HERME
EZBEBDDENRESGERARRE
RAREBZERBHNEEN

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of China Gas —
SK Energy is attributed to anticipated profitability of its
investment in natural gas business by its joint ventures.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The fair value of the 50% equity interest in China Gas —
SK Energy previously held by the Group was re-measured
as of the date of acquisition at HK$163,385,000 by
reference to the cash consideration, resulting in a gain of
HK$51,135,000 recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended March 31, 2014.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

EHYEAZRBEMESEZD
Bl HR AL IR ©

$%l%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ¢'%ﬁ—x/uﬁﬂ
BEIR50% IR AN v AP EKS
%ﬁﬂtﬁ{éﬁéﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ%%
#$163,385,000/8 70 S HEZE
TE—NFE=A=+— Emirq
LEFLEMEZEBARKER
1 551,135,000 7T ©

B EMELE BTt FE

HK$'000

FHET

Bank balances and cash acquired Frifi s 2 IiR1T#E A R IR & 2,662
Cash consideration paid e zBHeRE (163,384)

(160,722)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
GEMBHRREFE @

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WIBE® @)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WEE K E B EE 7 &
Included in the Group’s profit for the year ended March AEEHEZE T NEF=A=1+
31, 2014 is profit of HK$2,168,000 attributable to the —BIEFEZNBEFEBRA
additional business generated by China Gas — SK Energy. M—EBRHERZBEINELEZ
Revenue included in the Group’s revenue for the year i 2,168,000 7T ° st AR K B
ended March 31, 2014 amounted to nil. Bz Z-—-NmNMF=A=+—H81t

FREAZMNEE/T -

On July 31, 2012, a subsidiary of the Group entered R-E——F+HB=+—
into an acquisition agreement with an independent H X AEE—FXWEAFH
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired —ZBIE=ZFEI N — K
80% equity interest of ST ARRMTIAE ZEE BiH® - Bl AEBEERRK
BRRAR ("FHIA") at a consideration of BARY26,169,0007T (4
RMB26,169,000 (approximately HK$31,913,000). 31,913,000 7T) YHEFHT
The acquisition was completed on July 31, 2012, on ORI mARERBRA
that date the control in 7T H was passed to the A (IO ] ) 80% 2Kk
Group. /LA is principally engaged in natural gas Az o ZBRER=-Z
business. ——F+A=1+—HEK "

RER T OZEbESE
BEAEE- - FTOEEHR

Consideration transferred EEZEAE

HK$'000
THET

Cash HE 31,913
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition
recognised by the Group:

AEEBRUEERRZE
ENEE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
before combination

WU EE S RE BHAT

ZEHEREERATE

HK$'000

FHT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 107,505
Prepaid lease payments T E KB 7,256
Inventories Ve 10
Trade and other receivables B 5 e W AR TR % H At fE W AR 1E 15,892
Bank balances and cash MITHEBRRE ® 2,849
Trade and other payables B 5 e BR R H M FE 5 AR IR (17,141)
Bank borrowings RITEE (86,341)
30,030

Non-controlling interests FE 2 A A = (6,006)
Goodwill S 7,889
31,913

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$15,892,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected is nil.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in f/TH recognised
at the date of the acquisition was measured by
reference to the respective proportionate shares of
recognised amounts of net assets of relevant
subsidiary and amounted to HK$6,006,000.

RKER: FTkEZES
JE U BR 3k N E b B YK BR 1B
ZAFEERAEHBEA
15,892,000 7t - A Uk & A
HEBBHEZRD S OE S
M2 EEMGTAE -

PR E R

REEBERER AT AE
EREEESEHENB
REBEZFENS A
ERRBBLAFER
6,006,000/ 7T °
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

39. B @)

Goodwill arising on acquisition B Y B 1T E 2
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred EHEERE 31,913
Plus: Non-controlling interests o FEFERRRERS (ST A
(20% share of net assets in £ M) FEEZ220%) 6,006
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B TR A R BIF A B
assets acquired ZEERTE (30,030)
Goodwill arising on acquisition AKEMEEZEE 7,889

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of FHTH
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its
natural gas business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

AWEBNTITOmMEEZE
BTENERRAREL 2
TEER R FIGE ) -

EHYERZRWENE
EZEBAMBREA -

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition BB mEALZ B iR
JH R
HK$'000
FAT
Bank balances and cash acquired Friiig c RITHEBR R IR 2,849
Cash consideration paid it zBHeRE (31,913)
(29,064)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the Group’s profit for the year ended
March 31, 2013 was HK$1,009,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by FHTH.
Revenue included in the Group’s revenue for the
year ended March 31, 2013 amounted to
HK$17,901,000.

WA EEEE L FE

AEBEBEE-_ZT—=F=
B=+—BLEFEZ&HF
BIESBRSIOZ 5N
¥ % 21,009,000 JT o =f
AREFBHE T —=

=A=+—BIEEEKH
B U % 417,901,000 7T °
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

On July 31, 2012, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group acquired
80% equity interest of /i AR TIRAEER
[RA® ("M O") at a consideration of
RMB23,662,000 (approximately HK$28,857,000).
The acquisition was completed on July 31, 2012, on
that date the control in )0 was passed to the
Group. /A A is principally engaged in natural gas
business.

39. WEB ¥ @)

R—ZE——F+tA=+—
H X&EB —RWBE R A
B — BB E=FR] M —
MIKERZE Bl A5E
AR E AR23,662,0007T
(#728,857,00078 7T ) U B &
AHORMEMmRARERA
FRAR ([0 ]1)80% 2 ik
Az e ZBWER =_ZF—
—FEtA=F+—HEK R
B EAO i EERE
EAREE - ZHOXTERE

Consideration transferred EEZEAE
HK$'000
FET
Cash < 28,857

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition
recognised by the Group:

REBEBRKEBBERZE

ExaE:
Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
before combination

WU 5 RE BFA

ZEEAEREELATHE

HK$'000

AT

Property, plant and equipment W BE K& HE 95,177
Inventories FE 33
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE AR 3R % E {h fE U AR 18 3,589
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 2,432
Trade and other payables B 5 P BR 5 I E A FE 5 BR 18 (16,613)
Bank borrowings RITEE (54,634)
29,984

Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR = (5,997)
Goodwill B 4,870

28,857
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WX @)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$3,589,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected is nil.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in A A recognised
at the date of the acquisition was measured by
reference to the respective proportionate shares of
recognised amounts of net assets of relevant
subsidiary and amounted to HK$5,997,000.

RWER IKEZES
FE W BR SR & H h FE Y BR 1B
ZRAFEREHNBES
3,589,000/ 7T o 7 W B H
HEHEEZRDEHOE S
M REMETAE -

FEFE R B 2

KU B #R 2 Em 03I
TRERE2ERBWNBE
NRAEBEEFENSIEH
EERcBELOATES
5,997,000 7T °

Goodwill arising on acquisition B f T EE A R
HK$'000
FHTT
Consideration transferred EEERE 28,857
Plus: Non-controlling interests N SERE R RE R (0 0
(20% share of net assets in 2 ) FEEZ220%) 5,997
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B PTURE AT R BIE A B
assets acquired ZEERTE (29,984)
Goodwill arising on acquisition AWEmES 22 4,870

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of i [
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its
natural gas business.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

RAEmEAOMELEZR
BLERERARRER 2
BB

EHYERZBKREME
HEZEERARBIA
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition B U B i E £ 2 B £ 7
JHEE

HK$'000

FAT

Bank balances and cash acquired g v SRITHEB R R € 2,432

Cash consideration paid FrxftzBEerRE (28,857)

(26,425)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the Group's profit for the year ended
March 31, 2013 was HK$470,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by )i H.
Revenue included in the Group’s revenue for the
year ended March 31, 2013 amounted to
HK$28,272,000.

On December 31, 2012, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group acquired 60% equity interest of LXERAEEJR at
a consideration of RMB117,000,000 (approximately
HK$146,250,000). The acquisition was completed
on December 31, 2012, on that date the control in
LKeEER was passed to the Group. K&EER is
principally engaged in natural gas business.

WEEH A EFEE 2 E
REBHE-_E—=F=
A=+ —BLEFEEZHEH
BIEEBREN O Z N
% 75 2 470,000 7T o 5 A
AEBHE - ==
A=+—BLEFERZEN
g %5 428,272,00058 TT °

R—ZE=——F+ A=+
—B AEE-—XHBRQ A
BH—ZB/TE =M —
DIRE R B A5 E
R E AR 117,000,000
7t ( #9146,250,0007% 7T ) U
& 22 & B TR60% 2 AR 7K #E
moZBERBR-_T—=F
+—A=+t—HB%k RE
B &R&R2IEHEER
EAREB - RGEEEREER
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

39. B @)

Consideration transferred EEZEAE
HK$'000
T& T
Cash L 73,125
Deferred consideration RERE 73,125
146,250

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition
recognised by the Group:

AEERUEERERZE
ENAE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
before combination

WWREARE BEA

ZEEEREELATHE

HK$’000

T

Property, plant and equipment Y WEREE 43,610
Trade and other receivables Z 5 e W R 3 % H A FE UK AR TH 36,003
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRIE S 14,154
Trade and other payables B 5 AR H Ath B BRI (58,425)
Bank borrowings RITEE (3,743)
31,599

Non-controlling interests I I A (12,640)
Goodwill EES 127,291
146,250

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$36,003,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected is nil.

RWER fIkEZES
FE W2 BR SR & H h FE Y BR 1H
ZAFERGEHBES
36,003,000 7T o 7 W EE A
HEBHEZREASHE S
M2 EEMTHAE -
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in £

J& recognised

at the date of the acquisition was measured by
reference to the respective proportionate shares of
recognised amounts of net assets of relevant
subsidiary and amounted to HK$12,640,000.

39. WEB ¥ @)

FEFEE R 1 7
RS B ERZ KGR
JEIERER L2 E M
NEEEFENSHEA
EERcBLAAFTES
12,640,000/ T °

Goodwill arising on acquisition B B T E A 2 B
HK$'000
AT
Consideration transferred EEERE 146,250
Plus: Non-controlling interests o IEER R (SRR EEIR
(40% share of net assets FEEZ240%)
in KERAEIR) 12,640
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B PR BT A Rl A B
assets acquired ZETAFE (31,599)
Goodwill arising on acquisition E i E 2 g 127,291
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of &2 8EIR EWEESEIRME %2
was attributed to the anticipated profitability of its BELDERHE 9" R
natural gas business. Z TEERAFIEE T
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was T8 HA I A R 5% 18 U RE T 2
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 2 BT HDR R IE o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition B fg T B A 2 B & i M
JHEE
HK$’000
FHET
Bank balances and cash acquired FriiiE v RITHEBR RIS 14,154
Cash consideration paid FrZftzHERE (73,125)

(58,971)
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. WX @)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the Group's profit for the year ended
March 31, 2013 was HK$3,508,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by 2X&EEEIR.
Revenue included in the Group’s revenue for the
year ended March 31, 2013 amounted to

HK$25,075,000.

On December 31, 2011, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group acquired 67% equity interest of 282 )% &)
ERMHFANBRAR ("EE@EF") at a
consideration of RMB6,100,000 (approximately
HK$7,439,000). The acquisition was completed on
April 1, 2012, on that date the control in EEH)¥
was passed to the Group. EEE:#)¥ is principally
engaged in pipeline design in natural gas business.

WhEH R E B R E 2 2
A=+—HLEFEEZ&F
PREEFBERESER
4N ¥ 1% 2 3,508,000 JT °
AAREBREE-_T—=
FZA=Z+—HLEFEK
= B Wz A25,075,00078
ﬁ:o

e

—E——&%+_-_fF=+
—H AEE—RHBRAA
B — 2B E=T]3—
DB B A5 E
MR E AR 6,100,000
(497,439,000 70) & &
BE ¥ ) R fin i 58 B PR
ARRI([EE®F]667%Z
BAEZD ZERER=F
——FMA—HEK BN
B EE#FZEHESE
EAEE -EERFEEY
ERRREBHEBRGT

Consideration transferred BEZEAE
HK$'000
FE T
Cash He 7,439
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED) 39. BB X m)

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition AEBRWEHRERZE
recognised by the Group: ERAE:

Acquiree’s carrying
amount and fair value
before combination

U EE 5 R A B AT

ZEREAEREEAFE

HK$’000

FA& T

Property, plant and equipment Y BB REE 1,770
Trade and other receivables B 5 e YR 3 % H At fE AR TR 2,941
Bank balances and cash RITHBRIR® 14,898

Trade and other payables B SRR R E e IRIE (16,408)
3,201

Non-controlling interests FE 1 iR HE 7 (1,138)
Goodwill RS 5,376
7,439

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amounts of the trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$2,941,000 at the date of
acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected is nil.

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests in 2 2 ##)F recognised
at the date of the acquisition was measured by
reference to the respective proportionate shares of
recognised amounts of net assets of relevant
subsidiary and amounted to HK$1,138,000.

RIWER: FTkEZES
JE WS BR R I £ b B UK AR 1B
ZAFERENBEREA
2,941,000 7T o 1A UK & H
HIEEBEX KBS HIEE
M2 EEGAET -

I 1
REBERRBZEEEF
FERERE2ZHEN
BRrRIBEERENSHER
ERRSBLOAFTES
1,138,000 7T °
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

(D) Acquisition of a business through purchase

39. W XK @
(D) RZE—=FFBWEK

of subsidiaries in 2013 (Continued) BArWEER (&)
(iv) (Continued) (iv) (#&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition Y B 1T BE A 2 R
HK$000
F& T
Consideration transferred EEERE 7,439
Plus: Non-controlling interests 0 SEYERR R (EE ¥
(33% share of net assets KEEEFNE
in & 3@¥ and non-controlling NAElZ TR E S
interests in the subsidiary 2 & 3#¥) FEEZ33%) 1,138
Less: Fair value of identifiable net W TR BRI B RF B E
assets acquired ZEENTE (3,201)
Goodwill = 5,376
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition FEUY g mELZE T RA
H
HK$’000
FHET
Bank balances and cash acquired Friiiig  IRITHEBR RIR € 14,898
Cash consideration paid FrEftziBEeRE (7,439)

7,459
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

39.

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES (CONTINUED)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
During the year ended March 31, 2013, there was
no revenue attributable to the additional business
generated by EEE##%¥. No material revenue for the
year ended March 31, 2013 contributed by EEi#
.

If the above acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2014
had been completed on April 1, 2013, total group revenue and
profit for the year would have been HK$27,629,688,000 and
HK$3,030,718,000 respectively. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of the operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had above acquisition been
completed on April 1, 2014, nor is it intended to be projection
of future results.

If the above acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2013
had been completed on April 1, 2012, total group revenue and
profit for the year would have been HK$21,176,244,000 and
HK$1,944,070,000 respectively. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of the operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had above acquisition been
completed on April 1, 2012, nor is it intended to be projection
of future results.

39. WEB ¥ @)

WhE ¥ N EEZEZ
%Zj::g_zizﬂ:‘f’
—HIEFE  WEEAKE

RERERB LT ZEINE
HeBE_ZTE—=F=A=
+—BLEEE ERBEY
mEAMSZEE -

i EAREBEE—"FT—NNF=F=+—
HEFEZHBERHER - —=
FOMA—HBHZEK FAZEEZ K=
3% A 15 9 Bl 527,629,688,000 78 JT M
3,030,718,0007% 7T ° fi5 & & I £ 7t &4
B BRM AWM EMRKEEEREDE RN
:%—mimﬂ—a%ﬁﬁ$igﬁ

REMSZREREEXRBEZET
ﬁT%ﬁE%X%ﬁZﬁH

WEtREE " T—=F=A=+—
BEFEZRBEEBEAHAER - —=
FMA—BZEN FAZEEZ K=
Ko R 2 Bl 5 21,176,244,000 5 Tt &
1,944,070,000/8 7T ° = & FHEH
B BARMAMERKEBEERELHE R
*ifzimﬂfa%ﬁ%$%sﬁ
BPREEm Sz s M EEEE 2 BZ
ﬁTHW%*X%&ZﬁMO
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 HE=-ZT—NFE=F=+—HILtFE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. HEMEB QA

HE-_ZTZ-—=F=ZA=Z+—HILF
B AEBERANEEBZERFRMP

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group has partially
disposed of 41% equity interest of Z/E#E as held by the

Group to & JI#Jf, an associate of the Group at a consideration SR & $ EEFEAZHEHR
of HK$6,588,000 since then, /& #[&ceased to be a subsidiary 41% % 7N #E %5 - K (B /&6,588,0008
of the Group and become an associate. JTe Bt B /i e B RS E
BAR MR EAR -
HK$'000
FAT
NET ASSETS OF /8@ DISPOSED OF EHENEFRFEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERFZE 1,959
Prepaid lease payments i‘ﬁ ~HEERIEA 741
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE R 3 &% B Ath i U BR TE 1,533
Prepayments i‘E < 5/ I8 1,076
Inventories rE 15
Bank balances and cash RITERRE S 10,290
Trade and other payables Z 5 FE T BR 5 I B th JE 5 BR IR (4,783)
Advance from customers TEEFE E’] E% ,T/\ (598)
Amounts due to group companies ERAERA (70)
Net assets disposed of Frii & FEE 10,163
Net assets disposed of Frih & FEE 10,163
Non-controlling interests I 12 A (3,557)
6,606
Interests in associate at fair value RO ERRE 2 AT EFE
on initial recognition NN Pl (2,439)
Gain on disposal & W e 2,421
6,588
SATISFIED BY: SENDIE-
Cash received by the Group REBEDEKE 2 6,588
NET CASH OUTFLOW ARISING ON DISPOSAL ~ AHEMEL 2R &R H B 5
Cash received by the Group AEEBE WA S 6,588
Bank balances and cash disposed of FItE 2 RITEBR LIRS (10,290)

(3,702)
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 4. REHENTH
The Group as lessee EEBERBEABEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RIMEAR REBREE TS HHE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable EmZ HEYENEE 2T A RBHE&
operating leases in respect of rented premises and equipment EHRAMEABBERARREZN 2 &HEMR
which fall due as follows: Eop (NI
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(restated)
(&E31))
Within one year —F R 40,717
In the second to fifth year inclusive FZEEFERF
(BREEMTF) 43,671
After five years HF1% 69,839
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the REBH 2N REREEREE L
Group in respect of leasehold land and buildings and REFERRERENGz2HE HEWSE
equipment. Leases for rented premises and equipment are REHAKLEETFAREMES
negotiated for an average term of two to six years with fixed F-HSEE -

rental.
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

41.

FEE—F R g A )

AEBESEHEA

RBERR REBEETIHREERZ
TAMEEENERLERAY AKHE
EEBEPHEUATREKEMESHR
B4

2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHT
(restated)
(E%)

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEFERF
(BREEEREMSE)

After five years hF %

3,820

2,569
= 5

6,394

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two to ten years
with fixed rentals.

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has entered into the following transactions, which
have not been completed at the end of the reporting period nor
at the date these consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issuance.

(i) In January 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 50% equity interest
in SLEMHERMARBEMR AT at a total cash
consideration of RMB103,130,000 (approximately
HK$130,544,000). Total deposit of RMB35,130,000
(approximately HK$44,468,000) was paid during the year
ended March 31, 2014. The transaction has not been
completed as March 31, 2014.

42.

HOZFAFHEZESMFET
F-BEHEEE -

BEAREE

AEBEERIZ TR ZFEXHR
BEPRRZEFEEV B RRERE
TEZ B HARTK -

) RZZE—WF—F ' ARE—FK
2EWBRARIE—BBIE=F
I — AR ESE R A  IRAEIR
%+ KB A R % 103,130,000t (4
130,544,000 7T ) e 8 Sl 48 1 %7
BER IR | A BR A A)50% 2 g A
X oHBE—ZE—NE=/=+
—HEFEEXZHBRES AR
#5 35,130,000 7T ( 4944,468,000
L) RPNV _ZE—NF=A=
+—HERTHK °



168 CHINA GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED A BB TR A R AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninuep)

Sae

B 7% 3R 3} B 5 )

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BEZ =T —NF=A=+—HItFE

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

In January 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with
independent third parties to acquire 100% equity interest
in HEERBEEENRRERAA at a total cash
consideration of RMB23,000,000 (approximately
HK$29,114,000). Total deposit of RMB6,900,000
(approximately HK$8,734,000) was paid during the year
ended March 31,2014. The transaction has not been
completed as March 31, 2014.

In January 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 100% equity
interest in F AT HEBMRARAF at a total cash
consideration of RMB21,000,000 (approximately
HK$26,582,000). Total deposit of RMB6,300,000
(approximately HK$7,975,000) was paid during the year
ended March 31,2014. The transaction has not been
completed as March 31, 2014.

In January 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 100% equity
interest in AR B REERF AR A A at a total cash
consideration of RMB22,000,000 (approximately
HK$27,848,000). Total deposit of RMB5,000,000
(approximately HK$6,329,000) was paid during the year
ended March 31,2014. The transaction has not been
completed as March 31, 2014.

In addition to those disclosed above, as at March 31, 2014, the
Group has capital commitments in respect of the acquisition for
property, plant and equipment and construction materials for
property, plant and equipment contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements amounting to
HK$87,804,000 (2013: HK$100,148,000) and HK$170,810,000
(2013: HK$13,009,000) respectively.

42. E AR EIE @)

iy M-ZZT—MWFE—H AQXF—XK
2EWNBRARIE—ZBBIE=FH
R — MR EE R RER
& K B A R # 23,000,000 7T (4
29,114,000 ) W g B = % @&
EEEMRRER DA 2R ARE
meBE_ZTZ—NF=ZA=1+—
AEFEESZNREZE AR
6,900,000 7T (498,734,000 JT) °
RER_E—NWE=ZA=1+—H
# AR FEAK ©

(i) RZE—WF—H ARa—K
2ENBRARIE —ZBIE=
R REERGE  RBR
£ KB A R #21,000,0007T (4
26,582,000 7t ) W BE & & ™ #
WEBMRRER A A E IR ARE
HeHE_T—NF=ZRF=+—
BEFEESINREZE AR
6,300,000 7T (497,975,000 JT.) °
THER-_E—NE=A=+—8H
# R SEAK ©

vy R—Z—ME—F AQA—K
EENBRARIE—ZBIYIE =7
AN RREERE  RER
& K8 A R #22,000,0007T (4
27,848,000% 7t ) Uk & 4 25 = 5l
BREERFEMARRA R 2 PR
X -BHE-_T—WNFE=A=+
—BIEFEEXNBEZREARK
5,000,000 7T (#76,329,0005% 7T) ©
BN -_E—NME=A=+—H
H A TERK ©

bBr i BREN R —WF= A
=t+t—H AEERKEDE HE

RERYE BERSEZEMD
Bl 1E H & $187,804,000/8 T (— & — =
£ : 100,148,000/ 7t ) % 170,810,000
Bt (ZF— =4 : 13,009,000/ 7T) Z
EEIAMERREE W RE E#E
B AR o
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42.

43.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

On December 16, 2012, the Group has entered into an
acquisition agreement with Fortune Oil and Wilmar
International, pursuant to which the Group will acquire entire
issued share capital of Fortune Gas, at consideration
US$400,000,000 (approximately HK$3,113,200,000). Fortune
QOil is a connected person of the Company and is an investment
holding company which holds 85% issued share capital of
Fortune Gas. Wilmar International is an investment holding
which holds 15% issued share capital of Fortune Gas and its
controlling shareholders are independent third parties of the
Company. The transaction was subjected to the substantive
approvals by Anti-Monopoly Bureau of the Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC. As at March 31, 2013, no deposit was
paid and the transaction had not been completed. During the
year ended March 31, 2014, the transaction had been
completed as stated out in note 39(A)(i).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged certain non-current and current assets and
equity interests over certain subsidiaries to banks to secure loan
facilities granted to the Group. Carrying amount of the non-
current and current assets pledged to banks to secure loan
facilities granted to the Group is as follows:

42.

43.

BAREE @)

R-ZEBE——FE+-A+<B &~&EH
HLE bR B K 2 EK B R RT a7 WK EE 15
BN ASESKESHMRRZ
22 ETRA - K& A400,000,000
= 7t (#93,113,200,0005 7T ) ° & ih
BAaAEAARBEAL TAEEE
MR R E B 1T IR N85 % 2 WA 1R L
NA - ERBERARAEASHMAE
TRA15% 2 HEER AR - HEZER
BEREARRZBIE=ZF AEX
SEEPEEEIREHTEBNER
fE-R-_BEB—=%F=A=+—8
BEHANTANRESBEEEIZIH AT
K- BE-_ZE—NE=ZA=+—H 1t
2 a0 T SE39AN)ETEL 0 B e K
RS -

EERA

AEBEBRETHBRRIZSE T3
MBERBEERKREEMR TR
EAEEERZERRMEZER B
KR TROEALTNEEER ZEXRH
BERZIIERD RREEEREEN
T

RIERBME
BREME

Long-term loan facilities
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments AR EERIE
Short-term loan facilities EHEREE
Inventories EE

Pledged bank deposits EERRITER

ME - BERERE

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
58,800 54,000
262,215 259,282
16,328 16,123
155,696 153,750
250,748 540,117

1,023,272
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44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

45,

The Group has joined a MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at rate specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect of
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years at March 31, 2014 and
2013.

Employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are covered by
the retirement and pension schemes defined by local practice
and regulations. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement and
pension schemes. The only obligation of the Group in respect to
the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contribution.

The calculation of contributions for PRC eligible staff is based on
certain percentage of the applicable payroll costs. The
contribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated based on the rules
set out in the MPF Ordinance which is 5% on the basic salary of
the relevant employee subject to a specific ceiling.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on February 6, 2003 (the
“Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
any directors of the Company, any employees of the Group, or
any employee, partner or director of any business consultant,
joint venture partner, financial adviser or legal adviser of the
Group.

44.

45,

iR ¢k 48 7 5 2
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE- 45 BEREFERURSERM
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) ()
The total number of shares in respect of which options may be BIEZFAAREZEBRERS X
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of Z WD B E - N A] AR B AR L E RZ 5T
the shares of the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’ EEAARRFEBEITRMDZ210% ([5
approval of the Scheme (“Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such EREER])KINZI0%RE T UE
10% limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of o AERREMEERGTEEELR
the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum EEARAAFTEETRERMLG Z210% BT
aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the FEREZTZIMBELEBEERITEZ
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be BERITEBREMAEET KRG A
exercised under the Scheme must not exceed 30% of the total HFERMEHBEARF RS ETR
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. MR 230% Ef—EAFERTE
The number of shares in respect of which options may be AT ZERERS R Z2BRHER -
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to TRBRAERARAEZEITRMDEE
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue. Each 1% - BRHERETEMES - TH
grant of options to any director, chief executive or substantial BEIEEREBSINBLIEHNTE
shareholder must be approved by independent non-executive EHE - EMREEBRETEZRE
directors. Where any grant of options to substantial shareholder BT ESHHEMBEAT
or an independent non-executive director or any of their @ HMATERSKERBEREZ
respective associate would result in the shares of the Company AArB BT RABETRAOBABA
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted NABEETRA0I%MEEZRER A
and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued 1E+ = 1& B HARE B {E #8 @ 5,000,000 7
share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the T BERIARRRERELBE

12-month period up to the date of grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the date BEZBEBREENIKE D HE B #EE28
of grant, upon payment of HK$10 per each grant. Options may BAEAE SARLEREZRES
be exercised at any time from the date to be determined by the 1087 - BIRETRESERE A
board of directors to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. HEEZZRE B +EEHERERT
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the F-THEBHARAESEE I
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing THERATZREE ()% L B H
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the RARRHWHE: (NEEERDL BB
average closing price of the shares for the five business days Al ] & % B iR 9 2 T 5 4 8 K (i)
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal R 1 m{E o

value of a share.

The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from the date of ZEtEl BB AEMASE—_Z —=
adoption until February 5, 2013. F_ARBIE REB+EF-

Since the Scheme expired on February 6, 2013, no further BRZAEIER —_E—Z=ZF_- AKX
options can be granted thereunder. However, the provisions of BE®R T8 BERZ 8K E A
the Scheme shall remain in force in all other respects and all FE o R Xt &l 2 &R 2 I E th
options, granted prior to its expiration shall continue to be valid FE A TIAE R R E AR Z
and exercisable in accordance therewith. HHBEDABR WA REZFEX

T AT o
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE- 45 BEREZ2RUBRHERH

BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

A new share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on August 20, 2013 (the “New Scheme”).
The purpose of the New Scheme is to grant share options to
eligible persons as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group. The New Scheme will expire on 27 November 2023.

The eligible person as defined in the New Scheme are individuals
or entities who or which may participate in the New Scheme
(“Eligible Persons”). The following individuals or entities who in
the absolute discretion of the Board of Directors of the
Company have contributed to the Group on the basis of their
contribution to the development and growth of the Group may
participate in the New Scheme:

(i) an eligible employee; and

(i) a non-executive director and an independent non-
executive director of any member of the Group; and

(i) an agent or a consultant of any member of the Group;
and

(iv) a supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any director or employee of such supplier; and

(v)  a customer of any member of the Group or any director
or employee of such customer; and

(vi) person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy
or professional services to any member of the Group or
any director or employee of any such entity; and

(vii) a subsidiary; and

(viii)

a company in which the Company holds, either directly or
indirectly, 20% or more of its equity interest.

=h
TN (#8)
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Subject to the Listing Rules, the maximum number of the
share of the Company subject to outstanding unvested or
vested options under the New Scheme (“New Options”)
and outstanding options under other share option scheme
of the Company (“Other Options”) must not exceed 30%
of the shares or the Company in issue from time to time
("Overriding Limit”). No New Options or Other Options
may be granted if it will result in this Overriding Limit
being exceeded.

Subject to the Overriding Limit, paragraphs (iii) and (iv)
below, the total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all New Options and
Other Options must not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the August 20, 2014 (subject to
adjustment in the event of a capitalisation issue or rights
issue or open offer of shares of the Company, or
consolidation, sub-division or reduction of share capital of
the Company (other than an issue of shares of the
Company as consideration in respect of a transaction))
(“Mandate Limit”). Unless approved pursuant to
paragraphs (iii) and (iv) below, no New Options or Other
Options may be granted if such grant will result in the
Mandate Limit being exceeded. New Options and Other
Options lapsed according to the terms of the New Scheme
or other share option scheme(s) will not be counted for
the purpose of calculating the Mandate Limit.
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii)

Subject to the Overriding Limit and an approval of
shareholders of the Company, the Company may from
time to time “refresh” a Mandate Limit provided that the
total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all New Options or Other Options
to be granted under the limit as “refreshed” must not
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
date of the resolution to approve the “refreshed” limit
(“Refresher Date”). New Options and Other Options
previously granted (whether outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed (according to the New Scheme or the other share
option schemes of the company) or exercised) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
“refreshed”. The Company can seek the approval of
shareholders of the Company to “refresh” a Mandate
Limit any number of times as the Board of Directors of the
Company considers appropriate. Unless approved
pursuant to paragraph (iv) below, the board of directors
of the Company cannot grant any New Options on or
after the Refresher Date if such grant will result in the
Mandate Limit as refreshed being exceeded.

Subject to the Overriding Limit and a specific approval of
shareholders of the Company, the board of directors of
the Company may grant New Options to Eligible Persons
identified by the board of directors of the Company. If the
approval of shareholders of the Company is obtained, the
board of directors of the Company may grant New
Options to any Eligible Person in respect of such number
of shares of the Company and on such terms as specified
in that approval of shareholders of the Company.

45. BIREFT 8 R AR F X A
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE- 45, B&IX
N

REFTEI R AR B XA
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) R ()

Options granted under the New Scheme must be taken up BEFAEETHEARE TR F
within 20 business days of the date of grant and pay the AR B XA EAT IR (MDA ) % #5120
Company the amount payable, if any, on acceptance of the i %8 AEL - e i - AT BE
option. Any option under the New Scheme which has vested, in BT ESHAEE NEMD RSB &
respect of which all conditions attaching to it have satisfied and TR A KRG EERKE B RRBD
which has not lapsed may be exercised at any time, by no HE - WMARBEEGRRITHEERE
option may be exercised if such exercise would, in the opinion BeBRFTE - EMBEREE R
of the board of directors of the Company, be in breach of the Bl - HEKBEFTE X THEBE R
New Scheme, any applicable law, rule or regulation or the terms IR R A&+ B ANA (T B4 o

and conditions of the relevant option granted under the New

Scheme.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the TEBRHAATEEET  UTEK
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing RTA&EEmE: )VARRAROERT
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the HEEMKTE: VRO EEEEFA
average closing price of the shares for the five business days HAp51E <& 2 B ey A T B Kl
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal KRR HEEE -

value of the Company's share.

Up to March 31, 2014, no option was issued under the New HE-_ZE-—NF=A=+—H8 &
Scheme. R A& 5 &) B 17 L (] B4 o
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options held by employees (including directors) and movements
in such holdings during the two years ended March 31, 2014:

45,

BRENBRAROERN

t ==
X (#)

TRINLERB(BRES)AFKARA
BREZABRBEE_T-—HNF=A
St RAEMEFERERBEREZZ
ENCDE

Number Number Number
of share Transfer ~ Exercised Forfeited of share  Exercised Forfeited of share
Exercise price  options at during during during  options at during during  options at
Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share 4.1.2012 the year the year theyear 3312013 the year theyear 3312014
R=B-=F R=B-Z% RZB-BF
NA-H =R=t-H =B=t-AH
RiHAH BRA T RHAR SROEE <BREHR FACER FREARE FASRU <BREHE EFAEAE FRERK 2BREHE
HK$ (Note 5) (Note 3) (Note 6) (Note 3) (Note 6)
BT (F3ks) (B z£3) (FzE6) (B z£3) (FzE6)
Held by Directors
HESHE
1.9.2004 1.9.2004 to 8.30.2004 9.1.2004 t0 1.8.2014 0.80 4,000,000 5,000,000 (5,000,000) = 4,000,000 (4,000,000) = =
1.9.200458.30.2004 9.1.2004%1.8.2014
10.6.2004 (Note 1) (Note 1) 071 — 130,000,000 (130,000,000 — — — - —
(BE1) (fiz1)
10.20.2005 10.20.2005 t0 10.19.2010  10.20.2010 to 10.19.2015 1.50 6,000,000 — — — 6,000,000 (6,000,000) - —
10.20.2005%10.19.2010  10.20.2010%10.19.2015
8.23.2007 8.23.2007 t0 9.18.2008 9.19.2008 t0 8.22.2017 232 3,000,000 - — - 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - -
8.23.2007%9.18.2008 9.19.2008%8.22.2017
8.3.2009 (Note 4) (Note 4) 2.10 — 100,000,000 — — 100,000,000  (100,000,000) = —
(FizE4) (P& 4)
8.3.2009 8.3.2009 t0 8.2.2011 83.2011108.2.2014 2.10 23,000,000 — — — 23,000,000  (10,000,000) — 13,000,000
8320092822011 83.2011£82.2014
9.17.2009 9.17.2009t0 9.16.2012 9.17.2012t09.16.2014 2.60 2,000,000 - - — 2,000,000 (2,000,000) — -
9.17.2009%9.16.2012 9.17.2012£9.16.2014
38,000,000 235,000,000 (135,000,000) — 138,000,000 (125,000,000) — 13,000,000
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45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
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t ==
X (#)

Number Number Number
of share Transfer  Exercised Forfeited of share  Exercised Forfeited of share
Exercise price  options at during during during  options at during during  options at
Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share 4.1.2012 the year the year theyear 3312013 the year theyear 3312014
R=Z-ZF RZB-Z§ RZZ-IF
mA-A =R=+-AH =B=+-A
RiAH BEA T EHR BRGE <BREYE EFABEE FREORE FABKK <BREZE SFAEAE FAERU 2BREHA
HKS (Note 5) (Note 3) (Note 6) (Note 3) (Note 6)
BT (F3Es) (P3E3) (Hi&6) (R33) (Fiz6)
Held by Others
mEBARE
1.9.2004 1.9.2004 0 8.30.2004 1.9.2004 to0 1.8.2014 0.80 7910000 (5,000,000  (1,000,000) = 1,910,000 (900,0000  (1,010,000) —
1.9.200458.30.2004 19.2004%182014
10.6.2004 (Note 1) (Note 1) 071 130,000,000 (130,000,000) = = = = = =
(RzE1) (FzE1)
10.6.2004 10.6.2004 t0 3.19.2005 320200510 10.5.2014 071 33,700,000 = (100,000) — 33,600,000 = — 33,600,000
10.6.2004%3.19.2005 3202005£10.5.2014
(Note 2)
(FzE2)
10.20.2005 10.20.2005 t0 10.19.2010  10.20.2010 0 10.19.2015 1.50 118,800,000 —  (11,500,000) — 107,300,000  (2,500,000) — 104,800,000
10.20.2005%10.19.2010  10.20.2010%10.19.2015
1.27.2006 1.27.2006 t0 1.26.2011 1.27.2011t0 1.26.2016 1.52 6,500,000 —  (6,500,000) — — — — —
1.27.2006%1.26.2011 1.27.2011%1.26.2016
8.3.2009 (Note 4) (Note 4) 2.10 200,000,000  (100,000,000) — — 100,000,000  (100,000,000) — —
(Fsta) (P 4)
8.3.2009 8.3.2009 t0 8.2.2011 83.2011108.2.2014 2.10 47,304,000 —  (31,240,000) (350,000) 15,714,000  (12,274,000) — 3,440,000
8320092822011 8320112822014
9.17.2009 9.17.20090 10.13.2009  10.14.2009 t0 9.16.2014 2.60 1,000,000 — — (500,000) 500,000 (500,000) — —
9.17.2009% 10.13.2009 10.14.2009%9.16.2014
9.17.2009 9.17.2009 10 9.16.2012 9.17.2012t09.16.2014 2.60 2,500,000 — (1,330,000) (500,000) 670,000 (270,000) — 400,000
9.17.2009%9.16.2012 9.17.2012£9.16.2014
547,714,000  (235,000,000)  (51,670,000)  (1,350,000) 259,694,000 (116,444,000  (1,010,000) 142,240,000
585,714,000 — (186,670,000  (1,350,000) 397,694,000 (241,444,000)  (1,010,000) 155,240,000
Weighted average exercise price METHAEE HKS1.55 N/A HK$1.04 HK$2.47 HK$1.80 HK$2.06 HK$0.80 HK$1.39
1557 TR 10487 24T%T 18047 20677 0.80%7T 13947
Exercisable at the end of the year TRERME 333,910,000 197,694,000 155,240,000
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

45. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1) The exercise of the options will be subject to the condition that the
consolidated net asset value of the Company and its subsidiaries which
shall be certified by the auditors appointed by the Company as at the date
of the exercise of the options being not less than HK$1 billion. Exercisable
period is between November 22, 2004 to October 5, 2014.

2) The original exercisable period was July 1, 2005 to October 5, 2014.
Pursuant to a resolution passed in the board of directors meeting held on
March 20, 2005, the exercisable period is changed to the period from
March 20, 2005 to October 5, 2014.

(3) During the year March 31, 2014, weighted average share price on exercise
dates and the weighted average price immediately before exercise dates
are HK$7.67 (2013: HK$4.23) per share.

(4) The exercise of option will be subject to the condition that the annual
consolidated profit after taxation of the Company and its subsidiaries
which shall be certified by the auditors appointed by the Company as at
the date of the exercise of the options being not less than HK$1.5 billion.
Exercisable period is between August 3, 2009 to August 2, 2019.

(5) The options transferred related to re-appointment of a director, Mr. Liu, on

April 2014, who received the options in his capacity as a director before
the removal as director on April 2011.

(6) The options were forfeited upon resignation of the employees.

45. BIREFT 8 R AR F X A

X (#)
3

(1) TEHEAERTARRA BT AR
THEHERER  AARREMNBARZ
REBEFETLRI0EBIT - ATTE 5
BRE-ZTENF+—A=+=—BAE=F—
ME+AARAILE -

(2) ATEHRRAB-_ZSTERAFLA—HZE
— TN E+ARAB -RER-_ZTTRE
SA-tERHESESRMBRAZIARE
£ ATFEHRRERAZETRF=AZ
+HE-_ZT-—WMFE+ARB -

(3) HE-FT-—MNMF=A=+t—HLFE ' R®
TE Az MEFERERZETERS
RZMEFTHRERERIETET(ZZ
—Z=F 4238 °

@) TERRBERZGHER ARFREM
BRANMETEAHZFEGEARBR
BN (BEEARB MR ZZBEAZE)
AEIRISEBT - ATEHRE-FZF
NENA=ZHEZZ-AF/NAZ=H-

(5) FTHEBHMEEZEAN_T-NFENARE
EMZERESTAR -REHENBLEE
KRB —FNARRERERAERES
B RS -

(6) HAEREE BRI -
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BE=—T—NF=A=+—HILFE

45,

46.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, fair value
of share options granted to employees determined at the date
of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Group’s employee share-based
compensation reserve. During the year ended March 31, 2013,
an amount of share-based payment expenses in respect of its
share options of HK$4,919,000 had been recognised with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the Group’s employee
share-based compensation reserve.

The options outstanding as at March 31, 2014 have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1 year (2013: 2 years).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the amounts due from/to related parties and
transactions as disclosed in notes 22, 26, 29, 32 and 33
respectively, the Group entered into the following transactions
with major related parties that are not members of the Group:

(i) During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Group
purchased gas for total amount of HK$32,833,000 (2013:
Nil) from a joint venture.

(i) During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Group sold
gas total amount of HK$46,521,000 (2013: Nil) to joint
ventures.

(i)  During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Group
received interest income for total amount of
HK$10,955,000 (2013: HK$17,117,000) from an
associate.

(iv)  During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Group paid
construction fee which are recorded as cost of property,
plant and equipment in the consolidated statement of
financial position for total amount of HK$15,835,000 to
an associate.

45,

46.

BRESERUARGEXM

h
FA (#8)

REFBVH RS ERE 2R AR
AR RELBEHEERTRERE
ZEREAFEDINEBHH &
BEEN S A= Pl i
BELHHEERR BE_T—=F=
A=+ —HLFE $ABEREZAR
19 7% 35 31 5 32 4,919,00008 7T 2 T B
R HEREERAKERE 2KH
T2 3 S B e R FE 3R

R=B-mE=A=+—8 H*x
M AT RBE N FHA
F(ZE—=F:2%)-

BEALRS

BBt 522 2 2629 32 %339 B AT
BRI ENEEALZREBERR
SN REBBEWIEAEENKE A A
ZEEBBEBALIIZTIRS

) H=2-—_ZFT—WFE=ZA=+—
BEFE A"EBNUNREE
32,833,000 (= & — = F:
BRI —REELEBERE -

iy, HE-_Z—WF=ZA=Z+—
BEFE AEBENUNREHE
46,521,000 L (= T — = & :
EIMEELEHERE-

iy HE-_Z-—WNWE=A=+—H1t
FE - AEBEH —REERFW
By 2 7 B UK A 48 %8 210,955,000
BIL(ZZF—=4F :17,117,000/8
JT) °

vy BE-ZE—=F=A=+—81t
FE AEHDH—RBEL QA
T TR E A4S £15,835,000%
T BREEHBRRERI A
VI BB RS 2 AN °
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

46.

47.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cONTINUED)  46. BBE A T X 5 (@)
The remuneration of key management of the Group was as AEBFTEEEEZMSHT :
follows:
2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Short-term benefits SRR 41,937
Post employment benefits BER 212 7 71 53
Share-based payments LABR 15 72 A 3K — 349
42,339
The remuneration of key management is determined by the TEEREMcHFNEZESKEEE
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of BEARBEEMEBEEET -
individuals and market trends.
Apart from the emoluments payable to a member of senior BREXBEEE_ZT—=F=ZA=+
management of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2013 —ALFEZEN—Z2AEESRE
as included above, during the year ended March 31, 2013, that BEEXEMEIN REBEZE_ZT—=
senior management received HK$16,907,000 and “A=+—HLEFE ZaREEE
HK$8,917,000 as the bonus payments for the financial years RIEEBEANRB ZREE DD B E
ended March 31, 2010 and 2011 respectively in accordance E_TZEFR-_F——F=RF=+
with the terms of his employment contract with the Company. — B 1 B B4 E Y ER16,907,0007% JT
%.8,917,0007& 7T Z fE4T -
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 47. FEHREE

On April 16, 2014, the Company has granted 250,000,000
share option to an eligible grantee of the Company to subscribe
for a total of 250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company at exercise price of HK$12.40 per share according
to the New Scheme. The directors of the Company were in the
progress of estimating the fair value of the share options
granted. Up to the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, there is no share option being exercised.

RZZE—NFMY A+ /B AR A
EMARE —BEEBARARL
250,000,00017 & % # - 4 AR & #r 5t
EERI2AOBTHETERES &
250,000,000 % 74~ A &) & fZ EM1E0.1078
TR EBAR - AR A E SR IEMETAT
REREZATFE BT EZSLH
AU BHER B WARITEEAER
TE o
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. S EMWE A FIFH1E
TEMBRRFEOT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARZR MR RER FEREEX BRERTRE  AAAFBERATRE  TEXEK
JEERY /EMER /EMEREEL A
2013
ZT-=%
%
Hai Xia Finance Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100" Securities investment
HK$2
BRI EERRAR 0 Bl Lak2ET FrRE
Iwai's Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100" Investment holding,
HK$1,000 property investment
Non-voting and provision of
deferred shares management services
HK$1,000,000 to group companies
(Note 1)
£ Rl AvE EER REAR NERER
10008 T ERFE REEERBTEERR
BT 131,000,000
B (M)
Wellgem Asia Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100" Property development
HK$10,000
BETNERARF 0 Bl L% 10,0007 7T NEER
MR R B 2 (BB AT PRC Wholly-foreign Registered 100°  Investment holding
Zhongran Gas (Shenzhen) owned 1S$29,800,000 and treasury
Company Limited* enterprises
("WFOE")
HE NEBELRE EMER REZRRAERME
(MEBE 29,800,000% T
i33))
HREBRAR PRC WFOE Registered 100 Investment holding
RMB898,637,000 and treasury
HE NEBELRE EMERARK REZRRAERME

898,637,000 7T
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48.
(CONTINUED)

FEMEQAFE @

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBRRFBNOT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAR SR HER EERBER HEEBRORE ARAMBERTRE  FEXH
JEERY /EMEE /EMEAEELA
2014 2013
ZE-ME ks
% %
R RIR R ERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 60" Sales of natural
Beijing Zhongran Xiangke equity joint RMB20,000,000 gas and gas pipeline
0il Gas Technology venture construction
Company Limited*
HhE RONRERE HMERARE AARHERMREBRE
20,000,0007C
Elegant Cheer Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary 100% Property holding
HK$10,000
BB ML LR 10,000% 7T ERES
RETRREERAR PRC WFOE Registered 100% Investment holding
Wuhan China Natural RMB69,980,000
Gas Investment Company Limited*
HE NEBEGR AMERAREK REZK
69,980,0007C
GHERMATRAERERAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 80% Sales of natural gas
Yiyang Central Gas & City Gas equity joint RMB44,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HE HONRERE TMERARE AARHERMREBRE
44,000,0007T
ENETRATERERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 90*  Sales of natural gas
Wuhu City Natural Gas equity joint RMB100,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Company Limited* venture construction
HE HONRERE TMERARE AARHERMREBRE

100,000,0007C
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = E[f{ B A B &=+ 18 @)

(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TEMBRARGEBUT
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
W& AR &R EMAIRER EBEEES HRERTRE EARAMBFERITRE TEXH
SEENY /ERER /EREAERELA
2014 2013
CE-ME ks
% %
ERPRARBRERAA PRC Limited liability Registered 80% Sales of natural gas
company RMB2,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
Gl BEREEAR FMERARE AARHERMBEERE
2,000,0007T
EWARREERAA PRC Limited liability Registered 70" Sales of natural gas
company RMB1,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HE BREERA AMERARE AARHERMEEBRE
1,000,0007C
BHmARGRENES PRC Limited liability Registered 80% Sales of natural gas
BRAT company RMB500,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HE BREEDA T ERARE AARHERMREBRE
500,0007T
B i ARk R T R A A PRC Limited liability Registered 51% Sales of natural gas
company RMB2,680,000 and gas pipeline
construction
Gl BEREEAR FMERARE AARHERMBEERE
2,680,0007T
HEFRATMRRERERAR  PRC Limited liability Registered 70 Sales of natural gas
Yichang Zhongran City Gas company RMB70,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Limited* construction
HE BREERA AMERARE AARHERMBEBRE
70,000,000 7T
EHARREERAA PRC Limited liability Registered 95" Sales of natural gas
company RMB2,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HE BREEDA T ERARE AARHERMREBRE

2,000,0007T
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = E KB A 7 15 (4)

(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TEMBRARGEBLOT
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAR SR HER EERBER HEEBRORE ARAMBERTRE  FEXH
JEERY /EMEE /EMEAEELA
2014 2013
ZE-ME ks
%
Clever Decision Enterprises Limited BVI Incorporated Ordinary 100" Investment holding
Us$100
ERRRES Bl A EaR100%T REER
TRBEERRERTERE PRC WFOE Registered 100*  Investment holding
BRAR RMB20,000,000
HE NEBERRE AMERAREK REER
20,000,0007T
gkl PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Huainan China Gas City Gas equity joint RMB72,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HE RN ERE FMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE
72,000,0007T
EEPRATRRERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
equity joint RMB3,000,000 and gas pipeline
venture construction
HE RO ERE FMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE
3,000,0007T
BEMEME MR EEERAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Suizhou Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB35,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HE RN ERE FMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE
35,000,0007T
ZRPRAARERAA PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Xiaogan China Gas Co., Ltd.* equity joint RMB48,950,000 and gas pipeline
venture construction
HE RN ERE FMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE

48,950,0007C
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = E[f{ B A B &=+ 18 @)

(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TEMBRARGEBUT
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAR SR HER EHERBER HEERORE ARAMBERTRE  FEXH
JEENY /EMEE /EMEAEELA
2014 2013
- Sk —T——F
% %
ZRAGSHTRAERERAR  PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100% Sales of natural gas
Xiaogan (Zhongya) China equity joint RMB16,002,000 and gas pipeline
Gas Co., Ltd.* venture construction
Gl HNEERE FMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE
16,002,0007T
E) R R E AR AR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Hanchuan Jchina Gas Co., Ltd.* equity joint RMB11,274,000 and gas pipeline
venture construction
Gl HNEERE FMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE
11,274,0007T
EERRATREEEERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Yunmeng China Gas Co., Ltd.* equity joint RMBS,708,000 and gas pipeline
venture construction
Gl HNEERE FMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE
9,708,0007T
R RRTREEEARAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Yingcheng Jiaxu China Gas Co., Ltd.* equity joint RMB10,074,000 and gas pipeline
venture construction
Gl HNEERE FMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE
10,074,0007T
ERRRAARBRAR PRC WFOE Registered 100% Sales of natural gas
Danyyang Zhongran Gas Co., Ltd.* HK$20,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
Gl NEBERE &R ARRHERMAEBRE

20,000,000 7
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48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48.
(CONTINUED)

FEMEQAFE @

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBRRFBNOT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAR SR HER EERBER HEEBRORE ARAMBERTRE  FEXH
JEEBY /EMEE /EMEAEELA
2014 2013
=t P —T-=F
%
BN RRmREEEERAR PRC WFOE Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Pizhou Zhongran City Gas US$3,060,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.*
HhE NEBERE BalliEe AARHERMREBRE
3,060,000 T
TEMeRR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 75* Sales of natural gas
Suzhou Zhongran City Gas equity joint US$3,625,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HE HNEERE &R ARRHERMAEBRE
3,625,000 7T
BNRRATRRERERAR PRC WFOE Registered 100%  Sales of natural gas
Cangzhou Zhongran City Gas HK$2,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
HhE NEBERRE Bl AARHERMREBRE
2,000,000/ 7T
ARGTRHATRRARRERAR  PRC WFOE Registered 100% Sales of natural gas
Nanpixian Zhongran City Gas HK$2,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
HE NEBERE & A ARRHERMREBRE
2,000,000/ 7T
ERER R ERERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100% Sales of natural gas
Wuhuxian Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB10,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
e RONRERE FMERAREK AARHERMREBRE

10,000,0007T
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48.
(CONTINUED)

FEMEQAFE @

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBRRAFBNOT

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAR SR HER EHERBER HEERORE ARAMBERTRE  FEXH
JEENY /EMEE /EMEAEELA
2014 2013
E-ME
% %
PR TR AERERA A PRC WFOE Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Qinzhou Zhongran City Gas RMB20,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
HE NEBERE HMERARE AARHERMREBRE
20,000,0007T
HrRRE TR RERERAR PRC WFOE Registered 100" Sales of natural gas
Yangzhong Zhongran City Gas US$1,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
B NEBECSE &R ARRHERMAEERE
1,000,000% 7T
AR RARTTREEEER AR PRC WFOE Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Tianmen Zhongran City Gas RMB10,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* construction
hE NEBERRE T ERARE AARHERMREBRE
10,000,000 7T
RN RERERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 64* Sales of natural gas
Baoji Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB265,725,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd. venture construction
HE RHRERE EMEARAREK ARRHERMREERSE
265,725,0007T
BRPREHRAREERAT PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Nanjing Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB200,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
hE mNRERE FMERAREK AARHERMREBRE

200,000,0007T
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = E KB A 7 15 (4)

(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBARFENOT :
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAR SR HER EERBER HEEBRORE ARAMBERTRE  FEXH
JEERY /EMEE /EMEAEELA
2014 2013
ZE-ME ks
%
IR EEERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100 Sales of natural gas
Yulin Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB20,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HhE RONRERE HMERARE AARHERMREBRE
20,000,0007T
SEETIITRRERERAR  PRC WFOE Registered 100" Sales of natural gas
RMB50,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HhE NEBERE HMERARE AARHERMREBRE
50,000,0007T
IR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100% Sales of natural gas
Fushun Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB133,330,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HE HNEERE TMERARE ARRHERMAEBRE
133,330,0007T
ERPRETRAZRERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100* Sales of natural gas
Wuwei Zhongran City Gas equity joint RMB18,000,000 and gas pipeline
Development Co., Ltd.* venture construction
HhE RONRERE T ERARE AARHERMREBRE
18,000,000 7T
EEAIRRARERERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 100" Sales of natural gas
equity joint RMBS5,060,000 and gas pipeline
venture construction
HhE RONRERE T ERAREK AARHERMREBRE

5,060,0007T
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = E[f{ B A B &=+ 18 @)

(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TEMBRARGEBUT
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
W& AR &R EMAIRER EBEEES BRERTRA EARAMBFERITRE TEEK
SEENY /ERER /EREAERELA
2014 2013
CE-ME ks
% %

BEMRRERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 80* Sales of natural gas
equity joint RMB183,800,000 and gas pipeline
venture construction

Bl HNEERE AMERARE AARHERMBEERE
183,800,0007C

BEMRFERARNIERAE PRC Sino-foreign Registered 80" Natural gas refill services
equity joint RMB30,000,000 and gas station
venture administration

HE HONEERE T ERARE RARMABRE R
30,000,0007T NRHER

BEMRREETEERAR PRC Sino-foreign Registered 80* Design, construction and
equity joint RMB10,000,000 maintenance of
venture city pipeline projects

HE HANEERE AMERARE HmEBERZ
10,000,0007T Fat BERRE

Zhongyou Hua Dian PRC Limited liability Registered 100 Sales of LPG
company RMB220,000,000

HREE HE BREFAA AMERARE RICABRHE

220,000,0007C

EEPERERERAR PRC Limited liability Registered 100" Investment in petrochemical
company RMB500,000,000% facilities of storage and

transportation,
fundamental facilities
of pier, sales of raw
chemical materials and
construction materials
HE BREEDA AMERARE Rt RE&HZER
500,000,0007%" BREARRHRE

LM B RBENHEE
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For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = E KB A 7 15 (4)

(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBARFENOT :
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARERE SR HER EERBER BREBRORE  ARFAMBERATRE TEEH
JEERY /EMER /EMERAEELLH
2014 2013
ZE-ME ks
% %
EMPERRERAR PRC Limited liability Registered 100 Sale of inflammable gas,
company RMB20,000,000 LPG, inflammable liquid
and inflammable solid
HE EREEAF FMERARE SMAE RIEAHA
20,000,0007T SMBRERSMERHE
EMFREERER AR PRC Limited liability Registered 100% Retailing and wholesaling
company RMB3,000,000 of LPG and accessories
HE EREEAF FMERARE RERRRREGTE
3,000,0007T Tk
EMNEN R RRAERAR PRC Limited liability Registered 65 Manufacturing of highly
company US$8,000,000 purified LPG, highly
purified propane and
butane
HE EREEAF &R B CRIARE
8,000,000 7 BFERERT RAEE
EREThsRERAR PRC Limited liability Registered 86" Storing and trading of LPG,
company US$7,000,000 sales of chemical products,
filling of LPG and delivery
of hazardous products
HE EREEAF &R BRERRREFRES:
7,000,000 7 LEERHE Kik
BRRMARERmER
IHEPER LA ERAR PRC Limited liability Registered 99.86* Producing and storing LPG
company US$10,000,000 and chemical product
HE EREERA &R RERRRRIEER
10,000,000 7 EEREER
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#r e B 7S 3R 3R M EE

For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48.

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
WEARAR MR TR FREBER BRERTRA
JEERY /EAMER
EFmaERARARAR PRC Limited liability Registered
company RMB21,250,000
HE BREAAHA A ERAREK
21,250,0007T
China Gas Corporate Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary
Services Limited HK$2
HERREERBERAA BE Eaiif v LER2ET
Iwai Style Limited Limited Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary
HK$2
BE Bl A LRR2ET
HEER PRC Limited liability Registered
company RMB60,000,000
HE BREAAHA A ERARE
60,000,0007T
ARmEARHTREERERAR  PRC Limited liability Registered
company RMB30,000,000
HE BREAAHA A ERARE

30,000,0007T

FEMEQAFE @

TEMBRRAFBNOT

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ARRFBERITRE
/EMEREEL A
2014 2013
—2-mF
% %

Principal activities

TEEH

70% Operation of gas in cities,
filling of LPG, delivery of
hazardous products and
wholesaling and retailing
of chemical products

E2RTRR  RICABR
me - EhnEd Rk
LRERRERTE

100" Nominee and secretarial
services

REARWE RS

100 Provision of management
services to the Group

AASEREEERE

100 Shipping delivery services,
technical development,
providing consultancy
services and services and
agent of delivery

MERT - KT
LB RE RER R
RHE

100 Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
ARRHERMAEBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
e B 7S 3R 3R M R e

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. = E KB A 7 15 (4)
(CONTINUED)

TEMBRRFBNOT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation Form of Paid up issued issued share capital/
or registration/  business share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARAR SR HER EERBER HEEBRORE ARAMBERTRE  FEXH
JEERY /EMEE /EMEAEELA
2014 2013
ZE-ME ks
%
B R PRC Limited liability Ordinary 80% Sales of natural gas
company RMB68,500,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HE EREEAF LRRARK ARRHERMAEBRE
68,500,0007T
Brilliant China BVI Incorporated Ordinary 100 Investment holding
US$50,000
ERRRES Bl A EiAMR50,000% T REER
Beijing Zhongmin Zhongran PRC Limited liability Ordinary 100 Investment holding
Trading Company Limited company HK$30,000,000
IRARPRESBERAA T EREEAA LAk REER
30,000,000/ 7T
HTARRE PRC Limited liability Ordinary 100 Sales of natural gas
company RMB40,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HE EREEAF LRRARK ARRHERMAEBRE
40,000,0007T
BEFR PRC Limited liability Ordinary 80% Sales of natural gas
company RMB15,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HE EREEAF LRRARK ARRHERMAEBRE
15,000,000 7T
AR REB AR PRC Limited liability Ordinary 100 Sales of natural gas
company RMB50,000,000 and gas pipeline
construction
HE EREERA LERRARK ARRHERMAEBRE

50,000,0007C




48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48.

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

incorporation Form of Paid up issued
or registration/  business share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations structure registered capital
WEARAR MR TR FREBER BRERTRA
JEEE /RRER
HEEBRRERALAT PRC Limited liability Registered
company RMB60,000,000
HE BREAAHA A ERAREK
60,000,0007T
EEUR PRC Limited liability Registered
company RMB30,000,000
HE BREAAHA A ERAREK
30,000,0007T
Fortune Gas Hong Kong Incorporated Ordinary
HK$702,730,911
EHHRR BE Bl A LAk
702,730,911 7T
Panva Gas BVI Incorporated Ordinary
US$1,111
BIIME ERRRHS Baiif v LEBRIIINMET
BHE PRC Limited liability Registered
company RMB37,500,000
P E BREAAHA A ERAREK
37,500,0007T

w English name is for identification purposes only.

registered capital directly held by the Company.

#

registered capital indirectly held by the Company.

The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/registered capital/

The proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/registered capital/
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For the year ended March 31, 2014 BZ—F—NFE=A=+—HIFE

FEMEQAFE @

TEMBRRAFBNOT

held by the Company

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

AR RFBERTRE
/EMEREEL I
2014 2013

—g-nF
%

##

Principal activities

TEEH

100

90##

Sales of natural gas
and gas pipeline
construction
ARRHERMAEBRE

Sales of LPG

BALR R E

Investment holding, sales of
natural gas and CBM
business

REBR RAARHER
THREBRER

Investment holding and
sales of LPG
REARRRICABRHEE

Sales of natural gas

ARRHE

XA B GERR o

ARRFHAEZEBRTRA GEMER B
EEMEAEELD -

ARAFBBEZBEBEARAE EMELR M
HEMEAREELP -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuep)
EMBHRREFE®

For the year ended March 31,2014 HE=—T—NF=A=+—HIEFE

48. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 48. * Z [ B 2 5 215 (a)
(CONTINUED)

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company FREINEERAEARAEFBEENE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the EAETEZEARAZSTENEAR
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other Al -BFRE REEMHE QA
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in EeBHERNBRITE -

particulars of excessive length.

Note: B AT -

(1) The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, practically carry no (1) BEERMDYIERAERSE MEE LI
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any NG S ¥ NGRS G S W
general meeting of the Company or to participate in any distribution on ens HEezdnNe L BREFRNER
winding up. BHZEMRDIKZER -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at E= i NI AR ET & IRBSF I A

the end of the both years. ERAREEEBES

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no material non- EERR AEBUVEFMEKNIEE

controlling interests and the summarized financial information Bm BEVTEBEEZSENERFH

about these subsidiaries is not disclosed. PEERBE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEEE

For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=+-HLHFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
kN T —F —F-f T —F ZT-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE T FET T T&T FBT
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&%) (E7) (E7)
Results E
Revenue A A0y 17,955,672 18,933,565 15,861,880 10,211,959
Profit for the year Vi N/NET|
attributable to A AE
owners of the Company F 5 % F VN 1,764,264 953,926 599,145 824,915
At 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
kN T —F —F - T —F ZFT-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TBT TE T FET T&T
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E7) (&%) (&%) (&%)
Assets and liabilities EENMEE
Total assets 1B E LIyl 32,495,039 31,874,385 30,898,783 22,997,594
Total liabilities weE e rA b (19,752,254) (21,075,395) (20,636,477) (17,818,078)
B EY P 12,742,785 10,798,990 10,262,306 5,179,516
Equity attributable to the RNATHEE A
owners of the Company FEfh = AR RN 11,484,640 9,742,213 8,687,204 4,072,301
Minority interests D BIRG R AE a PIeyEfyEl 1,258,145 1,056,777 1,575,102 1,107,215
R EYARPE 12,742,785 10,798,990 10,262,306 5,179,516
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEYEER

Location Type Group's interest (%) Lease term

Hb B 5l FEE 2 (%) HH

Leasehold land and buildings
HELHREF

In Hong Kong:
EEME

16/F., AXA Centre Office premises 100 Long lease
No. 151 Gloucester Road FENESYES REARA
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

BB

it

EEITE1515%

ZRRL61E

In the People’s Republic of China:

RAEARLME :

7= Y11 T /& Al K 38 5002 5% Commercial 100 Medium term lease
5 EHBEI13E 181 [EES AR ERTEAY

IR mERFELZMEH6Y Office premises 100 Medium term lease

PAEYE AR ERFRAY

Investment properties

BREY*

No. 28-30 Kai Tak Road Vacant land 100 Medium term lease

Kowloon City Z=E + it HRERTEAY

Kowloon

Hong Kong

BB

JLEE
BE M

B % 58 28-305%
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